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Corporate Information

NEEHR
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Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor
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Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

In Hong Kong:

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

In Macau:
Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

In the Philippines:
The Union Bank of the Philippines, Inc.
BDO Unibank, Inc.

In Japan:
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the Company, please contact
Corporate Communications Department

website:  www.suncitygroup.com.hk

e-mail:  ir@suncitygroup.com.hk
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Properties Portfolio Overview

MEEEEE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS
Completed project

Interest

Site Area GFA (m?) Saleable Commencement/ attributable

Project name Place (m?)  Residential Shop  Others™ Total Area(m?) completion date to the Group

Le Paysage Shenzhen 42,233 90,053 5,890 42,180 138,123 96,953 2008/Q1-2014/Q3 100%
Properties under development/to be developed

Interest

Site Area GFA (m?) Saleable Commencement/ attributable

Project name Place (m?  Residential Shop  Others™ Total Area(m?) completion date to the Group

The Landale Chaohu 122,363 78,120 4,854 2,782 85,756 82,974 note (2) 100%

PROPERTY LEASING BUSINESS

100% owned by the Group

Project name Place Leasable area (m?
Gang Long City Shopping Centre Shenzhen 64,397
Notes:
(1) Includes club house and car parking spaces

(2)  The Chaohu City People’s Government (the “Chaohu Government”) intended to reclaim the land use rights in respect of The Landale, which is currently
in negotiation with the Chaohu Government and the compensation is yet to be determined.
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Properties Portfolio Overview
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Group Financial Summary

CEMBEHBE
RESULTS E 35
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR AR®TT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Revenue — Contracts with customers WA - BF A4 572,269 747,595 497,800 1,060,228 729,735
Revenue - Leases WA -HE 39,558 45048 46,908 48,613 47 476
Total Revenue ESLON 611,827 792,643 544,708 1,108,841 777,211
Change in fair value of investment ~ RENE 2 AR EE
properties (112,800) (10,700) (7,100) 40,000 95,000
Change in fair value of financial BROREFAEG &R
assets at fair value through profit BEZANEE
or loss ) 20,681 1,011 - - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT 2 Was 9,245 - - 1,145 -
Loss on deemed partial disposal of G {FR S HER — S
equity interest of an associate NEIRE BB (60,442) - - - -
Loss on deemed disposal of BIELERBARZEER
subsidiaries (151,951) - - - -
Impairment on interest in an NN YN 3
associate B (197,728) - - - -
Change in fair value of a convertiole AT E% v AR EED
bond - 73,936 - - -
Change in fair valug of derivative MTESMIAZARE
financial instruments 23 (521,746)  (1,189,505) (329,855) 17,704 -
Reversal of provisions (provisions)  EA R EEER R (&)
for potential claims - 19,518 (41,882 14,937 (15,137)
(Provisions) reversal of provisions &7 #A (B ) & (B @
for litigations (27,800) - 289,240 (130,761) (114,393)
(Impairment loss) reversal of HEERRRESR)
impairment loss recognised in REREEE
respect of inventories o - - (57,034) (21,657) 13,367
Impairment loss recognised in REERRREEE
respect of goodwill ) - - - (4,039) -
Impairment loss recognised in g1 ih AR RER
respect of prepayment for land 5 |
use right . - - - (99,330) -
Reversal of impairment loss HIERBEE LSRR
(impairment loss) recognised in REFERE
respect of deposits for non-current  (F{EEIE)
assets - - 438,000 (316,259) -
Share of profit (loss) of associates ~ E{GEE4 A 1% Kl (B518) 5,604 (1,047) (37) - -
Share of loss of a joint venture [Elh—FHaERrEE (82,165) (14,896) - - -
Finance costs BEKAE (222,462) (161,412) (118,046) (192,137) (296,431)
(Loss) profit before taxation BBAT (B 18) A (1,495,053) (1,378,012 262,084 (393,452) (230,606)
Income tax expenses FriEiF (14,219) (80,886) (65,191) (318,839) (161,504)
(Loss) profit for the year AEE (BB RN (1,509,272)  (1,458,898) 196,893 (712,291) (392,110)
Other comprehensive income AEFEMZEKA
(expense) for the year (Hx%) 45,542 5,648 392 (234) -
Total comprehensive (expense) FRZERI)UALE
income for the year (1,463,730) (1,453,250) 197,285 (712,525) (392,110)
Total comprehensive (expense) RARAEA ANEERE
income attributable to owners of (HAZ) W ABE
the Company (1,439,585) (1,452,893) 197,394 (702,470) (391,189
Total comprehensive expense ErRESEE2EAY
attributable to non-controlling ok
interests (24,145) (357) (109) (10,055) (925)
(1,463,730)  (1,453,250) 197,285 (712,525) (392,110)
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Group Financial Summary

SEMEHE
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE  BERFERER
INTERESTS
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,169,708 2,626,664 1,834,649 1,970,453 2,274,831
Current assets MEEE 949,284 828,214 1,084,052 1,004,600 1,342,918
Current liabilities MENBE (4,231,612) (2,798,989  (2,403566)  (2,277,216)  (3,363,623)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (1,592,756)  (1,714,889) (762,950)  (1,170,883) (821,393)
Non-controlling interests R (246,343) 11,129 10,772 10,663 5,217
Deficit attributable to owners of ADAER AE
the Company B4l (1,951,7119)  (1,047,871) (237,043) (462,383) (562,050)
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Chairman  Chau Cheok Wa
FE AEE

Dear fellow shareholders,

The coronavirus pandemic brought the world into an uncharted territory,
where lots of businesses were disrupted. | am aware of the persistent
impacts that the pandemic brought to the global economy. Markets have
been extremely volatile as a result of the virus, consumer confidence
dwindle, visas temporarily stopped and quarantine measures were put in
place across borders. To me, the health and safety of our staff and our
guests are of utmost importance. | am also proud of the containment
measures by the Central Government and the Macau SAR Government.
Together they have set exemplary examples of virus containment
measures for the rest of the world. | am also proud of my team who has
worked tirelessly together amid times of uncertainty. | am confident that
the pandemic will pass, just as every storm eventually runs out of rain
and every dark night eventually turns into day.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Nevertheless, the year of 2019 was a remarkable year in terms of market
development to Suncity Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “Suncity”). Among other
things, we entered the Philippines gaming market to develop Westside
City Project at Entertainment City in Manila; we became the single largest
shareholder of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited, the listed company that
owns majority equity interest of the largest integrated resort in Russia; we
purchased a scenic piece of land on Miyako Island, Okinawa, Japan to
build villas and hotel rooms; and most important of all, we continued to
progress on the final construction works of our flagship integrated resort
investment through our joint venture, the HOIANA, in Viethnam. We are
working hard to ensure that HOIANA will be ready to welcome our firsts
guests in the preview. All of these set the stage for 2020 and beyond to
become transformative years ahead for Suncity.

I would also like to take this opportunity to update my fellow
shareholders that the highly-anticipated grand opening of HOIANA is
now scheduled to happen in 2021, with an exclusive preview of HOIANA
in summer 2020, as a consequence of the uncertainties brought by
coronavirus. Although the flight and visa suspensions to Vietnam may
last for sometime, Suncity’s investment in Vietnam is intended to stay for
a very long time. Hence, our long-term confidence towards the Vietnam
market remains positive, given Vietnam’s extraordinary growth prior to
the pandemic. With Suncity’s extensive platform and expertise, | am
confident that we will transform HOIANA into a benchmark for excellence
in South East Asia.

In summer 2020, we will unveil the HOIANA Phase 1 for the first time
ever in an exclusive preview, with the grand opening now scheduled in
2021. HOIANA will feature an integrated resort with a casino that holds
gaming tables, electronic gaming machines, Asian delights & other
international cuisine with more than 1,000 hotel rooms. HOIANA wiill
offer guests authentic Viethamese experience embellished with sun, sea
and sand. This is a very exciting time for myself to witness my vision
for Suncity to sprout from ground zero into a truly integrated resort — a
metamorphosis for Suncity. This year, we will also be completing the
upgrade works of Tigre de Cristal Phase 1 in Vladivostok, Russia. | am
also thrilled to be conducting the groundbreaking ceremony of Westside
City Project at Entertainment City in Manila soon, marking a new chapter
for Suncity’s presence in Asia. With a few years down the line, | envision
Suncity’s integrated resort portfolio to be extended all over the key Asian
jurisdictions, rivalling peers ahead of us today.

AEHEBERERAT 2019FFERE

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Finally, | would like to extend my gratitude to all government officials and £ 18 » 2N A 58 bt Rt R & 4 IEE 25 h HHn
medical staff for combating the virus around the world. | would also lke FEEHFERINEENEEZEAE - AANE
to thank our valuable team members for their hard work striving to create B H PIBT SR ER K B @ £ EE = Pk
strides in this challenging yet exciting times; and, for their patience to w2 \ mE B A AR EENEE 2 &
grow together with the company. | hope you are as excited as | am to B - LA R RR A (P B B BB RS R M B2 4 o

Rl Es12020. PGB - B E2020% -
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa HF%E’.{

Chairman FE

8 June 2020 20205688 H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB1,484.3 million in 2019 that represents a slight
increase as compared to the loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of RMB1,458.5 million in 2018.

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company in 2019
was mainly attributable to (i) loss of approximately RMB521.7 million in
respect of the change in fair value of derivative financial instruments;
(i) impairment on interest in an associate of approximately RMB197.7
million; (iii) loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
RMB152.0 million; (iv) loss of approximately RMB112.8 million in
respect of the change in fair value of the investment properties; (v)
share of loss of a joint venture of approximately RMB82.2 million; and
(vi) loss on deemed partial disposal of equity interest of an associate of
approximately RMB60.4 million.

Revenue: Revenue was derived from (i) property development, (ii)
property leasing, (iii) provision of hotel and integrated resort general
consultancy services, (iv) provision of travel related products and
services, and (v) other revenue. Revenue for the year was approximately
RMB611.8 million, decreased by approximately RMB180.8 million when
compared to approximately RMB792.6 million for last year. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue from the property
development segment.

i) Property development — The Group delivered residential units in
the aggregate Gross Floor Area (“GFA”) of approximately 621 m?
(2018: 2,981 m?), including high-rise building units of approximately
621 m? (2018: 1,475 m?), luxury high-rise building units of nil m?
(2018: 279 m?) and villa of nil m? (2018: 1,227 m?). As a result
of the decrease in sale of GFA, revenue for 2019 decreased by
approximately RMB158.5 million to approximately RMB18.9 million.

i)  Property leasing — The revenue represented rental income and
property management services income from the leasing of Gang
Long City Shopping Centre. It recorded a decrease from RMB52.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB44.8 million for the year resulting from the continual decrease
in occupancy rate from 67% to 60%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

il Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services
— Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services
commenced since the second half of 2017 and the Group entered
into technical service agreements with integrated resorts in Vietnam
and Cambodia, revenue for the year was approximately RMB14.5
million (2018: RMB19.8 million).

iv) Travel related products and services — Revenue mainly
represented the sale of hotel accommodation products and
travel agency service income, the decrease in revenue for 2019
was mainly attributable to the slight decline in demand of hotel
accommodation products in the fourth quarter of 2019 as
compared to last year.

v)  Other revenue — Other revenue mainly represented the provision
of property management services and transportation services in the
Philippines which was attributable to Suntrust Home Developers,
Inc. (“SunTrust”), a company listed on The Philippine Stock
Exchange Inc., and its subsidiaries, collectively referred as the
“SunTrust Group” acquired by the Group in the fourth quarter of
2019.

Other income, gains and losses: The decrease in other income, gains
and losses during the year was mainly due to () the decrease of net
exchange loss of approximately RMB94.7 million (2018: net exchange
loss of approximately RMB181.0 million) which was primarily due to
the translation of convertible bonds, derivative financial instruments,
loans from a related company and promissory notes; and (i) no further
maintenance costs incurred (2018: RMB32.8 million) due to a landslide
accident in 2018.

Selling and distribution expenses: Selling and distribution expenses
remained stable in 2018 and 2019, which comprised mainly salaries
and benefits of sales and marketing staff, advertising and promotion
expenses.

Administrative expenses: The increase in administrative expenses
in current year was mainly attributable to the increase in share-based
compensation benefits and the increase in administrative expenses in
relation to SunTrust Group, which was acquired in the fourth quarter of
2019.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Change in fair value of investment properties: It referred to the
change in market value of Gang Long City Shopping Centre located in
Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The fair values
of the investment properties as at 31 December 2019 were assessed
by an independent valuer. The decrease in 2019 was mainly due to the
prevailing market conditions.

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss: Prior to the Summit Ascent Acquisition (as defined below),
the Group held certain number of shares of Summit Ascent Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 102) (“Summit
Ascent”) and was classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The Group further acquired approximately 24.68% of the issued
share capital of Summit Ascent at the consideration of HK$717,812,540
on 23 April 2019 (the “Summit Ascent Acquisition”). Upon the completion
of Summit Ascent Acquisition, the interest of the Group in Summit
Ascent increased from approximately 3.29% to approximately 27.97%,
those shares held were reclassified as investment in an associate and
the gain was recognised upon such reclassification.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: The Group disposed of its equity
interest in Sun Metro Real Estate Company Limited, which indirectly held
90% attributable interest in its property development project at Fushun,
Liaoning Province, the PRC, at the consideration of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,000,000).

Loss on deemed partial disposal of equity interest of an
associate: During the year, due to (i) the exercise of outstanding share
options of Summit Ascent subsequent to the Summit Ascent Acquisition
and (i) the further acquisition of 1.8% issued shares of Summit Ascent
by the Group, the equity interest in Summit Ascent held by the Group
was diluted from 29.77% to 29.68%. In addition, Summit Ascent issued
300,000,000 new shares to not less than six independent third parties
at HK$1.01 each on 19 August 2019. Upon the completion of the
issuance of shares, the equity interest of Summit Ascent held by the
Group was further diluted from 29.68% to 24.74%, a loss on deemed
partial disposal of equity interest of an associate of approximately
RMB60,442,000 was recognised during the year of 2019.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries: On 28 October 2019,
the Group acquired 51% equity interest of SunTrust (the “SunTrust
Acquisition”). Upon the completion of SunTrust Acquisition, SunTrust
became a 51% owned subsidiary of the Group. SunTrust engaged in
property management and transportation services, which are carried
out by its subsidiary, First Oceanic Property Management, Inc. (“FOPM”)
and its subsidiary, which are companies incorporated in the Philippines
(FOPM, and its subsidiary collectively referred as the “FOPM Group”).

On 10 December 2019, FOPM issued 150,000,000 new shares to
a related company of a non-controlling shareholder of SunTrust at
PHP1.0 each (the “FOPM Shares Subscription”). Immediately following
the completion of FOPM Shares Subscription, FOPM Group ceased
as subsidiaries of the Group and FOPM became 24.27% owned by
the Group that constituted a deemed disposal of subsidiaries. The
assets and liabilities and goodwill of approximately RMB115.4 million
arising from the SunTrust Acquisition were derecognised from Group’s
consolidated financial statements since then and the retained interest in
FOPM was recognised as investment in an associate. Accordingly, a loss
on deemed disposal of subsidiaries of approximately RMB152.0 million
was recorded.

Impairment on interest in an associate: For the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group performed impairment review on the
investment in an associate, Summit Ascent. As the recoverable amount
was less than the carrying amount, the Group has recognised an
impairment on interest in an associate of approximately RMB197.7
million by reference to the valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer accordingly.

Change in fair value of a convertible bond: The Company issued a
convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$570.0 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB505.1 million) to Fame Select Limited, the major
shareholder of the Company in 2016 (“2016 Convertible Bond”). During
the year ended 31 December 2018, the maturity date of the 2016
Convertible Bond was extended to 7 December 2020 and this resulted
in a change in fair value of a convertible bond of RMB73.9 million.

Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments: It mainly
represented the loss on change in fair value of derivative components
carried in the 2016 Convertible Bond and the 2018 Convertible Bond
offset against the gain on change in fair value of derivative instrument
asset in relation of put option during the year ended 31 December 2019.
The fair value of the derivative financial instruments as at 31 December
2019 was assessed by an independent valuer.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Provision for litigation: As stated in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group was involved in a litigation in relation to
the Individual Claim (as defined in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements). During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
made provision of approximately RMB27,800,000 for potential liability of
the litigation.

Reversal of provisions for potential claims: The provisions for
potential claims represented the potential refunds of deposits and
compensation to the buyers of the properties held for sale in relation
to breaches of terms stipulated in the sales and purchase agreement
entered into between the Group and the buyers. Followed by the formal
release of the seizure of properties by the court in 2018, no further
reversal of provisions for potential claims was recognised during the year
(2018: reversal of provisions of RMB19.5 million).

Share of profit (loss) of associates: The Group recognised the share
of profit of associates of approximately RMB5.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
share of loss of RMB1.0 million), which represented the share of profit
or loss of Summit Ascent, FOPM Group and an associate which was
incorporated in November 2017 during 2019.

Upon the completion of Summit Ascent Acquisition on 23 April 2019,
the interest of the Group in Summit Ascent was classified as an
associate of the Group. Since then, the share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income or expense of Summit Ascent was recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group held approximately 24.74% equity interest in Summit Ascent.

Upon completion of the FOPM Shares Subscription on 10 December
2019, FOPM Group ceased as subsidiaries of the Group and FOPM
became 24.27% owned by the Group, the retained interest in FOPM was
recognised as investment in an associate, the share of profit and other
comprehensive income or expense of the FOPM Group for the period
from 10 December 2019 to 31 December 2019 was recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Share of loss of a joint venture: The amount represented the share
of loss of the Group’s joint venture which was acquired through the
acquisition of the entire equity interest and shareholder’s loan owed by
Star Admiral Limited (“Star Admiral”) in the second half of 2018. The
principal assets of Star Admiral is approximately 34% equity interest
in the integrated resort development project located in Hoi An South,
Quang Nam Province, Vietnam (the “Hoiana Project”). Since the Hoiana
Project is still under construction phase, it was in loss making position
during the year of 2018 and 2019.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Finance costs: Finance costs mainly comprised (i) interests on interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, (ii) effective interest expense
on convertible bonds, (i) interests and imputed interest expense on
promissory note and loans from a related company, (iv) interest on lease
liabilities and (v) interest on loans from non-controlling shareholders. The
increase in finance cost in 2019 was mainly attributable to the increase
in other borrowings, the promissory notes issued in the second half of
2018 and the loans from a related company drawn since the second half
of 2018.

Income tax expenses: Income tax expenses comprise current tax, land
appreciation tax (“LAT”) and deferred taxation, the decrease in 2019 was
mainly due to the decreases in current tax and LAT offset by recognition
of deferred tax.

SEGMENT ANALYSIS

In 2019, (i) property development revenue; (i) property leasing revenue;
(iii) hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services income;
(iv) travel related products and services income; and (v) other segment
accounted for approximately 3.09% (2018: 22.38%), 7.31% (2018:
6.64%), 2.36% (2018: 2.50%), 85.90% (2018: 68.48%) and 1.34%
(2018: nil%) of the total revenue respectively.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
Bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and restricted
bank deposits, in aggregate, as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately RMB289.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB103.1
million).

The Group had total bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB859.4 million as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMB685.3 million) of which approximately RMB373.4 million were
repayable on demand or within one year; approximately RMB231.0
million were repayable in the second year; approximately RMB90.0
million were repayable in the third to fifth year, inclusive; and the
remaining RMB165.0 million were repayable after the fifth year. The
Group’s borrowings carried interest at fixed or floating interest rates.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
(Cont’d)

The Group issued a HK$ denominated promissory note (“2016
Promissory Note”) of principal amount HK$5.6 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB4.7 million at date of issuance) to a director. The
carrying amount of the 2016 Promissory Note at 31 December 2019
was RMB5.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB4.9 million) which is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on 31 August 2020. The
Group issued a HK$ denominated promissory note (2018 Promissory
Note”) of principal amount HK$303.0 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB262.7 million at date of issuance) to a related company. The
carrying amount of the 2018 Promissory Note at 31 December 2019
was RMB256.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB229.0 million) and it is
unsecured, interest bearing at 2% per annum and repayable after two
years from the date of issuance. The Group had loans from a related
company of approximately RMB729.6 million as at 31 December 2019
(81 December 2018: RMB164.5 million). The amounts are unsecured,
interest bearing at 3.5% and repayable after 60 months from the effective
date of the loan agreements. The Group had loans from non-controlling
shareholders of approximately RMB84.8 million as at 31 December 2019
(81 December 2018: Nil), which are secured by parcels of land, interest
bearing at 2.4% and repayable on 21 July 2020.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate unconditional loan facilities with
principal amount of up to HK$3,650 million (equivalent to approximately
of RMBS3,270 million) have been granted by a related company to
the Group, of which approximately HK$1,428 million (equivalent to
approximately of RMB1,279 million) have been drawn down and the
unutilised principal amount of the facilities is approximately HK$2,222
million (equivalent to approximately of RMB1,991 million).

The Group’s total bank and other borrowings, promissory notes, loans
from a related company and loans from non-controlling shareholders
divided by total assets as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
47.0% (31 December 2018: 31.4%).

The Group had convertible bonds and derivative financial instruments
liabilities of approximately RMB581.7 million (31 December 2018:
RMB515.1 million) and RMB2,146.2 million (31 December 2018:
RMB1,578.9 million), respectively. The total of convertible bonds and
derivative financial instruments divided by total assets as at 31 December
2019 was 66.2% (31 December 2018: 60.6%).
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
(Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB949.3 million (31 December 2018: RMB828.2 million) and current
liabilities of approximately RMB4,231.6 million (31 December 2018:
RMB2,799.0 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB581.4 million (31 December 2018: RMB598.2 million) were secured
by certain investment properties, inventories and pledged bank deposits
of the Group of approximately RMB1,601.4 million (31 December 2018:
RMB1,714.2 million), RMB172.1 million (31 December 2018: RMB172.1
million) and RMBO0.006 million (31 December 2018: RMB0.006 million)
respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB11.8 million (31 December 2018: RMB7.1 million) were pledged
for the license and suppliers in relation to Sun Travel Ltd. (“Sun Travel”)
and STL Passenger Transport Company Limited, indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMBO0.3 million (31 December 2018: RMBO0.3 million) have been pledged
with the banks as guarantee deposits for the mortgage loan facilities
granted to the buyers of the Group’s properties.

As at 31 December 2019, loans from non-controlling shareholders of
approximately RMB84.8 million (31 December 2018: nil) were secured
by certain property, plant and equipment of the Group of approximately
RMB297.5 million (31 December 2018: nil).

As at 31 December 2019, the indirect equity interest of approximately

34% in Hoi An South Development Ltd (“HASD”) were pledged to a bank
for the banking facilities granted to HASD.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGES

The functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency
of the consolidated financial statements of the Company are in Renminbi.
The income and expenses, assets and liabilities, interests in associates
and interest in a joint venture of the Company and its subsidiaries
which denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are
converted into Renminbi for financial reporting purpose. Fluctuations in
exchange rates may have an impact on the Group’s financial position
and results. The Group monitors the exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates and takes appropriate measures to mitigate and manage
the risk on a timely and effective manner. The Group did not engage in
any derivative activities and did not commit to any financial instruments
to hedge its statement of financial position exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates as at 31 December 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
For the details of contingent liabilities, please refer to note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

For the details of operating lease and capital commitments, please refer
to the notes 42 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

(@ Prior to the Summit Ascent Acquisition, the Group held
approximately 3.29% of the issued share capital of the Summit
Ascent. On 24 April 2019, upon the completion of Summit Ascent
Acquisition, the Group further acquired approximately 24.68%
of the issued share capital of Summit Ascent, the interest of the
Group in Summit Ascent increased from approximately 3.29%
to approximately 27.97%, since then the investment in Summit
Ascent was classified as an associate of the Group. After the
Summit Ascent Acquisition, the Group further acquired 1.80%
equity interests of Summit Ascent from the open market for a
consideration of approximately HK$45,021,600, and the interest of
the Group in Summit Ascent increased to approximately 29.77%.

In addition, due to (i) the exercise of outstanding share options
of Summit Ascent during the year and (i) Summit Ascent issued
300,000,000 new shares to independent third parties at HK$1.01
each on 19 August 2019. The equity interest of Summit Ascent
held by the Group was diluted to 24.74%, a loss on deemed
partial disposal of equity interest of an associate of approximately
RMB60,442,000 was recognised during the year. As at 31
December 2019, the Group held approximately 24.74% equity
interest in Summit Ascent.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Cont’d)

(b) On 30 April 2019, the Group as vendor, entered into a conditional
agreement (the “Agreement”) with a company as purchaser (the
“Purchaser”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group agreed
to sell and the Purchaser agreed to purchase the entire equity
interest in Sun Metro Real Estate Company Limited (“Sun Metro”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, at a consideration of
RMB20,000,000. The consideration was determined after arm’s
length negotiation between the Group and the Purchaser. The
transaction was completed on 3 May 2019 where control of Sun
Metro was passed to the Purchaser. Sun Metro is principally an
investment holding company. Sun Metro held 100% equity interests
in Sun Metro Real Estate (HK) Company Limited (“Sun Metro (HK)”)
which is principally engaged in investment holding. Sun Metro (HK)
held 90% equity interests in Fushun Sun Era Property Development
Company Limited (“Fushun”). The remaining 10% equity interest
in Fushun was held by a subsidiary of the Purchaser. Fushun is
principally engaged in property development in the PRC. Fushun
is classified as an insignificant subsidiary of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). As the
Purchaser is a substantial shareholder of insignificant subsidiary
of the Company, the Purchaser is not regarded as a connected
person under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save for the
interests in Fushun, the Purchaser is an independent third party of
the Group (as defined under the Listing Rules).

(c) On 30 August 2019, Modest Achieve Limited, a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (as the purchaser) and an independent
third party (as vendor) entered into the shares purchase agreement,
pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to acquire the 51%
equity interests in MSRD Corporation Limited (“MSRD”) from the
vendor for a consideration of US$9,588,000. MSRD is a company
incorporated in Japan with limited liability, the principal asset of
MSRD is a plot of land with a total site area 108,799 sqg.m. located
on Miyako Island, Okinawa, Japan. Apart from the consideration,
the Group has advanced US$12,990,566 to MSRD to repay
the shareholder’s loan then due from MSRD to the vendor. The
transaction was completed on 2 September 2019 and MSRD
became an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30
August 2019.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Cont’d)

(d

On 28 October 2019, Fortune Noble Limited, a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser) acquired 1,147,500,000
issued shares of SunTrust (“SunTrust Shares”), representing 51%
equity interest in SunTrust, in the open market at the prevailing
trading price of the SunTrust Shares traded on The Philippine
Stock Exchange Inc. and from independent sellers through private
sales, at a total consideration of approximately PHP1,100,569,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB151,548,000). SunTrust became a
51% owned subsidiary of the Group. SunTrust engaged in property
management and transportation services in the Philippines, which
are carried out by its subsidiaries, FOPM Group. For details, please
refer to announcement of the Company dated 29 October 2019.

On 28 October 2019, Fortune Noble Limited entered into a shares
subscription agreement (the “Shares Subscription Agreement”) with
SunTrust, pursuant to which, Fortune Noble Limited conditionally
agreed to subscribe for the subscription shares (i.e. 2,550,000,000
new SunTrust Shares) on and subject to the terms and conditions
of the Shares Subscription Agreement. The aggregate value of the
consideration for the shares subscription is PHP2,550,000,000 at
a subscription price of PHP1.0 per subscription share. For details,
please refer to announcement of the Company dated 29 October
2019.

On 10 December 2019, SunTrust’s subsidiary, FOPM issued
150,000,000 new shares to a related company of a non-controlling
shareholder of SunTrust. Upon the completion of FOPM Shares
Subscription, FOPM Group ceased as subsidiaries of the Group
and FOPM became 24.27% owned by the Group that constituted
a deemed disposal of subsidiaries. For details, please refer to
announcements of the Company dated 16 March 2020, 25 March
2020 and 14 April 2020.

Save for the acquisitions and disposals above, the Group had
no significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a staff force of approximately
152 (as at 31 December 2018: 141) employees. Of this, most were
stationed in the PRC. The remuneration of employees was in line with
the market trend and commensurable to the level of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries, bonuses
and long-term incentives (such as share option scheme). Total staff
costs, including directors, incurred for the year 2019 was approximately
RMB74.8 million (2018: RMB53.6 million).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group continued to
engage in (i) property development in the PRC; (i) property leasing in
the PRC, (iii) provision of hotel and integrated resort general consultancy
services in Vietham and Cambodia; (iv) provision of travel related
products and services; and (v) other segment.

Property development

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had two property development
projects in the PRC, namely Le Paysage in Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province and the Landale located at Chaohu, Anhui Province.

Le Paysage

Le Paysage is in the boarder land of Luohu district and Longgang district
of Shenzhen, on the hillside of the east side of Qingping expressway and
Fengyi mountain tunnel. Le Paysage consists of premier villas, residential
units and retail shops with total saleable GFA of approximately 96,953
m?. The Group has commenced to deliver Le Paysage to buyers since
the third quarter of 2014 and has already sold approximately 86% of the
total saleable area of Le Paysage as at 31 December 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Property development (Cont’d)

Landale

The Landale is currently suspended due to the change in policy
regarding the rules of scenic area in the PRC. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group received a notice from Chaohu Government
that in accordance with the relevant laws and rules of scenic area in the
PRC, the Chaohu Government intends to reclaim the land use rights in
respect of the Landale project of total land area of approximately 183.54
Chinese Mu (equivalent to approximately 122,360 m?) owned by the
Group’s subsidiary with appropriate compensation to be paid to the
Group’s subsidiary, which is yet to be determined. Details of which are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 April 2019.

Apart from the PRC, the Group has been exploring opportunities in other
Asian countries such as Vietnam, Korea, Japan, the Philippines and
Myanmar.

Property leasing

The property leasing business is principally engaged in the leasing of
a portion of Hong Long Plaza in Shenzhen, namely Gang Long City
Shopping Centre. The shopping centre has a leasable area of 64,397
square meters and the occupancy rate for the year ended 31 December
2019 was 60% (2018: 67%).

Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services

The Group commenced the provision in hotel and integrated general
consultancy services in 2017 and several agreements have been signed
with integrated resorts in Vietnam and Cambodia. As the integrated
resorts are still under construction and the construction of the Hoiana
Project will be completed in Q2 of 2020 onwards, the Group believes the
performance of this segment will improve in the coming years.

Travel related products and services

The Group commenced the provision of hotel accommodation products,
transportation tickets and travel related products in Macau since 2016.
In addition to the traditional point-of-sale channels, the Group launched
a mobile application to facilitate the sale of travel related products.

According to the information published by the Statistics and Census
Service of the Macau SAR Government, the number of visitor arrivals
exceeded 39.4 million in 2019, up by 10.1% year-on-year. The average
occupancy rate of hotels and guesthouses for the year ended 31
December 2019 decreased by 0.3% year-on-year to 90.8%, with 5-star
hotels at 92.2%, a decrease of 0.2% year-on-year. The average length of
stay of guests held steady year-on-year at 1.5 nights.

Since 2018, the Group has extended its travel products to Vietnam and
Turkey, we aim to enrich our products to cover more Asian countries in
the near future.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Other revenue

The other revenue recognised in 2019 was attributable to the operations
of FOPM Group from the date of the SunTrust Acquisition up to 10
December 2019. On 10 December 2019, upon the completion of
FOPM Shares Subscription, SunTrust’s equity interest in FOPM was
diluted from 100% to 24.27%. Accordingly, FOPM Group ceased to
be subsidiaries of the Group as from 10 December 2019 and FOPM
became an associate of the Group, no more other revenue was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements since then.

Investment in integrated resorts and hotel projects

() The Hoiana Project
On 28 August 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of the
entire equity interest and shareholder’s loan owed by Star Admiral.
Star Admiral held approximately 34% indirect equity interest in the
Hoiana Project. The Hoiana Project is expected to comprise of
seven phases to be developed over a span of thirteen years on a
site of approximately 985.5 hectares. Phase 1 is currently under
development and is expected to be completed in the second
quarter of 2020 and it will include more than 1,000 hotel rooms, a
casino with 140 gaming tables and over 300 slot machines, as well
as a golf course.

(i)  The TIGRE DE CRISTAL

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held approximately 24.74%
equity interest of Summit Ascent. Summit Ascent held 60% of
the issued share capital of an integrated resort named “TIGRE DE
CRISTAL” in Russian Far East. Phase 1 of TIGRE DE CRISTAL has
commenced operation since 2015 and is comprised of gaming area
with daily average of 22 VIP gaming tables, 27 mass gaming tables,
336 slot machines and a 121 rooms 5-star hotel with F&B and retail
outlets. Phase 2 of TIGRE DE CRISTAL is under reviewed and is
finalizing conceptual designs. It is targeting an opening of in 2022.
This new integrated resort is expected to double the VIP and mass
gaming tables, slots, and have at least twice the lodging capacity
of the first property. The plans include four restaurants and bars,
additional retail offerings, and an indoor beach club and spa.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)
Investment in integrated resorts and hotel projects (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

Hotel development project in Japan

As at 31 December 2019, the Group also owns 51% of the issued
share capital of MSRD, which held a plot of land with a total site
area 108,799 sg.m. located on Miyako Island, Okinawa, Japan.
Subject to the final development plan to be approved by the Group,
MSRD intends to build 40 villas with pool and a hotel of more than
100 rooms on the land. As at 31 December 2019, the hotel project
is currently under planning stage.

Co-Development of Westside City Project at Entertainment City
Pursuant to the co-development agreement entered into between
SunTrust and Westside City Resorts World Inc. on 28 October
2019 (the “Co-Development Agreement”) with the principal terms
set out in the Co-Development Agreement, an operations and
management/services agreement will be entered into for the
appointment of SunTrust as the sole and exclusive operator and
manager to operate and manage the main hotel casino (“O&M
Agreement”). The main hotel casino comprises of (a) the 5-star hotel
with at least four hundred (400) rooms, the standard room size of
which shall not be less than 34 sq.m.; (b) casino establishment with
approximately four hundred (400) gaming tables and one thousand
two hundred (1,200) slot machines for both mass and VIP markets;
and (c) Nine hundred sixty (960) car parking slots for the 5-star hotel
and casino establishment erected or to be erected at the Westside
City Project at the Entertainment City, Manila, the Philippines
(“Main Hotel Casino”). The investment in SunTrust marked the first
step towards establishing the Group’s footprint in the casino and
entertainment market of the Philippines and allowing the Group to
tap into this growing market as well as providing synergies to the
overall tourism-related business of the Group in the South East
Asia region. Further details of the Co-Development of Westside City
Project at Entertainment City were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 29 October 2019, 25 November 2019 and
20 January 2020, 23 February 2020 and 30 March 2020, as well as
the circular of the Company dated 26 March 2020.
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB1,484.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 (for the year
ended 31 December 2018: RMB1,458.5 million). In 2019, the Group
reported a slight increase of loss attributable to owners of the Company
by 1.8% as compared to 2018. This was primarily resulted from the
decrease in loss of change in fair value of derivative financial instruments
offset against the recognition of the loss on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries, the recognition of impairment on interest in an associate,
the recognition of loss on deemed partial disposal of equity interest in
an associate, the increase in loss of change in fair value of investment
properties, and the increase in share of loss of a joint venture. During
the year, the Group recorded a decline in total revenue from RMB792.6
million to RMB611.8 million when compared to 2018, representing a
22.8% decrease. Gross profit also decreased by 57.8% to RMB99.9
million. These were mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue from
sale of properties of the Group.

Outside the Greater China, in addition to the entering several technical
service and casino management agreements in Vietham and Cambodia
in 2018, we are also delighted to report that the Group has successfully
acquired a joint venture which primarily holds approximately 34%
equity interest in the Hoiana Project in 2018. Phase 1 of the Hoiana
Project is currently under development and was originally expected to
be completed in the second quarter of 2020. It will include more than
1,000 hotel rooms, a casino with 140 gaming tables and over 300
slot machines as well as a 18-hole golf course. Due to the coronavirus
pandemic in the first quarter of 2020, construction and pre-opening
progress of the Hoiana Project is undoubtedly affected. Hence, the
grand opening of the Hoiana Project is scheduled to happen in 2021
while a soft opening will be held in summer 2020. In May 2020, the
Ministry of Finance of the Socialist Republic of Vietham has granted the
Certification for the Eligibility for Casino Business (the “Casino Operating
License”) to HASD, subject to the compliance of the relevant laws and
regulations, the term of the Casino Operating License (and subsequent
extension or renewal) under which HASD is allowed to conduct casino
business activities for a period until 10 December 2080.

For business segment of travel related products and services, improving
infrastructure such as the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge, the Light
Rail Transit and improved connectivity with Chinese cities set as the
foundation for a further surge in demand for travel & hotels within the
Greater Bay Area. Although short-term uncertainties such as the US-
China trade war, RMB fluctuations and the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group remains confident towards the improved visitation outlook in the
Greater Bay Area.
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Cont’d)

In 2019, the Group continually invested in fast growing countries in
Asia. The GDP in Vietnam grew by 6.5% year-on-year to US$261.6
billion in 2019. Vietnam has delivered extraordinary visitation growth in
2019, visitation numbers increased by 16.2% year-on-year to 18 million
visitors. In particular, the area of Danang and Hoi An served as a hub for
international tourism as quality tourism products such as five-star hotel
rooms, long pristine beaches, UNESCO World Heritage sites and newly
built tourist attractions, are now made available. On the other hand,
GDP in the Philippines grew by 5.7% year-on-year to US$356.8 billion
in 2019. The overall gross gaming revenue in the Philippines grew by
15.4% year-on-year to PHP216.4 billion (US$4.3 billion) in 2019, making
the Philippines one of the best performing gaming jurisdictions in Asia.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held approximately 24.74% equity
interest of Summit Ascent which held 60% of the issued share capital of
an integrated resort named “TIGRE DE CRISTAL” in Russian Far East,
the Group is currently working on the renovation of TIGRE DE CRISTAL
Phase 1 and the majority of the project enhancements are expected to
be completed in the first half of 2020. In addition, the Phase 2 of TIGRE
DE CRISTAL is being designed and is targeting an opening in 2022.

For the Westside City Project, piling works are being conducted on the
construction site and we are now working on the architectural design
for the Main Hotel Casino, located at the Entertainment City, Manila,
the Philippines. Development is expected to commence in the second
quarter of 2020 after handover of the construction site under the Co-
Development Agreement and the Main Hotel Casino is expected to
commence operation prior to 2023.

The Group will continue to diversify its businesses to tourism-related
business in Asian countries and grasp opportunities on the provision for
hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services. During 2019,
the Group signed a non-legal binding memorandum of understanding
with Paradise Co., Ltd. (“Paradise”) on a possible co-operation on
Paradise’s casino in Busan, Korea, and we believe the cooperation can
enable both parties to create a synergy and develop our own strengths,
resources and expertise.

The Group aims to build an integrated tourism and entertainment
related platform with equity investments in integrated resorts as well as
a tourism-related service provider to integrated resorts within the Asian
region.
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Cont’d) EERREE(E)
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JE12E 5B Fu 1R 445 Westside City 8 B
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Awards Institution
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SUNCITY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
AGHEBZERERAD T
The Best Investor Relations Case Study Award 3rd Annual China Excellence IR IRSC International Road
Show Centre
BEREEBERDIE FEZETPREMRTE LM ARBREETYA
Hoi An South Development Ltd (Hoiana Project)
Hoi An South Development Ltd (EZEF A S REEBRNIEE)
Best New Golf Course in Asia Pacific 2019 Asia Golf Awards in India
2019F AR HKEF = RMKIKIS HEEMNEmARIRE
Best Golf Course in Vietnam USA Golf Digest
MERERB RS % B Golf Digest
Top 100 Golf Course of the Asia Pacific Asia Pacific by Cloud Golf, China
DARAERBXRIIS REES SRR EFNTRETE

Hoiana Project (the “HOIANA”), Quang Nam
Province, Vietham
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEECRERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (“Mr. Chau”), aged 46, was born in Macau.
Mr. Chau joined the Company on 2 September 2011 as an executive
Director and acted as the Chairman of the Company since 8 November
2011. Mr. Chau was also appointed as directors of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Chau engaged in the business of operating and
managing VIP clubs in hotels. Mr. Chau was previously an executive
director and the chairman of Sun International Group Limited (formerly
known as “Sun International Resources Limited”) (Stock Code: 8029)
(“Sun International”), a company listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and resigned on 5
July 2013. With effect from 1 June 2019, Mr. Chau has been appointed
as a non-executive director and the chairman of Summit Ascent Holdings
Limited (stock code: 102) (“Summit Ascent”), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lo Kai Bong (“Mr. Lo”), aged 40, joined the Company on 9 March
2017 as an executive Director and was appointed as directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lo has obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Winnipeg in Canada. Mr. Lo is the Chief Investment
Officer of Suncity Group, which is one of Asia’s leading VIP services
and entertainment conglomerates. Mr. Lo has been involved in business
development of Suncity Group’s overseas businesses. Mr. Lo is also
responsible for the corporate management, mergers and acquisitions
of Suncity Group and is experienced in the gaming industry. On 12
December 2018, Mr. Lo was appointed as a non-executive director of
Summit Ascent. With effect from 26 April 2019, Mr. Lo has been re-
designated from a non-executive director to an executive director and
has been appointed as the deputy chairman of Summit Ascent. Prior
to his appointment as an executive Director, Mr. Lo was appointed as
an executive director of Sun International from 13 August 2013 to 28
February 2015.

Mr. Au Chung On John (“Mr. Au”), aged 60, joined the Company
on 31 March 2017 as an executive Director and was appointed as
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Au has obtained
a Bachelor of Social Science degree from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1983. He has more than 15 years of experience in the
gaming industry. From 2004 to 2016, Mr. Au was the senior director of
business development, director of operations as well as various senior
management positions at one of the major gaming concessionaires in
Macau. His major roles included but not limited to establishing business
strategies, driving overall performance and control of VIP business, and
overseeing both gaming and non-gaming operation of newly established
properties. Representing the company, Mr. Au was a member of gaming
related committees formed by the six Macau concessionaires and sub-
concessionaires to provide advice to the relevant regulatory bodies of
the Macau government.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva, aged 66, joined the Company on 31
March 2017 as an executive Director. Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva had
served at The Gaming Inspection and Coordination Bureau (“DICJ”), the
Macau gaming regulator, for more than 43 years and was appointed as
the Head of Inspection at DICJ from 20083 to 2016, during which he was
responsible for overseeing the casino operation in Macau. Mr. Manuel
Assis Da Silva is recognised across Asia as an expert on casino game
rules, internal controls in casinos, the control of junket and VIP gaming
operations and in the regulation of gaming machines.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tou Kin Chuen (“Mr. Tou”), aged 43, joined the Company on
26 April 2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of audit committee and the members of remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Tou is the principal of Roger K.C. Tou
& Co. Mr. Tou graduated from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University
(formerly known as Hong Kong Shue Yan College) with a Honours
Diploma in Accounting in 2001. He is experienced in audit, taxation,
company secretarial, insolvency and finance for over 20 years. Mr. Tou
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
Mr. Tou has been the independent non-executive director of Sun
International and Milan Station Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1150), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 22 July
2015.

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick (“Dr. Wu”), aged 82, joined the Company
on 26 April 2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of nomination committee and the members of audit committee
and remuneration committee. Dr. Wu obtained his LL.B. degree and
Honorary Doctorate of the University from the University of Buckingham,
United Kingdom. Dr. Wu is also an Associate of Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators and a Barrister of the Inner Temple, the Victorian Bar,
Australia and the Singapore Bar. Dr. Wu was awarded Diploma in
Chinese Law by the University of East Asia, Macau, now known as the
University of Macau. Dr. Wu has been at the Hong Kong Bar for over 38
years. He is a practising member of the Hong Kong Bar Association.

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John, aged 52, joined the Company on 10 October
2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
remuneration committee and the members of audit committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Lo Wai Tung John graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of Science
(with honours) in Computer Science in 1991. Mr. Lo Wai Tung John is
experienced in securities and finance industry for over 27 years. He is
currently the Head of Equity Capital Markets of South China Financial
Holdings Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEECRERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tam Soong Jim Kenneth (“Mr. Tam”), aged 65, joined the
Company on 1 October 2017 as the Project Director. Mr. Tam obtained
a Diploma in Property Development from the University of Hong Kong,
and holds a Master of Business Administration from the University of
East Asia Macau. He has been in the real estate industry for more than
39 years and has extensive knowledge and experience in the real estate
market in Hong Kong and mainland China. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Tam held senior position in a number of property development
projects, including but not limited to, integrated property projects and
sizeable resort and casino in Macau.

Mr. Chiu King Yan (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 43, the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company, joined the Company since 1 August 2016. Mr. Chiu
has over 20 years of experience in audit, accounting, private equity
investment and corporate finance, obtained from his previous working
experience in international accounting firms and various listed companies
in Hong Kong. With effect from 23 April 2020, Mr. Chiu was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of ICO Group Limited (stock
code: 1460), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
On 26 April 2019, Mr. Chiu was appointed as an executive director
of Summit Ascent. Mr. Chiu was an executive director of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 401), a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, from March 2017 to February 2018. He
was the group chief financial officer of AID Partners Capital Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8088) (now known as AID Life Science Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, from
April 2014 to July 2016, responsible for financial reporting, investment
management and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Chiu holds a master’s
degree in financial analysis from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a bachelor’s degree in business administration in
Accountancy from The City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Michael Roy Caban (“Mr. Caban”), aged 67, joined the Company
on 4 May 2017 as casino general manager. He has been in gaming
industry for more than 40 years and has extensive experience in casino
management, gaming consultancy and gaming facilities engineering.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Caban held senior position in a number of
casino projects and gaming equipment suppliers in Macau, Australia and
New Zealand.
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The Board is pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are set out
in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of financial position on pages 90 to 94 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and note 48(b) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium, capital reserve and accumulated losses. The Company has no
reserves available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of the investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year end 31 December 2019, revenue from the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
taken together accounted for 70.4% and 98.0% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors, their
respective associates or, so far as the Directors are aware, any
shareholder who owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company has any interest in any of the said top five customers and
suppliers of the Group for the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Kai Bong

Mr. Au Chung On John

Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on pages 30
to 31 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND ROTATION
The appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”). All of the executive
Directors do not enter any service contract with the Company. All of the
independent non-executive Directors have entered a service contract
with the Company for a term of 3 years and subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles and the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, Mr. Lo, Mr. Tou and
Dr. Wu shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or has
proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not expiring or not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and both the Board and the nomination
committee considered that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

EERAQAREEEEE 2R -
HERODHESZF ZEBERAXR

R2019F12A31H » EEN AR A SHE (]
EEEE (RBS R ERN ((FHRBEK
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(the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(i) Long position in the shares and/or underlying shares of the

(i) REQXTROR BHEBRGZEFA

Company
Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interest shares
shares held to total number
Capacity/ Number of under equity of shares
Name of director Nature of Interest shares held derivatives Total in issue*
BRASTE BERRH
TAREHEE EERTRH
s 5/ REME FERGEE Rz &E @i #BeEL
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (“Mr. Chau”)  Interest of controlled corporation 4,991,643,335"  1,742,820,5612%  6,734,463,847 101.01%
BEERE(ALE]D) REHEE s
Mr. Lo Kai Bong (“Mr. Lo”) Interest of controlled corporation 5,770,000° 133,333,333* 139,103,333 2.09%
EfTREE(ELE] REHEE s
Beneficial owner 1,230,000 40,000,000% 41,230,000 0.62%
ERBBA
Mr. Au Chung On John (“Mr. Au”)  Beneficial owner - 40,000,0008 40,000,000 0.59%
Bzt (BEED) BREAA
Interest of spouse 400,000 - 400,000 0.01%
[IRLEr
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva Beneficial owner 290,000 3,000,0007 3,290,000 0.05%
M EER £ ERBBA
Interest of spouse 520,000 - 520,000 0.01%
[T
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Cont’d)

() Long position in the shares and/or underlying shares of the ) REXTARGR REEROGZER
Company (Cont’d) (#&)
Notes: B3

This represents interests held by Mr. Chau through Fame Select Limited, which
holds 4,991,643,335 shares. Mr. Chau has 50% interests in Fame Select Limited
and is therefore deemed to be interested in 4,991,643,335 shares.

EBRAEEEBREERARAR(EHA
4,991,643,335X MR 7)1 B &z o BT LR
BAEBRRARIMS0%EE - HEER AR
4,991,643,335% & 10 R B 1w o

Out of 1,742,820,512 underlying shares, 1,546,153,846 underlying shares and 2. 1,742,820,5120% #8RAR H F + 1,546,153,846
196,666,666 underlying shares were held by Fame Select Limited and Star & AERA AR 19 K 196,666,666[% 18 B A% (5 7 Bl 1 &
Hope Limited respectively. HERARRELERARIEE ©
The 1,546,153,846 underlying shares held by Fame Select Limited represents MAXBRAREEMN,546,153,846% 14
the maximum of 1,546,153,846 conversion shares to be issued upon the full B IERA R B M B EFRA R ZHITH A
conversion of the convertible bonds issued by the Company to Fame Select BHRY T EIRE0.26/8 T (7] T #8) BEH
Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.26 (subject to adjustments). Mr. IR T ITA SR % 1,546,153,846% 85 2
Chau has 50% interests in Fame Select Limited and is therefore deemed to be f&1p o BEERAREBRDBIHS0%E -
interested in 1,546,153,846 underlying shares. I 1518 & 74 1,546,153,846 % 8 B A% 1 1
AR o
The 196,666,666 underlying shares held by Star Hope Limited represents R ELERAFRAR196,666,6660% 18 7 1%
the maximum of 196,666,666 conversion shares to be issued upon the full HIERARBBITRNELRR A AT
conversion of another convertible bonds issued by the Company to Star Hope R EF IRV S EIR(E0.90/8 T (A F &) &
Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.90 (subject to adjustments). Mr. EH ARG T ITH A& % 196,666,666/% 85
Chau has 100% interests in Star Hope Limited and is therefore deemed to be D - AEEHBEEEZHRATIMNI00%HE
interested in 196,666,666 underlying shares. 5 B R A7 196,666,666 0% 18 78 A% 15
AR
This represents interests held by Mr. Lo through Better Linkage Limited and Ever 3. ILIEE ST AP BBetter Linkage Limited K& Ever
Smart Capital Limited (companies wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lo). Smart Capital Limited(#9 BE X2 E R ER
BENRA)FEORER -
This represents the maximum of 133,333,333 conversion shares to be issued 4. LI AR B] BT Better Linkage Limited
upon the full conversion of another convertible bonds issued by the Company BN BRREFRVFEREQE T
to Better Linkage Limited, at the initial conversion price of HK$0.90 (subject (AT THB)EFHEREE TEHITNRS
to adjustments). Mr. Lo has 100% interests in Better Linkage Limited and is 133,333,333 8% 1 - [& %t A& ¥ /5 Better
therefore deemed to be interested in 133,333,333 underlying shares. Linkage Limitedf100%#£ 55 + B It 15 A R
133,333,333 AR R D B s
Mr. Lo is interested in 40,000,000 share options at an exercise price of 5. [ELER40,000,00005 R EPHAER - Al
HK$0.455 per share to subscribe for shares. ZITEEENR0.4558 TTREBRMD -
Mr. Au is interested in 40,000,000 share options at an exercise price of 6.  BULAER40,000,00007 B EP AR - A
HK$1.920 per share to subscribe for shares. ZITEEENR1.9208 TRERMD -
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva is interested in 3,000,000 share options at an exercise 7. BESCEESE A 3,000,000 BE AR HE P % A A

price of HK$0.455 per share to subscribe for shares.

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2019 (i.e. 6,666,972,746 shares).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Cont’d)

EERAQAREEEEE 2R -
HERODHES T 2 EHERXR ()

(i) Long positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the (i) RZA2QFEEEERSD R, SHIEEER G
Company’s associated corporation 2R
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Name of Capacity/ Number of number of
Associated Corporation Director Nature of Interest shares held shares in issue*
HERITRSG
HE 2
HEEEER Ens B fEENE BERGEE Elil=ad
Summit Ascent Mr. Chau Interest of controlled 446,308,464 24.74%
corporation’
LA AsesE ZIEHERE 2z R
Note: MHEE -

1.

On 23 April 2019, the Group acquired 370,006,464 ordinary shares of Summit
Ascent (representing approximately 24.68% of the issued share capital of
Summit Ascent) (the “Acquisition”). Prior to the Acquisition, the Group held
49,302,000 ordinary shares of Summit Ascent (representing approximately
3.29% of the issued share capital of Summit Ascent). Upon the completion of
the Acquisition, Summit Ascent was classified as an associate of the Group.
After the Acquisition, the Group further acquired 27,000,000 ordinary shares
of Summit Ascent from the open market. As at 31 December 2019, the Group
held 446,308,464 ordinary shares of Summit Ascent (representing approximately
24.74% of issued capital of Summit Ascent). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chau is
taken to be interested in 446,308,464 ordinary shares of Summit Ascent which
are being held by the Group, as a result of his interest in the Company held
through Fame Select Limited. This represents interest deemed to be held by the
relevant Director through his controlled corporation(s).

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number of shares of
Summit Ascent in issue as at 31 December 2019 (i.e. 1,8083,777,836 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 24, 34 and 44 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Amounts Due From(to)/Loans From Directors/
Related Companies/Non-controlling Shareholders”, “Convertible Bonds/
Derivative Financial Instruments” and “Related Party Disclosures”,
respectively, no other transaction, arrangement or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
headed “Convertible Bonds/Derivative Financial Instruments”, the share
option schemes described below and in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements headed “Share Option Schemes”, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of substantial shareholders in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were

REAQXTRDREERD 2 EEERS

N
KR

R2019F 128318 - AR A% M AE KK
MERRIEE SR EBEGPIE336IEARFA
FEZERMTRtk s EEMEHERIT ¢

as follows:
Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interest shares
shares held to total number
Capacity/ Number of under equity of shares
Name Nature of Interest shares held derivatives Total in issue*
BRALTE BREZRG
TAREHE FERTRA
A% 5/ REME FEROEE R 2 EE @ BECESH
Fame Select Limited Beneficial owner 4,991,643,335"  1,546,153,846°  6,537,797,181 98.06%
BERRDA ERBBEA
Mr. Cheng Ting Kong (“Mr. Cheng”) Interest of controlled 4,991,643,335"  1,546,153,846°  6,537,797,181 98.06%
corporation
BTHELE(BEED REHEE
Mr. Chau Interest of controlled 4,991,643,335"  1,742,820,512°  6,734,463,847 101.01%
corporation
[5hea REHEE B
Notes: BiaE -

1. Fame Select Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau and 50% by Mr. Cheng. As
such, Mr. Chau and Mr. Cheng are deemed to be interested in 4,991,643,335 shares
held by Fame Select Limited.

2. This represents the maximum of 1,546,153,846 conversion shares upon the full
conversion of the convertible bonds previously issued by the Company to Fame Select
Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.26 (subject to adjustments). Fame Select
Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau and 50% by Mr. Cheng. As such, Mr. Chau
and Mr. Cheng are deemed to be interested in 1,546,153,846 underlying shares.

3. Out of 1,742,820,512 underlying shares, 1,546,153,846 underlying shares and
196,666,666 underlying shares were held by Fame Select Limited and Star Hope
Limited respectively.

The 1,546,153,846 underlying shares held by Fame Select Limited represents the
maximum of 1,546,153,846 conversion shares to be issued upon the full conversion
of the convertible bonds previously issued by the Company to Fame Select Limited at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.26 (subject to adjustments). Fame Select Limited is
owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau and 50% by Mr. Cheng. The 196,666,666 underlying
shares held by Star Hope Limited represents the maximum of 196,666,666 conversion
shares to be issued upon full conversion of another convertible bonds, issued by the
Company to Star Hope Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.90 (subject to
adjustments). Mr. Chau has 100% interests in Star Hope Limited. Therefore, Mr. Chau
is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 1,742,820,512 underlying shares.

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2019 (i.e. 6,666,972,746 shares).
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which had been recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of public
float of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules up
to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
in the Cayman lIslands.

SHARE OPTION

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the Group towards its growth and success, a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholder’s
written resolution of the Company. On 2 June 2016, a resolution has
been passed in the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company to
terminate the Share Option Scheme and adopt a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). Following the termination
of the Share Option Scheme, no further options will be granted under
such scheme, but in all other respects the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme will remain in full force and effect and options granted prior to
such termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the rules of the Share Option Scheme.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing of,
and permission to deal in the shares of the Company which may fall to
be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which granted and/or
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme, and/or the New Share
Option Scheme, subsequently.

As at 31 December 2019, a total of 363,800,187 share options
were outstanding which comprised 92,400,187 share options and
271,400,000 share options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
the New Share Option Scheme respectively.

AEHEBERERAT 2019FFERE

Directors’ Report

EXERE

RAQXFRDREBERD 2 EE#RS
KR = (%)

B EXXFTEESN - R2019F12A31H » A&
RETEETMAL(RARESERESTH
ABBRIN AR AR RIS 848 B R0 & Bk
BREZELSNIEIGRHIFEIB6IFAFE 2B
METECER 2 (AR MR A ©

RBRERE
RIBEARRIMEAHENMRESTHM K
RAIEAREAPEENE LHRAUNARE
ARABHLFRRRRIFFRE

Bk
AMAUSRERSEPAEBRELEZIK
\XO

B IR A
R2007F1A31H » AREASEMNEEHE
REEKIFEL 2 B/t - BIBEARRQF 2%
REBRZR  ARRRMN—TBERETS
([P EETEI]) - R20165F6 A28 » —IER
FENART016FREEFAE LBA -
LA# | F B A% R &1 1 3 BR 4% — TE 5T R IR AE R &)
([¥rREMEETEl]) - RIBARERT B 1EE -
T2 HEREBEZAERDERE  BERES
EMEXEEMBEEM T EINARES TR
B RERIERTE LA IS AR R S B B B i 1]
RPREE I ERT IR RTTLE -

P EH R B et ERREBBOES S
RSB IR Rt B R R AT R R 2
BREETEMATRTZARBBMD L™

NEE -

R2019%F 128318 + & $£363,800,18717 fE A%
EREITE  HPBERIEERERT S L
B PR AT &1 BIIR H /992,400,187 BE AR 4 I
271,400,00017 BE AR #E -



Directors’ Report

EFERE

SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme.

(A) Share Option Scheme
Purpose
Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@ any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);

(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or

(c) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

Exercise price
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:
(@ the nominal value of the share of the Company;

(b) the closing price of the share of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share of the Company on

the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date.
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)
(A) HEBARFERHEI(E)

SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(A) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Total number of shares available for issue and the percentage of
the issued shares capital that it represented as at the date of this
annual report

No further options will be granted under the scheme as the scheme
had been terminated on 2 June 2016.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue in any
12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under the
option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$10 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme has been terminated on 2 June 2016 but the
provisions of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme and
remain unexercised immediately prior to the date of termination
shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of
grant, notwithstanding the termination of the scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) B IR R ()
(B) New Share Option Scheme (B) #EBERFESTE
Purpose I1=¥: )

Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@ full time or part time employees, executives, officers, or
directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not) of the Group;

(b) and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents
or representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers
or licensors, customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee)
or distributors, landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants)
of the Group.

Exercise price
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(@ the nominal value of the share of the Company;

(o) the closing price of share of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share of the Company on
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the percentage of
the issued shares capital that it represented as at the date of this
annual report

444,025,890 shares, being approximately 6.66% of the issued
shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue in any
12-month period.
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(B) New Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Period within which the securities must be taken up under the
option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$1 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 2 June 2026, after
which no further options will be granted but the provisions of the
scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects.
Options complying with the provisions of the Listing Rules which are
granted during the duration of the scheme and remain unexercised
immediately prior to 2 June 2026 shall continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of grant, notwithstanding the expiry of
the scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) B IR R ()
(C) Movements of the Share Option Scheme (C) BRESTE 2
Movements of the share options, which were granted under the HZE2019F12A31HIEFENR @ RIFE
Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December 2019 IRAEETEIR M 2 B RS E T (IR B
are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules: ETRBIE17.071&E7))
During the year
R
Adjusted
Date of exercise  Exercisable
Category grant Asat i} Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Asat 7 price period
£5 BHASE 112019 e B B BN 31122019 EHEAEE s
HKS
BT
Continuous Contract 12.12.2013 462,559 - - - - 462,559 0344 13.12.2013-
Employees 12.12.2023
BEANES
Sub-total; /N3 462,559 - - - - 462,559
Consultants 1212.2013 91,937,628 - - - - 91,937,628 0344 13.12.2013-
B 12.12.2023
Suo-otal; /3t : 91,987,628 - - - - 91937628
Total: #t 92,400,187 - - - - 92,400,187
Notes: BEE -
1. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case of 1. BREZTEESEEHRRRBITARIAR
right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. AR BB e A -
2. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously 2. EERECKABEEEN - FRINBERERR
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses. ZEREREEE RS -
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) i IR R (48)
(D) Movements of the New Share Option Scheme (D) #FEBRETE 2B E
Movements of the share options, which were granted under the HZE2019F12A31H LG E © BIEFE
New Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December MREFTEIR L 2 B EE Sk EmRA
2019 are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing EAT.07TRIIRAT
Rules:
During the year
£
Date of Exercisable
Category grant Asat’  Granted Exercised Reclassified  Cancelled  Lapsed Asat’  Exercise price period
£l BB 11.2019 Rt B ENOR Bi#  BAM 31122019 kR 8
HKS
BT
Consultants 11.01.2017 135,000,000 - - = (15,000,000 - 120,000,000 0202 11.01.2017-
BE 1001.2007
19.04.2017 16,500,000 - - - - - 16,500,000 0700  19.04.2017-
18.04.2027
19.04.2017 4,100,000 - - - (500,000)' - 3,600,000 0.700  19.04.2017-
18.04.2027
19.04.2017 6,150,000 - - - (750,000)" - 5,400,000 0.700  19.04.2018-
18.04.2027
19.04.2017 10,250,000 - - - (1,260,000 - 9,000,000 0.700  19.04.2019-
18.04.2027
04.09.2017 1,400,000 - - - - - 1,400,000 0455 04.09.2017-
08.09.2027
04.09.2017 2,100,000 - - - - - 2,100,000 0455 04.09.2018-
08.09.2027
04.09.2017 3,600,000 - - - - - 3,500,000 0455 04.09.2019-
08.09.2027
02.07.2019 - 2,880,000 - - - - 2,880,000 1920 02.07.201%
01.07.2029
02.07.2019 - 2,880,000 - - - - 2,880,000 1920 02.07.2020~
01.07.2029
02.07.2019 - 3,840,000 - - - - 3,840,000 1920 02.07.2021-
01.07.2029
Sub-total: /Pt 179,000,000 9,600,000 - - (17,500,000) - 171,100,000
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) B IR R ()
(D) Movements of the New Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) (D) ¥TEBRESE 2S5 (E)
During the year
£
Date of Exercisable
Category grant Asat’®  Granted Evercised Reclassified  Cancelled  Lapsed Asat®  Exercise price period
5 REAE 112019 Rt B EN0R Bl BXM 81122019 ke e
HKS
BT
Directors
£
Lo Kai Bong 04.09.2017 8,000,000 - - - - - 8,000,000 0455 04.09.2017-
EiTg 03.09.2027
04.09.2017 12,000,000 - - - - = 12,000,000 0455 04.09.2018-
03.09.2027
04.09.2017 20,000,000 - - - - - 20,000,000 0455 04.09.2019-
03.09.2027
Manuel Assis Da Siva 04.09.2017 600,000 - - - - - 600,000 0455 04.09.2017-
HXE 03.09.2027
04.09.2017 900,000 - - - - - 900,000 0455 04.09.2018-
03.09.2027
04.09.2017 1,500,000 - - - - - 1,500,000 0455 04.09.2019-
03.09.2027
Au Chung On John 02.07.2019 - 12,000,000 - - - - 12,000,000 1920 02.07.2019-
Bz 01.07.2009
02.07.2019 = 12,000,000 - - - = 12,000,000 1920 02.07.2020-
01.07.2029
02.07.2019 - 16,000,000 - - - = 16,000,000 1920 02.07.2021-
01.07.2029
Sub-fotal: /NG : 43,000,000 40,000,000 - - - - 83,000,000
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d) i IR R (48)
(D) Movements of the New Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) (D) #EERESTE 285 (&)
During the year
ER
Date of Exercisable
Category grant Asat}®  Granted Evercised Reclassified  Cancelled  Lapsed Asat}  Exercise price period
£5 REAS 112019 Rt B EN0R Bi  BRM 81122010 ke 8
HKS
BT

Continuous Contract  04.09.2017 2,100,000 - - - - - 2,100,000 0455 04.09.2017-
Employees 03.09.2027
RRANER 0409.2017 3,150,000 - - - - - 3,150,000 0455 04.09.2018-
08.09.2027
04.09.2017 5,250,000 - - - - - 5,250,000 0455 04.09.2019-
08.09.2027
02.07.2019 = 2,040,000 - - - - 2,040,000 1920 02.07.2019-
01.07.2029
02.07.2019 - 2,040,000 - - - - 2,040,000 1920 02.07.2020-
01.07.2029
02.07.2019 - 2,720,000 - - - - 2,720,000 1920 02.07.2021-
01.07.2029

Sub-total: /Pt 10,500,000 6,800,000 - - - - 17,300,000

Tota: &3 232,500,000 56,400,000 - - (17,500,000) - 271,400,000

Notes: fEeE -

1. 17,500,000 share options were cancelled under the New Share Option Scheme 1. 17,500,000 BB EE R AR RIEBREZR
upon the resignation of consultants of the Company during the year ended 31 2019412 A31 H 1L 5 Z By (E 1B 4R B8 B A e
December 2019. HEES

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case of 2. HBREMITEEAERRIAREITIAAA
right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. FRASHI IR B b KB OV B RS 1T

3. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously 3. EBEBRERMEGEHEE - RARBRERRD
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses. SREGE ARG ERE -

4. On 2 July 2019, the Company granted aggregate 57,000,000 share options to 4. R2019F7H2A F ARBIEMETAER
certain eligible participants, of which 600,000 share options were not accepted 2B £ R H 25157,000,00017 BB AL #E - Ha
subsequently, Thus, a total of 56,400,000 share options has been granted 600,00017 IR EL & TR M - BHL - &
during the year. 4% 1H56,400,00017 B AL 4 -
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EFERE

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

(A) Connected Transactions

U

(i)

On 28 October 2019, SunTrust entered into a shares
subscription agreement (the “Megaworld Shares Subscription
Agreement”) with Megaworld Corporation (a company
incorporated in the Philippines the shares of which are listed on
The Philippine Stock Exchange Inc. (“Megaworld”), pursuant
to which, Megaworld conditionally agreed to subscribe for the
subscription shares (i.e. 2,177,165,008 new SunTrust Shares)
on and subject to the terms and conditions of the Megaworld
Shares Subscription Agreement. The aggregate value of the
consideration for the shares subscription is PHP2,177,165,008
at a subscription price of PHP1.0 per subscription share. On
the date of completion of the SunTrust Acquisition, Megaworld
was holding 12.79% interest in SunTrust and which is a
connected person of the Company for Megaworld being a
substantial shareholder of a subsidiary (i.e. SunTrust) of the
Company. The shares subscription of Megaworld constituted
a connected transaction for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 October 2019.

On 28 October 2019, the Co-Development Agreement was
entered into between Westside City Resorts World Inc.
(“Westside”, a subsidiary of Travellers International Hotel
Group, Inc. (“Travellers”)) and SunTrust, under and pursuant
to which Westside and Travellers are to lease a project site in
the Philippines to SunTrust for development of the main hotel
casino for consideration of US$200,000,000 (the “Project
Site Payment”). The Project Site Payment represents an
acquisition of right-of-use asset, and Westside is an associate
of Megaworld which is a connected person of the Company,
thus, the Project Site Payment constituted an acquisition of
asset by SunTrust and connected transaction under Chapters
14 and 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 29 October 2019, 25
November 2019 and 20 January 2020, 23 February 2020 and
30 March 2020, as well as the circular of the Company dated
26 March 2020.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Megaworld Corporation(— R JEE
B Aar  ERGRIER
BEEHFR ST L™ © [Megaworld])
7137 B 10 7R B8 5 % ([Megaworld %
mREWZ] - Bt - Megaworld
ERHERERBRB RN (A
2,177,165,008% #TSunTrustf% 7

I =R A Megaworldi% 17 52 8
FOBRREE  RHOREEIR
K{E#EE2,177,165,008 % + R
BELATRRERM1.0BR - ¥
SunTrustllEEIEM /K A -
Megaworld#F A SunTrust 12.79%
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Megaworldiz DR EE S ERE £
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Resorts World Inc.([Westside] -
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EXERE

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(A) Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

BERFERERS (&)

(A) BEXZ @)

(i)  On 10 December 2019, SunTrust’s subsidiary, FOPM issued
150,000,000 new shares to a related company of a non-
controlling shareholder of SunTrust. Upon the completion
of FOPM Shares Subscription, FOPM Group ceased as
subsidiaries of the Group and FOPM became 24.27%
owned by the Group that constituted a deemed disposal of
subsidiaries. The subscriber of shares of FOPM is a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level. The FOPM
Shares Subscription constituted a deemed disposal of
subsidiaries and a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 16 March
2020, 25 March 2020 and 14 April 2020.

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions

On 6 February 2017, Sun Travel, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into (i) the hotel accommodation
procurement agreement (the “Original HAP agreement”); and (i) the
ferry ticket supply agreement (the “Ferry Ticket Supply Agreement”)
with Sun City Gaming Promotion Company Limited (“Sun City
Gaming Promotion”).

The Original HAP agreement has a term commencing from the
date of approval of the Original HAP agreement at the extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) held and convened and ending on 31
December 2017 (both dates inclusive) (the “Initial Term”), subject
to subsequent renewal in compliance with the Listing Rules. During
the term of the Original HAP agreement, Sun Travel may from time
to time procure from Sun City Gaming Promotion, and Sun City
Gaming Promotion may from time to time supply to Sun Travel, the
provision of hotel accommodation and related services, subject to
the cap of HK$120,000,000 (the “Original Annual Cap”).

AEHEBERERAT 2019FFERE

(i) A2019%F12810H * SunTrustHy
Mt B A TIFOPMMAISunTrust— &
JEIE AR MR R A — B BB R Rl B AT
150,000,0008% # iz {7 © FRFOPMJX
MREBEETHKE - FOPMEET
BAAEENNBAR MAEEH
BFOPM 24.27%%#E - KR
EHEM B QA » FOPMAR ) B3R
BAABRRRRMBAREEN—
Z#EAL - FOPMBRD REEE=E
BRGIEHERB AR RAQRIR
BEEMHRAUF4AEN —HEFER
5 o HBEB2EAAT A AE2020
F3H16H * 20203 A25H %2020
FAR14BRRNE -

o

(B) BEREXS

R2017F2/86H + KEHkdE (AR FIHE
E2EMBARBEABREBELF N —A
BRAR(TKRBEBEIER AN - 5T32(0)H
JEETE R R E ik ([REEE 8RS
HKEwED  RimEHERZ (MEH
FEHEED) o

BBEEEREEERZNBRAENA
ARERITZRERIARS (TIRERRIXR
g) EERBEIEERRSIRE D
HEZ2017F12A31HIH(BIEEREW
B)(T#ZHIR])) - EH®BBERE LT
MAERN - NBEEEERBRBE DS
RYERPR A+ K 5 B 0% AT 1 B 20 K B 9018
FARNEE - mABSIER RN R
I) K B iR 30 4 R VG U5 1 T8 M A AR 755
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EFERE

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

BERFERERS (&)

(B) HEREXRS (H)

The Ferry Ticket Supply Agreement has a term of three years
commencing from 6 February 2017 and ending on 31 December
2019 (both dates inclusive), subject to subsequent renewal in
compliance with the Listing Rules. During the term of the Ferry
Ticket Supply Agreement, Sun City Gaming Promotion may
from time to time purchase from Sun Travel, and Sun Travel
may from time to time supply to Sun City Gaming Promotion,
the provision of ferry tickets and other complementary services,
subject to the annual caps of HK$8,500,000, HK$10,000,000 and
HK$10,000,000 for each of the three years (commencing from 6
February 2017) during the term.

On 15 May 2017, Sun Travel and Sun City Gaming Promotion
entered into a new hotel accommodation procurement agreement
(the “Revised HAP Agreement”) to amend the Original Annual
Cap and to provide additional annual caps. Taking into account
the development of the business of Sun Travel, the Board
proposed to revise the Original Annual Cap of HK$120,000,000
to HK$420,000,000 for the Initial Term and to provide additional
annual caps of HK$570,000,000 and HK$590,000,000 for the years
ending 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, respectively.

Sun City Gaming Promotion is wholly owned by Mr. Chau, who
is the Chairman of the Company and an executive Director.
Fame Select Limited, which is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau, is
controlling shareholder of the Company interested in approximately
74.87% of the issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly,
Sun City Gaming Promotion is regarded as a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules, and therefore the
transactions contemplated under the Original HAP agreement, the
Ferry Ticket Supply Agreement and the Revised HAP Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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EXERE

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED HERSEBRERS (B)
TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(B) FEREXRS (E)

On 18 February 2018, Suncity Group Management and
Consultancy (Hoi An) Limited (“SGMC (Hoi An)”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the Hoi An South Development Ltd
(“HASD”) entered into the technical services agreement (“Technical
Services Agreement”). The Technical Services Agreement has a
term commencing from 13 February 2018 to the date of completion
of technical and pre-opening services. During the terms of the
Technical Services Agreement, SGMC (Hoi An) shall provide
technical and pre-opening services in relation to the casino in
an integrated resort project in Quang Nam Province, Hoi An,
Vietnam to the HASD, subject to the annual caps of US$2,799,998
(equivalent to approximately HK$21,895,984) and US$799,998
for the years ending 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019,
respectively.

As at the commencement date of the Technical Services
Agreement, HASD is owned as to approximately 34% by Star
Admiral Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. Chau. Fame
Select Limited, which is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau, was a
controlling shareholder of the Company interested in approximately
72.17% of the issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly,
HASD was regarded as a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules, and the transactions contemplated under the
Technical Services Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the Technical Services
Agreement ceased to constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on 28
August 2018, the completion date of the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in and shareholder’s loan owed by Star Admiral
Limited from Suncity International Holdings Limited by a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 5 November 2019, Sun Travel and Sun City Gaming Promotion
entered into (i) an agreement in relation to the supply of hotel
accommodation and related services by Sun City Gaming
Promotion to Sun Travel (the “2019 Hotel Accommodation
Procurement Agreement”), and (i) an agreement in relation to
the supply of travel related products and services including ferry
tickets between Hong Kong and Macau, entertainment tickets/
vouchers, travel packages and other transportation tickets by Sun
Travel to Sun City Gaming Promotion (the “2019 Travel Products
Supply Agreement”), both agreements are with terms of three years
commencing on 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022
(both dates inclusive).

AEHEBERERAT 2019FFERE

MR2018F2A13H + ARG EREIEE
MERD) - ABRAR(EESLZHNER
Al KRR ZE2EAMWEAR)EHoi An
South Development Ltd(THASD]) T2
— o B AR i ([T AR %) -
MR HERBRA2018F2/13
A BEEHEMERRAEIRBETKA
H o REBMRBHENERR - 12
eLMBARELSEEREAS L — @
RAEEBMNIEE N IR LIS RHASDIE
MEMRFEARY - WXEE20184F
12A31H N2019F12A31 B It FE 5 5
2,799,998 7T (1B & 1 #121,895,984
J0) K 799,998 LY FE FIRFTARIR ©

Rz B R W 1B ta B H3 - HASD
MHIBA%BIERERBR QB RAHESR -
BERBEEZERE  BEARRD
AIRELEEHEFL0% @ RARNE—RIE
BBR  #EARBND ETRAL
72.17% ° &L - HASDIR R £ 48 R 4%
BRARBNEEAL  FREL™T
MAIF1AAT - BT ARTS 1% 10 N B
TZRGBRARANFEEERS -

BIE_EMARRNE14AE - Z MRS Wik
ETH#ETT 2R 5 R2018F8A28ATH
BRARBNBERERS - ZHEAK
AR EME R F AR B ER T
RERARIKELEEHR AR E IR
ERERIRE 2 BB TR B -

R2019F 11 A58 » KBk 22 81 K 5 4
BERNETZL)B BARERIERF R
K B iR 105 4 PR B R R T8 R AR R IR % 2 1%
F([2019F BIEEBERGHEHZE]D
Ko (i) B8 K F5 bR 0% M) K [ 300 1 %2 AR it
EREEEER R 2 HE - BER
AEBRBFME REHBEME &
FoRBEEREMRZBEE(2019F
REEmBERZE])  MOBERHEAH
=4 - BI2020F 1 A1 H B E2022F 12
A31BIE(BREEEMA) -



Directors’ Report

EFERE

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

Taking into account the continuous growth of the business of Sun
Travel, the Board proposed annual caps under the 2019 Hotel
Accommodation Procurement Agreement of HK$620,000,000,
HK$650,000,000 and HK$680,000,000 for the three years ending
31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022,
respectively. In addition, under the term of the 2019 Travel Products
Supply Agreement, the transaction will be subject to annual caps
of HK$19,500,000, HK$20,000,000 and HK$21,000,000 for the
three years ending 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2022, respectively.

BERFERERS (&)

(B) HEREXRS (H)

KERKNGIRE XZHBELER  EF
SEEMREE2020F12A8318 « 2021
F12A831H %20229F12A31HIF=
EFE 2 2019F )5 8RB HIEH
EFE LR D AIA620,000,0008 7T
650,000,0005% 7T K 680,000,000/% 7T °
tEAN - IR IR 20196 IR 15 B &b 1 FE %
IR ZR P HEZE2020F 12 A 31
H 2021412 H31H8 &k20224F12 A 31
HE=BEFEHIBRREELRD 5
419,500,000/ 7T ~ 20,000,000/ 7T &
21,000,000/ 7T °

Parties to the transactions

Service provider Service recipient

Nature of transactions

REZANA

Annual cap
for the year ended
31 December 2019

Total amount
for the year ended
31 December 2019

BZE BZE

2019F12831H 2019F12A31H

PR £t FE RS REEZH RENHE LEECEELR LEEZHER
Sun City Gaming Sun Travel Provision of hotel HK$590,000,000 HK$535,159,152
Promotion accommodation and (equivalent to (equivalent to
related services approximately approximately

RMB520,495,000) RMB472,115,000)

ARG ERH N YN yiiidi REVBE TR KBRS 590,000,000/ 7T 535,159,152/ 7T
(HERNARS (FHERHARE

520,495,0007T) 472,115,0007T)

Sun Travel Sun City Gaming Provision of ferry tickets HK$10,000,000 HK$9,700,973
Promotion and other (equivalent to (equivalent to

complementary services approximately approximately

RMBS,822,000) RMB8,558,000)

PNpiiidi ABWETHN REMEREGEERS 10,000,000/ 7T 9,700,973 T
(HHERNARS (HERNARE

8,822,0007T) 8,558,0007T)
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Parties to the transactions (cont’d)

During the year, the above continuing connected transactions were
carried out within their respective annual caps. The independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that during the year,
the above continuing connected transactions were conducted and
entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) according to the agreements governing it on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Full details of the above connected transactions are set out in
the announcements and circulars as aforesaid and are available
in the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.suncitygroup.com.hk.

Details of other related party transactions that do not constitute
connected transaction and/or continuing connected transaction are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EFERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2019, Star Admiral, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company has made advances to Gold Yield Enterprises
Limited (“GYE”), a 50% owned joint venture of the Group, in the
aggregate amount of approximately RMB444,309,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$64,955,799) (the “Advances”) for support the
development of the Hoiana Project. The Advances have been provided
on a pro-rata basis by reference to the percentage of shareholdings
held by the Group in GYE. The Advances are provided in the form of
shareholder’s loans by Star Admiral which are interest free, unsecured
and repayable upon demand. The Advances exceed 8% under the
assets ratio as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, a statement of financial
position of the Company’s affiliated company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) with financial assistance from the Group and the Group’s
attributable interest in the affiliated company as at 31 December 2019
are presented as follows:

EEEH

RERN AARTEREHRERNEEE S
EBHNEERITRIRI L FREME
] o

BiEETRAIZE13.2216 2 BEEE

R2019F12A831H » 2B (KR BIEEEZEW
BARBRATFSROEBRAR(ER] - &
EEBmES0RBRIEZEENR])  HAHOAR
#k444,309,0007T (18 & 7 4764,955,799% 7T)
[ZE8R])  UAXEERELEFREA R
EBNIER - ZEB2RRERAEERSR Y
BB DR AIRME - ZZBFRAEBIU
BREEZFRZHEARE  ARE  BERAREA
BEREE - BIELETREIFE14.07NIEERE
ZEAELRE  ZERHEIBESY

BiIE FTRAIE13.2218  RAREHIBE
MZzARBHMEAR(EERL LMHRANEE
2019F 12 A31 H 2 A B AR &/ A R AN &2 [
EZBB AR ERZ50T

Statement of The Group’s
financial attributable
position interest

BBMRRE AEBELER

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT

Non-current assets EREEE 5,885,597 2,165,885
Current assets MEVEE 1,130,683 384,941
Current liabilities nRBBE 2,711,638 1,067,776
Non-current liabilities FEREBAE 3,471,419 1,208,408
Non-controlling interests FEEAR 283,939 -
Net assets EEFE 549,284 274,642
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BUSINESS REVIEW

“Group Financial Summary” on pages 6 to 7 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 11 to 29 form part of this Directors’
report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with employees are also
discussed under section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 72 to 80.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company
The Group’s business performance in the year under review was
affected by the volatility and uncertainty of macro-economic conditions
in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau, Japan and the Philippines.

The Group’s business is also exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate,
foreign currency and equity price risks. An analysis of the Group’s
financial risk management is provided in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Environmental policies and performance
The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify and
manage environmental impacts attributable from our operational activities
in order to minimise these impacts if possible.

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on our business and operation.

Future development
“Review and Outlook” on pages 26 to 29 forms part of this Directors’
report.

Key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
December 2019, there was no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 28 July
2020 to 31 July 2020 (both dates inclusive) for determining the identity
of the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting (“AGM”). No transfer of shares will be registered during
this period. Shareholders whose name appears on the register of
members of the Company on 27 July 2020 shall be entitled to attend and
vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
unregistered holders of the shares should ensure that all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 27 July 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the
benefit of any of the directors of the Company or an associate.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
For the details of events after the reporting period, please refer to note
49 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

Andes Glacier CPA Limited resigned as auditor of the Company on 20
July 2017, and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was appointed as
auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy arising from the resignation
of Andes Glacier CPA Limited on 16 January 2018. Save as disclosed
above, there was no change in auditor during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will
retire as auditor of the Company upon expiration of its term of office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

8 June 2020
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The Company is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency. The
Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2019 except the following deviations:

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and the chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. Following the resignation of Ms. Yeung So Lai as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief
Executive Officer”) on 31 March 2017, the Company has not appointed
an individual to take up the vacancy of the Chief Executive Officer,
and the roles and functions of the Chief Executive Officer have been
performed by all the executive Directors collectively.

Under code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company should have
formal letters of appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment. The Company did not have formal letters
of appointment for Mr. Chau, Mr. Lo, Mr. Au and Mr. Manuel Assis Da
Silva, executive Directors of the Company. However, Mr. Chau, Mr.
Lo, Mr. Au and Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years in accordance with the Articles.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company and invite
the chairman of the committees to attend. However, due to his other
business commitment, Mr. Chau, the chairman of the Board, did not
attend the annual general meetings held on 14 June 2019.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
Directors and other non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Dr. Wu, the chairman of nomination committee of the
Company and an independent non-executive Director, did not attend
the annual general meeting held on 14 June 2019. Mr. Lo Wai Tung
John, the chairman of remuneration committee of the Company and an
independent non-executive Director, did not attend the extraordinary
general meeting held on 20 December 2019. However, executive
Director(s) were present to enable the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions of Directors and employees (the “Securities Code”) no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. On specific enquiries made,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information of the Company are also subject to compliance with
the Securities Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, of whom four are
executive Directors, and three are independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for decision making and fulfilling its business needs. The
participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure
that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent and has received from each of them the annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the biographies of the Directors are given under the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Details of term of appointment of non-executive Directors are given
under the section “Directors’ Service Contracts and Rotation” in the
Directors’ Report.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group’s
overall strategies and policies; approval of business plans; effectiveness
of internal control and risk management systems and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to executive
Directors and senior management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board
are communicated to the management through executive Directors who
have attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities arising
from corporate activities.
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Board meeting General meeting

Attended/Held Attend/Held
EE2ER BRAE
Directors 2=E HEBITZRE HEBIT2RE
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa B S A 1/11 0/2
Mr. Lo Kai Bong ETREE 8/11 2/2
Mr. Au Chung on John Bl 2 S A 10/11 1/2
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva M B AE 8/11 1/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIY FHITESE :
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen MEFLEAE 9/11 2/2
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick R ENE - 7/11 1/2
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John ERREE 9/11 1/2

Regular Board meetings are attended to by a majority of the Directors in
person or through other electronic means of communication. Besides the
regular Board meetings, special Board meetings are convened from time
to time for the Board to discuss major matters that require the Board’s
timely attention. As some of the special Board meetings are concerned
with the day-to-day management of the Company which often requires
prompt decisions, usually only the executive Directors attend. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, apart from holding Board meetings, the
Board also passed resolutions in writing to approve certain matters.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors were responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report. Saved as disclosed in the Independent
Auditor’s Report under the heading “Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern”, the Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as at 31 December 2019.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Cont’d)

The Directors wish to make the following statement with regard to the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern in the Independent
Auditor’s Report:

The Group incurred a net loss of RMB1,509,272,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2019, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB3,282,328,000
and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets by RMB1,705,376,000.
The Group is dependent on the financial support from Mr. Chau, its
controlling shareholder, including the advances from the controlling
shareholder and related companies and convertible bonds of which
the aggregate carrying amount is approximately RMB3,555,525,000.
These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Taking into account the financial resources of the Group, including the
financial support from Mr. Chau, the Board are of the opinion that the
Group has sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial obligations
as they fall due for the next twelve months from the date of approving
the consolidated financial statements by the board of directors and
accordingly these consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board has undertaken the responsibility for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company including:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

(i) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The systems are implemented
to minimise the risk to which the Group is exposed and is used as a
management tool for the day-to-day operation of business. The system
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Procedures have been designed for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulation.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Cont’d)
The Group has engaged external professional consultant to conduct
risk management and internal audit of the Group. It performs risk-based
audits to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and reports to the Board with its findings and
makes recommendations annually. The Group promotes amongst its
employees cautious handling and dissemination of inside information.
The Group will also review its internal control mechanism includes
information flow and reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements,
disclosure procedures and staff training arrangements, etc.. During
the year, the Group has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the implemented system and procedures, including areas covering
financial, operational, compliance and risk management function and
a review to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budgets of the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions. The Company considers the risk
management and internal control systems effective and adequate.

In addition, the Group established a risk management committee (the
“Risk Management Committee”) to develop risk management system and
practice, and monitor the anti-money laundering (the “AML”) compliance
and business affairs on casino operations and other gambling related
business units of the Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates. The Risk
Management Committee acts as an oversight committee on AML
matters and risk management of the Group.

The member of the Risk Management Committee currently consists of
Mr. Lo, Mr. Au, Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva, Mr. Tou, Dr. Wu and Mr. Lo
Wai Tung John. Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva acts as the chairman of the
Risk Management Committee.

During the year, the Group engaged an international audit firm as the
Group’s internal control adviser to provide consultation on the design
and implementation of AML internal control policies and operation
procedures in relation to casino operations of the Company, its
subsidiaries and affiliates.

CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chau is the chairman of the Company. The chairman’s responsibility
is to oversee the functioning of the Board and the strategies and policies
of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility is to monitor
the daily operation and management of the Company. The Company
has not appointed any person to replace Ms. Yeung So Lai as the Chief
Executive Officer following her resignation with effect from 31 March
2017.

AEHEBERERAT 2019FFERE

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

R B T B e P B B 4 (A
AEHDZRBIIBEXBRETARENE
REERAMEZ - ZBERETERRRK
Bz LWHEAEERBREERAIEER
AN YEBFAEFERHFHEERK
EHER - ASEZBEEZEZERER
NBEBEE - REBE K ERNE AP EER
B BREMABRERBRE - RELH -
BRERFRETHEILHES - RFA - K&
EEFEAERN RS LIZEFOBERIE - &
EWG K ARLEREERESTSE
g WRHEAERER - BTERE - HlR
BUAREE  RAEBEZEMBERBENTE
HEARM - ARARR RREENRAZD
ERRGEMARHA -

o AEBEERYRBREEZER(RERE
BLZEg)) U ERREERREER X
ERRABZE(RABEDAREEUARAEAR
Al EMBRBREE AR ZIRESEER
HMBEHEEBEMCEXBEE - ARE
BEZBefAREZRAREEEMNARE
BEEEEZERZAG -

REREEZEEeXNBEBAMBRESLE Bt
£ EXEESEE ML BT REAR
TE -MBXELTESREREEZES X
FE o

REARN AEEBZE-RBEREZBEAF AR
SENMETRER - URARE - KB
NEIREE AR RS S ERBRITRE
WEBE IR R BB Fr 2 iRt MR EIR M

UV

K o

FERITHAR

BAEERRRBERE B EAREEE
EFerEENRAEEZ KB REBE - 1TK
REBEERARNAZHEEEREE - ¥
BERBLZTH2017F3A31HRBETE - AR
RV AZRIEBAMATUEREGEEBELTES
TTBURE, ©



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(Cont’d)

The Company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate to
assume the role as Chief Executive Officer and further announcement in
this regard will be made as and when appropriate. In the meantime, the
former role and responsibility of Ms. Yeung So Lai as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company have been performed by all the executive
Directors collectively.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction training so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the Group’s
business and of his/her duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices. In addition, the Company has been
encouraging the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and corporate governance practices organised
by professional bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All directors are
requested to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and refresh their knowledge and skills during the year.
Such professional development was completed either by way of
attending briefings, conference, forum, courses and seminars and self-
reading which are relevant to the business or directors duties.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Ng Wing Ching (“Mr.
Ng”), a member of HKICPA. The company secretary assists the Board
by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board policy
and procedures are followed. Mr. Ng has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) is responsible for ensuring that the Company has formal and
transparent procedures for developing and overseeing its policies on the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The committee’s
authorities and duties are set out in written terms of reference.

2 Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2019 for reviewing the remuneration of Directors.
Members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each
member are set out below:
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Remuneration Committee members Attend/Held
FMEESERE HE BT
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John (Chairman) EHREEEE) 2/2
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen HEF A 2/2
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick iR ENE £ 1/2

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions include:

(i)  to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and structure
for all the remuneration of Directors;

(i) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the executive
Directors, and to make recommendations on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors for the Board’s approval; and

(i) to review and propose remuneration for executive Directors by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time.

The summary of work of the Remuneration Committee during the
financial year: reviewed the Company’s policy and structure for all the
remuneration of Directors with reference to the Company’s corporate
goals, prevailing market rate and duties and responsibilities with the
Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) is responsible to make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the Board’s
succession. The Nomination Committee’s authorities and duties are set
out in written terms of reference.

1 Nomination Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31
December 2019 for assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; considering the re-election of Directors;
reviewing the composition of the Board. Members of the Nomination
Committee and the attendance of each member are set out below:

REZES
ARRlzREZREG(RREZBEDAENE
TEELEFSHTEENETSRLHEES
BR-ERZBEZEBMBEINEER
REHE -

B EESRHEE019F12A31H ILEEE
T1ReE  UWTEBIIFRTES 2B
M EZEEREET REHESIHEN - 2
FEEERERAELESZNEEHINMT ¢

Nomination Committee members Attend/Held
REZEERKE HE BT
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick (Chairman) Rk eI SN E ) 0/1
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen MHEFTE 1/1
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John ERREE 11

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions include:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommmendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer; and

(v) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The summary of work of the Nomination Committee during the financial
year: reviewed and evaluated the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy, assessed independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and reviewed and
recommended the re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the general
meetings of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will
also take into consideration its own business model and specific needs
from time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to set
the measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time. The Nomination Committee will also review the Board
Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness from time to
time.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) is mainly
responsible for considering all relationships between the Company
and the external auditor (including the provision of non-audit services),
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and issues
arising from the audit, and reviewing the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

2 Audit Committee meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2019. Each Audit Committee meeting has been supplied with
necessary financial information of the Group for members to consider,
review and access significant issues arising from the work conducted.
Attendance of the each member are set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

REZEE (@)

REZBENAMBFEN THERL : &
RAMEESNRE  RENEKR(BER
e~ AN MR ER) A R AR BRI KR ES
FHEB Y IFMITEFH B A RRF R A
RABRRGRETESTNERZTLIREE

EFTERESTBE
EXEECRMEFTENEZTEHR(ESFS
REZTTERR] - EHIEHEZEKRES
L% - ARRMBEEGEEARS
TR RERARBIKREBRRAFEER
REXE ARAEEZREZHERE  B#FE
TRUEBIEMER - F& - ERBEE
B BERER - BRI ANBERBES U
EEERBEEFENBZ T - ARATHT
BEEBEAGNEBRENFERE - UE
TEFEMREMEK -

REZBEH IR RLENETATZH
EAGERBRUATZESTENEZ TILK
R-REZBEETHENEFEXNEZ LI

BERBIERAME) - BRETKFEER -
EREES
ARRlzBREER(ERZEENIEAR

Z AR B NS BN (BRI AT IR
BIRZAARE  EEARRMHREZ T
EUMBAEEZHE  URBHAKEZ
Jee\ B 3 K% ) B B R AR o

ERLZEBEREE2019F12A31H L FEE
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[:E23
Audit Committee members Attend/Held
EREZEEERE HiE BT
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen (Chairman) MEFLEE(FEE) 2/2
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick LiEGENE S 1/2
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EAREE 2/2

AEHEBERERAT 2019FFERE



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions include:

() to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Company’s external auditor, and
to evaluate their independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process;

(i) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial statements,
reports and accounts of the Company, and to review significant and
judgemental financial reporting issues contained therein;

(i~ to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems; and

(iv) to discuss with the management the risk management and
internal control systems, and to ensure that the management
has discharged its duties and responsibilities in implementing an
effective internal control system.

The summary of work of the Audit Committee during the financial year:
reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
and for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019, reviewed
and discussed the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems, and made recommendations with respect to
the reappointment of the Company’s external auditor, and evaluated the
independence and objectivity of the Company’s external auditor.

The Group’s 2019 interim and annual reports have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that such reports were
prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements. For the 2019 annual report, the Audit Committee met
with the external auditor to discuss auditing, internal control, statutory
compliance and financial reporting matters before recommending it
to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee also monitored the
Company’s progress in implementing the code provisions on the CG
Code as required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION BT <
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees paid/payable to & E2019F12 31 B L FE » Sz &AI AR
auditor in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided by  EEIREAZBRE R IEZERE M

the auditor to the Group were as follows: BN FREEMNEROT ¢
2019 2018
Nature of services HK$’000 HK$'000
RIS HE FHxT FHET
Audit services ZE R
- Current year —KEE 4,950 3,800
Non-Audit services IERZ B AR TS
(mainly for advisory and other reporting (FZRREM R H 526
review services) AR 7%) 5,768 3,600
10,718 7,400
DIVIDEND POLICY R EBE

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Company has 1R M ¥EATE 2 TFREXEEA5E K
adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). This Dividend Policy R FIEHMREBE ([IREKE]) - RIREHK
aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends R & FE&H VAR RREIR IRk B E R
to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its ~F(2# R KSR ) HEETSRATHEFTE
profits, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from profits HIEEMEBHETBERTF AR TR BIELKR L
which the Board determine is no longer needed, as dividends to the — BF#EEAHREIKRIES| -

shareholders of the Company.

In deciding whether to propose or declare a dividend and in determining MR FEEEHFXSTEKBREALEBETERE S
the dividend amount and means of payments, the Board shall take ZERIKFHAE  EEe€ZENREEA(HT
into account, among others: (i) general business conditions and other  B3&) : ()& 82 E MBI LAl fE ¥ A D a) 7%
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business of EEFERNEMRAINEE : (\ANEBFERIR
the Company; (i) the financial performance and position of the Group; KAk © (i) ANEE R IEE AR ¢ (VAR E
(iii) the liquidity position of the Group; (iv) the capital and debt level of EIEAR REMKF : WAREBFBHERELE
the Group; (v) the expected capital requirements and future expansion  REIEETE] : VISETE REEREH ¢ (vi)ANE
plans of the Group; (vi) statutory and regulatory restrictions; (vii) M A% B sk AR A 5 i B A Bl R AN A AR AT A%
contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the Group to the B HI& LIBRE| : R(VilEEE Al R BHEEHN
shareholders or by the subsidiaries of the Company to the Company; EfhHZx -

and (viii) other factors the Board may deem relevant.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables shareholders and investors to make
a properly informed investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the Company at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.suncitygroup.com.hk, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Articles affecting its operations and reporting
practices.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of the Company, extraordinary
general meetings (the “EGM”) of the Company shall be convened on
the requisition of any one or more shareholder(s) (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and shall be entitled to reimbursement
of all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s).

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS (Cont’d)

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can be
sent in writing to the Board or the company secretary of the Company at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders through
AGMs or EGMs, and encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered shareholders
of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed
with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be
present at the meeting should fill out the form and return the same to the
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company,
SO as to appoint a representative, another shareholder or the chairman
of the meeting as their proxy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The objective of this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report is to highlight the Group’s ESG performance for the purpose of
assisting all stakeholders in understanding the Group’s ESG concepts
and practices in achieving sustainable development for the future.

The Report complies with the disclosure requirements set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing
Rules. An assessment on the applicability and materiality of the relevant
key performance indicators (“KPIs”) under the ESG Reporting Guide had
been conducted.

GOVERNANCE ON ESG ASPECTS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
Group’s ESG-related risks, and ensuring that appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems are in place. Our
management are delegated the responsibility of coordinating the
implementation of the Group’s environment, employment and service
quality assurance policies.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Board leads and provides direction to management of the Group
(“Management”) by instituting ESG policies and initiatives, supervising
their implementation and monitoring ESG performance. The Board
continues to explore ways to further strengthen the ESG governance
of the Group. The Board reviews ESG affairs regularly, including
environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practices, and community investment, and implements appropriate
measures to enhance the ESG performance of the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNICATION
The Management had given due consideration in accessing and
addressing the definition and concerns of the stakeholders of the
Group. Stakeholder assessment and engagement refer to the process
by which the Group involves parties who may be affected by the
decisions it makes or can influence the implementation of its decisions.
In the course of the businesses the Management had: set out the full
spectrum of stakeholders by consulting various departments within the
Group; leverage on the on-going communication channels and day-to-
day interactions to engage these stakeholders; and conducted an in-
depth assessment of the influence and dependency of each of these
stakeholder groups. The Company’s stakeholders can categorically be
divided into customers, suppliers, employees and shareholders.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OUR ENVIRONMENT

As a company that focus on providing services, the Group and its daily
operations generate minor impacts on the natural environment. The
Group does not produce sewage, exhaust gas and hazardous waste
in day-to-day operations. Indirect environmental impacts generated
by the Group mainly includes following activities: 1) consumption of
gasoline (for Group-owned vehicles) and purchased electricity; and 2)
business air travel. Their corresponding emissions were calculated and
presented within following sub-sections. The Group does not involve in
consumption of packaging materials. Non-hazardous waste generated
include office paper and incoming packaging materials.

During the reporting period, the Group did not note any cases of material
non-compliance relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge
into water and land, and the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Emissions

During the financial year ended 2019, the operations of the Group do not
cause any material emissions or pollutions. However, a certain degree of
emissions, most of which are administrative offices based, are produced.

There were no direct on-site air emissions. Indirect air emissions,
including both greenhouse gas (“GHG”) and non-GHG were generated
from the consumption of gasoline for group vehicle, GHG emissions were
also generated from the consumption electricity in office operations and
business air travel. Motor vehicles used for the daily business operations
were operated on unleaded petroleum.
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Emission intensity

(per million
Unit Emissions RMB revenue)
HHaE
(BEER
By EHE AREIKA)
Air pollutant emissions ERTREAY
nitrogen oxides (“NO,”) ARat?(NO,J) g5 5,257 8.6
sulphur oxides (“SO,”) wmeae? (SO, g5 228 0.4
respiratory suspended particles AR A F R ([RSP))
(“RSP”) g® 387 0.6
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) BEREHK
emissions
Scope 1 — Emissions from mobile  #3E— - BT B
transportation kg AT 42,009 69
Scope 2 — Indirect emissions from  &E - -BAEHZ
purchased electricity BEEZ3730 kg AT 1,992,866 3,257
Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions ~ #3E = - EAth M EZHER kg AfT 75,016 123
Total GHG emissions R EREH kg AT 2,109,891 3,449
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For the year ended 2019, the operation of the Group did not produce
any hazardous waste. and insignificant amount of non-hazardous waste
which are mainly the domestic garbage and duplex printed paper.
The Group has implemented following schemes to reduce electricity
consumption:

encourage duplex printing and reuse of single-sided printed paper;

minimise the use of motor vehicles by having better route plans;

idle electrical appliances are switched off; and

regular maintenance and repair for electrical appliances to lower
energy waste.

Use of resources

The Group has implemented internal policies to minimise the impact
of business activities on the environment and support environmental-
protection initiatives. The Group actively implemented measures to
reduce carbon emission and water usage in our business operations.
Since no construction work had been conducted during the year, the
policy focus was placed on the administrative offices. Measures were
introduced to minimising the use of paper by encouraging double
side printing and paper recycling. The Group also promote paperless
environment by encouraging the use of electronic copy for the document
instead of printed hard copy.

The following consumption data and consumption intensity were
recorded in the year ended 31 December 2019:

RBZE2019FIEFE - AEBEZEEKREA
EEEMNBEZEREEY  URBETEAZE
EREEY  T2ERREURLE@MITHNR
e AEECEMUATHEIBARDE N
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EHIRE RAEEER AR RERIR o

BERERA

AEEEERANIMEER  URERDERBRE
BURBEIFE  UXHREEE - A&E
BIRHETHERE - ORDRMEEEES 2K
BERRAKE - RFAREBERGHETEE
T BREMBBETBHRAEL - A&E
BEolAEREERS AR  REE@MITE R
MREUL - REE RS EER X ZE T &
AMIEEENAR - (R EARRIR

REZE2019F 12831 A I FEFAL k2 7 A
FREEFERAENT :

Consumption intensity

Unit Consumption (per million RMB revenue)
FER=E

Use of resources EREHR By EE (BEERTARBRA)
2019 2018 2019 2018
Unleaded petrol S L7 15,513 27,506 25 35
Electricity A% kWh F ELEF 2,300,335 2,327,247 3,760 2,936
Water =PI Tonne AME 39,902 43,978 65 55
Paper usage R kg AT 1,925 1,395 3 2
Packing materials BEYE kg AT Nil £ Nil £ Nil & Nil £

The objective of conservation of energy consumption and reduction of DR B B

energy waste is always upheld by staff members of the Group.
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Water conservation

Water consumption of the Group is entirely generated from domestic
usage in the office building, hence no issues related to sourcing water is
noted. Since the main source of waste water came from domestic use,
the overall level of water pollution was relatively low.

Environment and natural resources

Efficient management of environmental and natural resources reduces
operational costs and benefits the environment. Even though the Group’s
operations do not generate significant impact to the environment, nor
involve direct use of natural resources, we acknowledge the indirect
environmental impacts caused by our businesses.

The Group continues to review the environmental impact of its operations
and make use of best practices across their functions and to develop
monitoring of resources consumption data and implementing better
performance strategies as to enhance the contributions to environmental
sustainability through good environmental practices. The Group does not
ignore the opportunity to contribute to sustainability at the office space,
and the Group enhances environmental awareness of the employees
through various means of internal communications.

OUR EMPLOYEES

Employment and labour practices

The Group values employees as an intricate and vital part of the Group,
and thus the Group establishes and maintains fair and comprehensive
employment policies and practices to ensure the compliance with all
relevant ethical and regulatory standards, by, for example, providing
equal opportunity and career development to all our employees. The
Group strictly complied with the laws, regulations and policies regarding
employment benefits across different jurisdictions, including, for example,
the social security in the PRC and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance in Hong Kong.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has 152 full time
employees. The gender ratio between male and female was about 1:1.
The graphs below show the workforce distribution by age group and
geographical regions:

Age Group
FHe4a R
1%

211040
21E408%
4110 60
41E605%
61 or above
615K A L

During the reporting period, the Group did not aware of any material
non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
discriminations and other benefits and welfare.

The Group strive to maintain employee turnover rate at an acceptable
level so as to facilitate accumulation of professional skills and experience.
During the reporting period, the Group’s employee turnover rate was
about 4.8%.

Health and safety

Although the health and safety related risks with office administrative
work is relatively lower than that of the construction sites, the Group
strives to provide and maintain a safe and healthy workplace for all
employees. One of the measures includes the placement of safety
guides and healthcare tips in observable areas for our staff. Besides,
regular and constant safety training is crucial to the cultivation of safety
awareness. The efforts in safety and health have been paid off and the
Group aims to maintain the record of work-related injury, loss or fatality
at a low record in upcoming years.

HZE2019F12A31HILFE - AEBEHE
1528 2BEES - Btk k11 TEHE
NE B FH AR RIIBE D

Region
IR E
11%
- PRC
FE
= Macau
B
HK
B

RBEHEA - NEBREANTEFNBEHE
B E BEREAN - TERHE - KER
B FEHE  ZHEM  BBEREMENZ
BRTARBER -

AEEHNBREERREER VA EZK
FooRMEEEREMEERZZE - R
EHEA - ARBZREEREELN/4.8% -

RERZE

HZETHMEL  BARAETHIEZR
FEZ2HBERRRE  BEXEENRNR
AREBERHYAR —BAL2kEFE2T
1EGRT - HP —RERREERERULE
§ol R EEIRIREE - o EHREZ
ZERIRABERLERIHTVER - AKE
LR EHRBEMEZESNLEAE  BER
RARBFERFEAIBTREKRBR KL

2019 2018
Occupational safety statistics BEZ2HL 20194 20184
Number of work-related fatal accidents AT THT Nil & Nil &
Number of work-related injuries ATIZEET 1 Nil &
Number of lost days due to work injury AT EmiEk s TIERE 87 Nil &=
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The Group make compensation to the injured staff during the period
that is not suitable for work. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with the laws
and regulations relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Development and training

The Group places a strong emphasis on staff development. The Group
provides timely induction programs to new recruits, to introduce the
Group’s history and development, corporate culture, organisational
structure, the Company’s rules system, office operation platform,
workflow and the Company’s projects, so that new employees can
be soon familiar with the Group’s operation and thus improve their
efficiency. Regular trainings are provided to update knowledge of our
staff from time to time and where deemed necessary. The Group also
encourages the employees to identify their own personal objectives for
development, allowing them to develop according to their own needs
and pace.

To ensure every employee in different sectors of the Group receive
sufficient training, training had been divided into 4 main streams:

e communication;

e customer services,

e marketing; and

e management and leadership.

Training details of staff for the year ended 31 December 2019:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERS

Labour standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of forced and child labour. The
Group complies with relevant regulations and laws to safeguard the
rights of our employees, and will not tolerate labour exploitation. During
the recruitment process, we verify the age of applicants and the practice
is extended to the workers hired by our sub-contractors. The Group
prevents hiring child labour by conducting an identification check of every
new employee. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
did not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding child labour and forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

The Group tends to maintain long term relationship with its suppliers for
ensuring a stable supply for services provided by the Group. We also
require our suppliers to monitor their sustainability performance and
acting responsibly in line with our environmental protection policies.

When selecting suppliers and contractors, the Group seeks to balance
various factors to minimise the potential risks brought by cooperation
with suppliers and ensure the stability of service and product quality and
compliance of regulations. In order to realise effective risk management,
the Group has formulated standardized tendering procedures to avoid
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that may
occur during the tendering process. Meanwhile, the Group also requires
its staff to stay alert and handle properly conflicts of interest that may
be resulted from or caused by the process. The Group’s businesses
are dispersed across multiple regions. Priorities will be given to local
suppliers in a hope to promote local economic development and reduce
carbon footprints by shortening the distance of transportation.

Product responsibility

The Group aims to achieve the highest possible standard with the
services provided. The Group pays high attention to the quality and has
put quality as its first priority to ensure customer satisfaction in terms of
our services. During the year, the Group did not receive any significant
complaints related to the services provided.

Consumer data protection and privacy

Meanwhile, the Group also requires its staff to comply with the
regulations in relation to collecting, holding, processing, disclosure and
use of personal data where it operates. Employees shall respect privacy
and keep confidential the personal data obtained during the business
process in accordance with the relevant confidential requirement as set
out in internal policies to protect the privacy of customers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to
product responsibility, customer data protection and advertising relating
to the services provided.

Anti-Corruption

The Group has implemented internal policies and guidelines to comply
with applicable laws on anti-bribery and anticorruption for the respective
jurisdictions the Group has operations in. These measures are subject to
regular review and update to ensure their effectiveness to strengthen the
internal controls and compliance regime of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliances relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering according to the Penal Code of Macau, the “Anti-Unfair
Competition Law” of the PRC, the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” and
the “Anti-Money Laundering and Counter Terrorist Finance Ordinance” of
Hong Kong.

COMMUNITY

Community participation

The Group regards promoting well-being and prosperity for the region
as its responsibility. To this end, it has proactively engaged in diversified
community activities and developed community investment strategies to
cope with the development needs of the local community, while actively
contributing to society.

During the year end 31 December 2019, the Group sponsored the
staff in Hong Kong to participate the Dress Causal Day organized by
the Community Chest. The Group encourages employees to seek
opportunities, participate more in charity work in the future and get
involved in various community programs, such as community health
initiatives, sports, cultural activities, volunteer work and education.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERS

In HASD, the Group’s joint venture integrated resort development
company in Vietnam, founded The Hoiana Cares Foundation (“Hoiana
Cares”) in 2018. Hoiana Cares aims to support the local Viethamese
community in the field of education, health care, environmental
protection, children, elderly and disabled care and other charitable
activities with the purpose of improving the quality of life of the local
people. Some of the activities organised by Hoiana Cares in 2019
includes: organising the Inauguration of Quang Nam Hoiana Tourism
Vocational Training Center to offer vocational training courses to locals;
Donating 608 students’ tables and chairs to local secondary schools and
offering scholarships to local students; Sponsoring medical equipment
for new-borns to local hospitals; Sponsoring COV Cycling Poverty that
helps to fundraise for children living in poverty in Vietham; and, organising
clothing donation to orphaned and disabled children etc. to name a few.
Hoiana Cares will continue to support the local community.

AEBRBEZAERAERNBAELR
AIHASD 20184 A 2 The Hoiana Cares
Foundation([Hoiana CaresJ) ° Hoiana Cares&
EXHUEEEEZHE BE - RR
RE REMBEATHEEUANREMGES
EE) U EEHER ZEEE X © Hoiana
Caresi2019F 4048~ EB 2 VE BN 245 « AKX
VEBESREFIREBREEIPLUEE
AR R FIERE - ME A 24858608
EBELAERMAEHMSELREHEES B
BEERMEREERRH  BEPBERE
BHEEEEH)(COV Cycling Poverty) LA E Bhi
MERTEER  REAZANZEEERE
BEXY 2 EES - Hoiana Caresi§ # 48 X +5
E it EERE o

The Inauguration of Quang Nam Hoiana
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Sponsoring COV Cycling Poverty that helps to
fundraise for children living in poverty in Vietnam
EB) MM 7 E BB EEE(COV Cycling Poverty)
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUNCITY GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Suncity Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 272, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, certain
bank accounts with restricted bank deposits of the Group amounting
to RMB22,969,000 were frozen by the relevant local bureau in the
People’s Republic of China (the “Frozen Bank Accounts”). Management
was unable to provide sufficient information from the relevant local
bureau or banks in relation to the Frozen Bank Accounts. There were no
alternative audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves
whether the balances of the Frozen Bank Accounts were free from
material misstatement or any potential liabilities should be recognised.
Any adjustments found necessary may have an effect on the restricted
bank deposits as at 31 December 2019, the loss and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended, as well as the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHERE

=ED

BABHEREZERERATARRZ
BARBE®RE
(RELSHEFMA A ERAF)

REBER

TAZEED A TR H M) E BN E0E
2T2ERKGWEBEZEREBRARTERRD R
EMBAR(RBIEEE]) 2 REMEHRE
EfRAER2019F12 A31H 2446 M5k
NMEREHEZHIEFEZGAEEREME
ARER  SEAESEHRMEERETE
* URBEVBHRENT  2EEXESS
BERE -

BMRE  BEMAREAHZENREEREE]
— M ERE 2 BESEN  RAMBRE
EREEESHMAS(HESHAMAE)E
2 BAMIEREEN(HBET RS %R
BEEMAFHRE BEEMR2019F12 A 31
Az BRAREHEZALEFEZLR
AUBRBNGEARERE YD BRES
NGB 2 WEREZL BRE -

RBEEREE

WU A M HRRWF26ATHEE X BEEH
GFEXRBEITTFRARE22,069,0007T2 %
FIRITE O WA E AR LA E 35 PT
REE((WREARTAO)) - EEEARERER
SRR E PP kRIT A R ARITAO
ZER - RPAREETEMEREFINET
WRBERTPOAZEHRRAET I REAKRE
R ECEREIMNBEEE ERELE
ZAERAREEUEN2019F12A31B 2 X R
HIERTTHER - EBESEEHEZBLEFEZES
BRRERE  UREAMBEHRER ZHEH
BEEEKTE -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3% B A R

Basis for Qualified Opinion (Cont’d)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of RMB1,509,272,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December
2019, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB3,282,328,000 and total liabilities exceeded its total assets by
RMB1,705,376,000. As stated in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is dependent on the financial support from
its controlling shareholder for the next twelve months from the date
of approving the consolidated financial statements by the board of
directors, including the advances from the controlling shareholder
and related companies and convertible bonds of which the aggregate
carrying amount is approximately RMB3,555,525,000. If the financial
support was not available, the Group may not be able to satisfy its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)
BREXEEE)

Key audit matter

BEEXER

Valuation of investment properties

REYERZIGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance in the
context of the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
combined with the significance of the estimates and the level
of judgement involved.
BAEHREMEZHEBNRBREZEE BR B
SEGEMBMRERIERNN - EBRZEGF 2ERMN
K K 2 FIET KT o

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties were
assessed by management based on independent valuation
prepared by an independent valuer (“Valuer”).
EEBEREMEZ AR EHERERB M GERM(HE
BD D #ETT 2 B ERTAE o

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties
is inherently subjective due to the estimates used in
determining the fair values of the property, such as rental
income of the property derived from the existing tenancy
with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of
the tenancy which are then capitalised into the value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate.
ERECREMEZHERELRTE  ARAREEY
EonEzZERE  AINBRAEHEANELEZYFRES W
A DEEFREHNZERRNES  NERBEENER
fEEFHERMEREE -

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of the Group’s investment
properties amounted to RMB1,601,400,000 as at 31
December 2019.

WMERE M WMARM T 16PTIKEE - R2019F12A31H &
SEZREWEREEE ARK1,601,400,0007T °
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFNERNIEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties included:

ZMBARREME[BEIRFRE

e  Assessing the competence, experience, qualifications
and independence of the Valuer;
o FHMEL{ERIZEEN - KB BRRBIIE

e  Reviewing the valuation reports for the investment
properties valued by the Valuer in the current year;

o TEHRBFERMEMMAZZIREMEMEGEZ
HERS

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuer’s
valuation approach to assess if it meets the
requirement of HKFRSS;

o FMhZMEEMZMEREZEAENTHER
BBEBUBRELR 2 ER

T

o Engaging our internal valuation expert to assess the
reasonableness of key assumptions and key data
inputs used in the valuation, such as rental income of
the properties; and

o ZEZMOABGEZHKUTEGEENBZ@RR
EREARWABBE BN flINZEMEZLES
WA &

e  Evaluating whether disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements relating to the valuation of
investment properties are in accordance with
HKFRSs.

o HAGAVBBRBAREMEMEZIRERST
BEBUERELER -
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)
BREXEEE)

Key audit matter

HREZER

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate

BB &R AR 2 R B

We identified the impairment assessment of interest in
Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (“SA”), an associate of the
Group which is engaged in the gaming and hotel operations
in the Russian Federation, as a key audit matter due to
the estimation uncertainty and significant management
judgement involved in the impairment assessment of interest
in SA and its significance to the consolidated financial
statements.

BMEH ESERNRENMBARSEYRBEEEE S —
e AR AERAER QB (TS ]) s 2 R E =T b
ARBEEZEIE  BASNH#ER ZRE HYRAFTZ
THAMEAEREAEEEHE  BUGEHMBERIBE
= o

The impairment of interest in SA is determined based on the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use
with the assistance from an independent and professional
qualified valuer, which is based on the cash flow forecast
prepared by the management of the Group. The impairment
model is sensitive to changes in the key assumptions
including growth rates, discount rate and the forecast
performance based on the management’s view of future
business prospects.

AR BENERARERLEEX TN ERBIEXSE
BLERZE) - RIE EEEEEERECRSRESTEA
Mtz ERABECRREETE - MERE S XBRMRE
ZEPTE  BEERE MREEREREEBHRKRE
SRR PIETRR 2 R3R o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRNERNIEEEARERSE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of interest in an associate included:
BMBEER —EEE R RER 2 REN L BT

e  Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
bases and assumptions used in relation to the value
in use calculation prepared by an independent valuer
engaged by and reported to the Group;

s EHRHEEREENRAHEA E5EZENNR H£E
BRECBIGEMER  CREEFEMAZER
RMRF2 TR

o Evaluating the independent valuer’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;
B HERZKE « BB REEIM

o Determining the recoverable amount of SA by
comparing the value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal;
FRNBEREERAAERHERAEEINTTZ
A E &R

e  Checking the mathematical accuracy of the value in
use calculation;

s REFREEFEZEMERELE

e Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs and
assumptions used by management in estimations of
value in use, including growth rates, discount rate and
the forecast performance used by the management
with reference to the historical performance;

e KBERCLRBANEEEEMEABEMAZE
ZHABBRBREELAE  DREREEEMA 2
RE - BEBREXRIEBIRER
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

BREZSEE)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BREZBR BMNEZNAEEEREXSE

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate (Cont’d)

R—[EH &2 Al as Bl (E A ()

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying value of the Group’s ®  Involving our internal valuation specialists to review

interest in SA was RMB495,086,000. Details relating to and assess whether the valuation model used by the
the Group’s interest in SA and key sources of estimation independent valuer was appropriate and whether the
uncertainty are set out in notes 19 and 5 to the consolidated key assumptions, including discount rate, used in the
financial statements respectively. valuation model were reasonable; and
20195124318 » AEERY AR REAER/RARE o  ZERMAORIBGEEZRE R R GBI ER T
495,086,0007T ° A MR K BRI T #5012 715 R fhiat TF8 RAzEEENREESHE  UREEBEER A B
AR R 2 SRR D RIE AR E I WK 19/KS © BREFURREF)ZEAE R

o Performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs
to evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the
calculations of the recoverable amounts of the
associate and assessing the sufficiency of provision
for impairment loss made against interest in an
associate by comparing the recoverable amounts of
the associate against carrying amount of the interest
in an associate.

o ETHRBMABIRZGERESMN - AT HEEE S
NAIAHEESEAEZTERE - WE BB L
AR O & 78 B N R s BREE - RT (A ER
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

HER

BERAEEHHEMENAS - HUENBR
FHPRENER  BETREKSHBRE
RAZBENRE

BMEGEEVBEREANBERTIREEME
B ARMAE AR EREAEANEZS

N
af ©

AEMHEREEMBHRRNEZMNE  HMEA
EHEAMEN  YRAKEEEMLEHESD
HGAMBHRRARMNETZBIETESH
THREEEAT —BIABURELRE - W5
ERBMETOIE  RAORBSZEBEH
FHEEARERL - AIRMARESZEE -
AL T E B AR A R E -

EENMERAAEAHRSUBEHERN
BfE
BERAEZEARBEASMAERME
FRAMBREENRETRERRGRIHRER
ERBEAVBRER  ASHELHEEM
RINRR - MEBEERAR/LBEHABE
B - AEHRAVBBRROBRIFEARK
PR ME RN BB ARERIL

REHGAMBHRERE  EFAEFME &
SENFEL SR BEGWER) BREEL
EHRMANEE  YERSFELESTEERR
FEEHE BEEEBRIKLERE  FK
2 SN SR EAD AT 1T YR )

HHEAREARREE
=

BEREM I RRE



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kai Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEERkAMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F12 A31 B L EE

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR®T T ARBT T
Revenue 'ON
— Contracts with customers - BPAY 572,269 747,595
- Leases -HE 39,558 45,048
Total revenue BN 6 611,827 792,643
Cost of sales $HE AR (511,909) (555,967)
Gross profit EF 99,918 236,676
Other income, gains and losses B - Was K EE 7 (82,318) (216,514)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (7,648) (7,044)
Administrative expenses TRER (159,850) (103,497)
Other operating expenses HEhEEEA (3,591) (4,538)
Change in fair value of investment WEMEZ AR BEEE
properties 16 (112,800) (10,700)
Change in fair value of financial assets BEARBEF ARG eRMEE
at fair value through profit or loss Z AR EEE 20,681 1,011
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBA Rz 40 9,245 =
Loss on deemed partial disposal of RIEEH HE R —fEEE AR
equity interest of an associate & 2 18 19 (60,442) -
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries 18/ EME A 7 2 5B 39(b) (151,951) =
Impairment on interest in an associate R—REEE R R 2 RE 19 (197,728) =
Change in fair value of a convertible bond  AI I E# 2 A (B S 34(a) - 73,936
Change in fair value of derivative MEeRIACZ ARBEEZS
financial instruments 34 (521,746) (1,189,505)
Reversal of provisions for potential claims /&£ (& B # # [ 29 - 19,518
Provision for litigation PLEFAA BEE 30 (27,800) =
Share of profit (loss) of associates FE (LB N =) A (B518) 19 5,604 (1,047)
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—RH&&E R REE 20 (82,165) (14,896)
Finance costs B AR 8 (222,462) (161,412)
Loss before taxation FrBi AT 18 9 (1,495,053) (1,378,012
Income tax expenses iR X 11 (14,219) (80,886)
Loss for the year AEEFHE (1,509,272) (1,458,898)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEBERKAMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z%E2019F 1231 B L F[E

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®T T ARETT
Other comprehensive income: Hih2mEWKA :
ltems that may be reclassified BBk EN D EE B s
subsequently to profit or loss: EA -
Exchange differences on translating MEBINEBMES 2
foreign operations EHER 45,080 4,943
Share of other comprehensive income EE—EeER 7 R—ME
of a joint venture and an associate, B AR EMmEEA -
net of related income tax MR BEEFTEN 462 705
Total comprehensive expense FAEHEMXAE
for the year (1,463,730) (1,453,250)
Loss for the year attributable to: NTATELEERFEEESE
— Owners of the Company - ARRHEEA (1,484,266) (1,458,541)
- Non-controlling interests - IR (25,006) (357)
(1,509,272) (1,458,898)
Total comprehensive expense DTFATELAEAFERE
for the year attributable to: M4
— Owners of the Company . N/NCIEZ ZS DN (1,439,585) (1,452,893)
- Non-controlling interests - SRR (24,145) (357)
(1,463,730) (1,453,250)
Loss per share: SREE
— Basic (RMB cents) - ERARED) 13 (22.26) (23.85)
— Diluted (RMB cents) - EEARED) 13 (22.26) (23.85)

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B HBRR R

As at 31 December 2019 722019412 531 H

As at 31 December

R12A831H
2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=2 ARBT T AREET T
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BRE L& 14 299,976 2,387
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 2,656 -
Investment properties REME 16 1,601,400 1,714,200
Prepayment and deposit for PIERBEEZ
non-current assets FENE RiLE 18 8,921 21,282
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITEN 26 11,771 7,068
Interests in associates REEE QRIS 19 514,519 741
Interest in a joint venture R—HEEE R ER 20 727,780 797,389
Deferred tax assets FEIEF I E E 21 66 83,597
Derivative financial instrument PTEEMIA 34(b) 2,619 =
3,169,708 2,626,664
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 22 595,039 608,211
Trade and other receivables and JFEE U5 B 3 T L A R LR K
prepayments LD 23 73,202 78,662
Amounts due from directors FEWESEFIA 24(b) 32 368
Amount due from a non-controlling FEU— 2 FEFE AR AR BR FUIR
shareholder 24(f) 3,768 -
Financial assets at fair value through EAREF ABRED
profit or loss CREE 25 - 44,934
Pledged bank deposits BB RITIER 26 304 303
Restricted bank deposits ZRRHIRITFE R 26 23,542 3,068
Bank balances and cash IRITEER IR 27 253,397 92,668
949,284 828,214
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2019 742019412 31 H

As at 31 December

R12A831H
2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR¥T T AREFIT
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables FETBR 3R HoAth FE S 30 28 208,953 268,654
Amounts due to related companies P& AR R B SR IE 24(0) 308,668 52,103
Amount due to a director B —REEFHIA 24(a) 5,002 =
Loans from non-controlling REFEERRR 2 ER
shareholders 24(d) 84,804 -
Amounts due to non-controlling JFEAST IE 1 AR AR SR I8
shareholders 24(d) 669 -
Contract liabilities aHEaRE 31 127,197 148,144
Receipt in advance TEUAR X 32 1,043 989
Rent and other deposits He MEmEse 6,141 7,448
Provisions for potential claims MEBERE ZE#E 29 22,564 22 564
Provision for litigation BAFAAZ B 30 27,800 =
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 33 373,442 243,252
Lease liabilities HEAE 35 2,274 =
Convertible bonds AT AR (E 5 34(a) 581,731 =
Derivative financial instruments PTESHITA 34(a) 2,146,215 1,578,882
Current tax liabilities AT IE B & 335,109 476,953
4,231,612 2,798,989
Net current liabilities RBEEFEE (3,282,328) (1,970,775)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABERS (112,620) 655,889
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 33 486,000 442,000
Interest payables FER 7S 9,052 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 35 661 =
Amount due to a related company FE A~ — Rl A ESE 2 R RIE 24(c) 32,128 229,000
Amount due to a director R —RESEHIE 24(a) - 4,893
Loans from a related company RE—EEBARER 24(e) 729,589 164,463
Convertible bonds AR ES 34(a) - 515,120
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIABE 21 335,326 359,413
1,592,756 1,714,889
Net liabilities EEFE (1,705,376) (1,059,000)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MR R

As at 31 December 2019 722019412 531 H

As at 31 December

R12A831H
2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=2 AR¥ T AREET T
Capital and reserves EXR#HE
Share capital &7 37 582,811 582,811
Reserves (G (2,534,530) (1,630,682)
Deficit attributable to owners of AAREEAELEL
the Company (1,951,719) (1,047,871)
Non-controlling interests iR R 246,343 (11,129)
Total deficit =g R (1,705,376) (1,059,000)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 272 were F90ZE272H Z &M BHRIAEFERN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 8 June 20206 A8H #L/E W KT8 - WA LA T A

2020 and are signed on its behalf by: TEZE
Chau Cheok Wa Lo Kai Bong
BEE BT
Director Director
EE EF
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Attributable to owners of the Company

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEZESEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z%E2019F 1231 B L F[E

NG LN
Share Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory option Capital ~ Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  reseve  reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
RE  ROEE ANEE  iERE BRERE  EARB NERE  ZiEE B FEREE  ERET
Notes RMB'000  RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RVMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETH
(Note)
(HD)
At 1 January 2018 R2018%151R 505,784 1,402,528 24,221 49,378 35,760 - 158 (2274823 (237,043 (10,779 (247815
Loss forthe year R . . g . . : - (dSS) (BSH) @S (1458899
Exchange differences on tansiating ~~ BEESNEBMEEZ
foreign operations EXzE - - - - - - 4943 - 4943 = 4043
Share of other comprefensive Efi-HAEAREM2E
income of a oint venture, WA MBEERER
net of related income tax - - - - - - - 706 705 - 705
Total comprehensive income (expense) M2 ERA (R
forthe year 5 - - - - - S (478 (1452099 057 (1453250)
Recogniton of share-based BRI
compensation benefits &l 3 - - - - 7443 - - - 7443 - 7443
Forfeiture of share options R E - = = = (5,561) = = 5561 = = =
Issue of shares upon partial ABPATRRESE
conversion of convertiole bond Bk ) 57077 497,109 = = = = = - 554186 - 554186
Deemed capital contribution RiETE - - - - - 80,436 - = 80,436 = 80,436
At 31 December 2018 and R018E12A31AR
1 January 2019 20195181R 562,811 1,899,637 24,221 49,373 37,642 80,436 5,101 (8,727,098) (1,047,871 (11,129)  (1,059,000)
Loss for the year EnBE - - - - - - - (1484266) (1484.206)  (25006) (1,509,272)
Exchange diferences on translating ~~ REBNEBMEL L
foreign operations ERZE - - - - - - 44,250 - 44,250 830 45,080
Share of other comprehensive income of [ —FAE AR R —HEE
ajoint venture and an associate, net  ATEBIERA - KA
of related income tax BrsEH - - - - - - - 431 431 3 462
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ ER2 AU (F3) £
forthe year - - - - - - W0 (1463835 (1429585 (24,145 (1,463730)
Incorporation of anon-wholy owned MR -FELE
subsidiary HBAR - - - - - - - - - 2521 2521
Acquistion of subsidiaries )| 3 - - - - - - - - - 94,034 94,034
Capttal contrbution from REFERER
non-controling shareholders TE - - - - - - - - - 173878 173878
Disposal of subsiciaries HERBAR 40 - - - - - - - - - 11,184 11,184
Recognition of share-based BARHZfH
compensation benefits BRI 3 - - - - 25,903 - - - 25,903 - 25,003
Forfeiture of share options RERE - - - - (1,885) - - 1,885 - - -
Deemed captal contribution RIETE - - - - - 509,83 - - 509,83 - 509,834
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTATHRRE - - - 10,500 - - - (10,500) - - -
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12831R 582,811 1,809,637 24,221 59,873 61,660 590,270 49,351 (5,219,548)  (1,951,719) 246,343  (1,705,376)
Note: Capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from a shareholder (note Mt :  EAREFHERBEER 2 REF EE M5 E 2 HE

24(e)) regarding the difference between the coupon interest rate and the market interest

rate of advances.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F12 A31 B L EE

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ek AR¥T ARBT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Loss before taxation BRI RIS 1B (1,495,053) (1,378,012
Adjustments for: FEIER -
Interest income A EWA 7 (368) (451)
Exchange loss b H &8 87,229 180,696
Finance costs BB 8 222,462 161,412
Depreciation of property, W - BB REEITE
plant and equipment 14 1,834 1,519
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 15 2,507 =
Share-based compensation benefits &9 Sz A5t B9 37 B 48 7 38 25,903 7,443
Loss on deemed partial disposal of RIEED & — R & AR
equity interest of an associate 2 BE 19 60,442 =
Loss on deemed disposal of BIELEHB AR ZEE
subsidiaries 39(b) 151,951 -
Impairment loss recognised in LE M EWGRFER 2 BB
respect of other receivables 518 - 1,983
Reversal of provisions for BIERERERE
potential claims 29 - (19,518)
Provision for litigation BLEFFA 2 Bl 30 27,800 =
Impairment on interest in an associate — B & A Al 2 RE 19 197,728 -
Maintenance costs HE RN - 32,796
Change in fair value of financial assets BARBEFABE /M
at fair value through profit or loss BEZAREZD (20,681) (1,011)
Change in fair value of a convertible AR ES 2 AR EE
bond - (73,936)
Change in fair value of derivative PTESMIAEZAREEZE
financial instruments 34 521,746 1,189,505
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BELEEZ
plant and equipment Was 7 (122) (147)
Loss (gain) on disposal of financial HEZRARBEFABRZ
assets at fair value through SREE 2 BB )
profit or loss 7 5 (5610)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA Rz s 40 (9,245) =
Share of (profit) loss of associates FEAGEE & QT (s ) B8 (5,604) 1,047
Share of loss of a joint venture i D XN =] 82,165 14,896
Change in fair value of investment BRENEH AR EES
properties 16 112,800 10,700
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12 831 B I-F /&

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E ARBT T ARETTT
Operating (loss) profit before working #EE &S EaT ML (HiB)
capital changes i A (36,501) 128,412
Decrease in inventories BFERL 12,922 45,512
Decrease (increase) in trade and JREE LT R R e Lt R LK K B
other receivables and prepayments TR 5RO A (38 0n) 6,247 (4,835)
Decrease in amounts due from directors &I & S FRIE R 334 320
Placement of pledged bank deposits GFRRERPRITFR (4,933) (1,181)
(Decrease) increase in trade and FEABR 3 R HAth FE 5 3R
other payables Okl (38,985) 12,861
Increase (decrease) in amounts FEAST BAESE A R kI AN
due to related companies CRL) 4,404 (5,072)
Decrease in contract liabilities aHaERY (20,935) (140,381)
Increase in receipt in advance TE Y BR I AN 54 28
Decrease in rental and other deposits HekHEMEreED (1,307) (994)
Cash (used in) generated from HEBAEENES
operations (78,700) 34,670
Income tax paid EATFTIFH (96,485) (51,048)
Net cash used in operating activities &&FBHEANEREFHE (175,185) (16,378)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Net cash inflow from disposal of KEHENBRARZIRE
subsidiaries MAFRE 40 19,890 =
Cash outflow from deemed disposal of RERIELHEMB AR Z
subsidiaries WEMH 39(b) (37,880) =
Loan to a joint venture m—EEERATER - (179,921)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value ~ BEIRA A BT AEBRZ
through profit or loss TREE - (55,013)
Placement of deposit for non-current GHIEREBEERS
assets (785) (12,697)
Placement of restricted bank deposits TR HRITIE R (20,474) (3,068)
Purchase of property, BEYE  BELRE
plant and equipment (1,811) (358)
Payments for rental deposits HEESIR (825) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERARBEABRZ
assets at fair value through CREEZFTSHRIE
profit or loss 2,105 12,927
Interest received B B 368 451
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits AU R B ERITIE K - 334
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME  BEMEHEZ
plant and equipment FriSsk18 163 268
Consideration paid on acquisition of WehE — B & AR R T
interest in an associate ZRRE (652,401) =
Net cash outflow arising from WHEMSRDFTE A& 2 3 &
acquisition of MSRD HF R 39(a) (155,487) =
Net cash inflow arising from acquisiton ~ JEESunTrustFTE 4 2 38 &
of SunTrust MA R 39(b) 71,523 =
Net cash used in investing activities REEZHIHANBRESEEH (775,614) (237,077)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E2019F12 A31 B L EE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Settlement for litigations SR RARN AR 5K I8 - (235,000)
Capital contribution from REIEIEREIRE 7T E
non-controlling shareholders 4,399 -
Interest paid BEARFE (44,584) (40,943)
Repayment of bank borrowings EERRITER (40,000) (40,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE (2,220) -
Loans from a related company KE—RHEBARZER 1,003,773 240,077
New other borrowings raised EECHEMER 191,000 120,000
Net cash generated from financing BMETHELENRSFE
activities 1,112,368 44134
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RERBEESEYHE M
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RA)F58 161,569 (209,321)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MB1ENRERAEEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 92,668 302,557
Effect of foreign exchange rate ELssnEE
changes (840) (568)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS M12B31EHNES
AT 31 DECEMBER, REEEEY
represented by bank balances DERITE#REESRR
and cash 253,397 92,668
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

Suncity Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place
of business of the Company is at Unit 1705, 17/F., West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
Its immediate holding company is Fame Select Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and Mr. Chau
Cheok Wa (“Mr. Chau”) and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong are the ultimate
controlling parties of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 48.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the
“Group”) incurred a net loss of RMB1,509,272,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2019,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB3,282,328,000 and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets
by RMB1,705,376,000. The Group is dependent on the financial
support from Mr. Chau, its controlling shareholder, including the
advances from the controlling shareholder and related companies
and convertible bonds of which the aggregate carrying amount
is approximately RMB3,555,525,000. Taking into account the
financial resources of the Group, including the financial support
from Mr. Chau, its controlling shareholder, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due for the
next twelve months from the date of approving the consolidated
financial statements by the board of directors and accordingly these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs and HKASs and Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time

in the current year:

HKFRS 16
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 —2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs and Interpretation in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

3.1 HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS
17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard
to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial application.

100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. ERFIIRKIETBBMERSE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ZA(ERAMKREED ) REE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG SHER([HEEER]) (&)

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (Cont’d)
New and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Cont’d)

3.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

A TR A R # AT R AR MER] BB R
BHREXEARFEBSER (B
3.1 BBRIKHEELE165HE (&

Definition of lease (Cont’d)

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance
with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing
whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1
January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)
(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the accumulated losses and comparative
information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent
relevant to the respective lease contracts:

relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment
review;

i. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application; and

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application.

HEZTE(E)
F2019F1 A1 H K Z BT k& 5]
MEANME @ AEBERER BT
WEERNE16RATE A EREAR
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= o

TEAREMNA
AEBREHERAETEVBRELE
BIZE165% + WS R ERVIRE
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BB IR E 2ER 5 16.C8(b) (i) 5%
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e B RRME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (Cont’d)

3.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)
As a lessee (Cont’d)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied is 14.02%.

102

FEHEREEEEERENIEES
BRE - BEAMNMNEFSZE G
EHRE14.02% °

ERFITREETERMBRE
ZA(ERMBREENDRER
SRR EER ) (&)

AN B0 A R # R RS R] BB R

BHREEAR BB ER )

3.1 BBMBHREERE1655HE (&)
TERZHN (&)
ERRLANEAKEHENHEE
MEERER  AKEERVGE

(=
=}

At 1 January
2019
R2019%F
181H
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at ~ X2018%12 31 H I ER)
31 December 2018 BTG AR 4,970
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant RIS S EERN RN
incremental borrowing rates HEaE 4,506
Less: Recognition exemption = short-term lease Ji : #ERFA % - RHHE (848)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019FE1 A1ENAEEE 3,658
Analysed as DA
Current ED 1,942
Non-current FETRED 1,716
3,658
Right-of-use
assets
FEREEE
RMB’000
ARET T
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for ~ 720191 1B E BFEAEEER
own use as at 1 January 2019 comprises the ~ FEIEMARIAT :
following:
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases  HA & &8 M 75 TS B 5B 165F £ B2
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 FRKEHENFEREEE 3,658
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e B RRME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. EAMIRRKEBIEEBMBRE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING RA(TEBUBRREEANREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG SHER([HEEER]) (&)
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (Cont’d)
New and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs that are AEEBHERZEFTREIETERBHG
mandatorily effective for the current year (Cont’d) HREEAREBSHER (HE)
3.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d) 3.1 BEBUBHEERE16HHEE (B
As a lessee (Cont'd) 1ERFFN (&)
The following adjustments were made to the amounts M2019F1 A1 BERE MR RS
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position WRNSETUHABNOT - RIIR
at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected by the TNZEBEZEWIFE -

changes have not been included.

Carrying

amounts
previously Carrying
reported at amounts at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
20185 R2019%F
12A318 %Al 1818
2RNEREE A HERE(E

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBETIT ARETT ARETE

Non-current asset FREBEE

Right-of-use assets EREEE - 3,658 3,658

Current liability REBEE

Lease liabilities HERE - 1,942 1,942

Non-current liability FRBERE

Lease liabilities HEAE - 1,716 1,716

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities under st © BUARBEAZ2 /B ZE2019F12A31H

indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019, movements in IFFERKEEDEERSREMNS -
working capital have been computed based on opening consolidated EELESZEHIRELXEER
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above. 20191 A1 B F MR E MR &

mats o
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e B RRME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA(EBYHBREREADR
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG ERGFEAN(EBSEAD
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (Cont’d) (#&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs that are REEBHEERZEFTREETE B

mandatorily effective for the current year (Cont’d) HREEAREBS R (H)

3.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d) 3.1 BEBUBHEEREI16HEE (B
As a lessor TERHTAA
In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, BER BB RELERE 1655218
the Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition BIEX  AEEBERAEEIESR
for leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for A A 2 E R BE R E A

3. RN REBITEBUHEK

these leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of B MARBESUBFREERSE
initial application and comparative information has not been 165 B ERERABHEAZEHE
restated. AR - MEEBRERIREET -

(@) Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts @ RERBBYBREELELNE16

104

entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets under
existing lease contracts are accounted as if the existing
leases are modified as at 1 January 2019. The application
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January 2019.

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied
under rent and other deposit. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right-of-use assets and were
adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. ERHIRLKIET BB

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA(FEUMBHREED DR
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG EREFEAN(EBSEAD

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (Cont’d) (#&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs that are REEREERZF T REIETE R
mandatorily effective for the current year (Cont’d) HREEAREBSHER (HE)

3.2 Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates 32 EEBEIERFI8HEREENAR

and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”), including the impairment
requirements, to long-term interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is not applied that form
part of the net investment in the investee. Furthermore, in
applying HKFRS 9 to long-term interests, an entity does
not take into account adjustments to their carrying amount
required by HKAS 28 (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount
of long-term interests arising from the allocation of losses of
the investee or assessment of impairment in accordance with
HKAS 28).

As at 31 December 2019, amount due from joint venture
of approximately RMB444,309,000 is considered as long-
term interest that, in substance form part of the Group’s net
investments in the relevant joint venture and no amount due
from associates is noted as at 31 December 2019. However,
the application is not expected to have impact as the
Group’s existing accounting policies are consistent with the
requirements clarified by the amendments.

LB AT RS
REEIREEREEBHERE
R0 £ B T A ([ EBEEHE
ERIEON ) (RIBRERT) AR
MR T2 — B S AT
ABAT RS LEARR
EH2FRET D o W ¥
A R R E 0N RN R
B EETEHAREASL
2 BI| 5 085% FF 4 T Y EL AR (B fF 1
2 BB (ERIEE S & 5 2R F 085
HHEBIEE 5B BRRETED
By REES Y EEERE) -

R2019F12831H @ [EINA &R a]
FIEX AR ¥ 444, 309,0007T 1518 &
gz AEE EBEXNAEER
HREERRIZFREZ —Hn
MmmMR2019F12 8318 » I 4 fiE Y b
ENRIFIE - AT BEAAE@ER
TEERTE  REARTEERSE
ZEARREZEETMERZE
SK—E -
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e B RRME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Insurance Contracts’

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions®

Definition of a Business?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Definition of Material*

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning

on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs
and HKASSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments,
the Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont’d)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and HKASs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
HKASs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by
including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgments. In particular, the amendments:

e include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

e replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could
influence” to “could reasonably be expected to influence”; and

° include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to “users” which was considered too broad
when deciding what information to disclose in the financial
statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and
will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2020. The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e B RRME
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e B RRME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (Cont’d)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and
a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the
definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction
between a liability and an equity instrument;

o discusses historical cost and current value measures, and
provides additional guidance on how to select a measurement
basis for a particular asset or liability;

e states that the primary measure of financial performance is
profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances other
comprehensive income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current value of an
asset or liability; and

e discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the
reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that references
in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New Framework,
whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the previous versions of
the framework. These amendments are effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier
application permitted. Other than specific standards which still refer
to the previous versions of the framework, the Group will rely on the
New Framework on its effective date in determining the accounting
policies especially for transactions, events or conditions that are not
otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards.

1 08 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1
January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries (Cont’d)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between () the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS
16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition
date, except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Business combinations (Cont’d)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see above),
and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating units,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associates and a joint venture is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Interests in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and a joint venture used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, investments in associates or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associates or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associates/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of the associates or joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interests in those associates or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associates or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associates or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Interests in associates and a joint venture (Cont’d)

Interests in associates or a joint venture are accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investments
in associates or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interests in associates or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any assets, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or
a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or
loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain
or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with associates or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associates or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associates or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
or partial disposal of the Group’s interests in associates/a joint
venture.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the Group’s net
assets in United States dollars (‘US$”), Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Hong
Kong dollars (“‘HK$”) and Philippines Peso (‘PHP”) to the Group’s
presentation currency in RMB are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in exchange reserve.
Such exchange differences accumulated in the exchange reserve
are reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and tangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and tangible assets (Cont’d)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a
cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and tangible assets (Cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

4.

TESHEEE

Ik BERSRE ERAEEEREK
& ERE )

e E R IR B IR B[ - BIZIREE (B
ReEABUNRSELBMAR) 2K
E{EEEMERGER] 2 b AT R E S
B MR Z FREE TS RERE
EFEEYEAZAREE (RBRSELEM
X 3R & B A B AR I ) B SRR (B 1R B R
FEEE 2 fRMEE - REEERENER

BatER -

REEFEHZBWA

REBE R ST B A B i (sl ) # R
WA IEREBRNEEHRBENERSK
RIGHZEFIEIERE TR -

BHE T —ERRE RN —HAER
% (3 — A EmIRE)H—RFIK
BURR B B RE S fn SRS

575 & T oIS P — B - AU IR
—BEEREE EAERESEE
SRR 40 L0 R — S R Y
47 ¢

. RAKEBELH  EERBERAED
RRAEER ORI

s AEBEHWENELERRT-—EE
E - MxBEERASEENRH
BPEH 3k

s AEENBHOYRELHAKEER
BRAZNEE  AAREYLZS
B TR R KB N TR BB AT SR B ELTT
BRI

BRI MASHEEREFPESHESMNK
PR 7% B $22 Il BB PSS B FE AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)
The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

Income from sales of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and delivered to the buyers. It is generally satisfied at a point in time
when the control is transferred to the buyer.

Travel agency services income is recognised upon performance
of the services. It is generally satisfied at a point in time when the
control is transferred to the customer.

Property management services income is recognised over time
when the customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits from the Group’s performance. Such service is recognised
using a straight-line basis over the term of the lease contract.

Income from sales of travel related products is recognised over
time when the customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits from the Group’s performance. Such income is recognised
on a daily basis over the contract. Transaction price is allocated
between sale of hotel accommodation products and event tickets
and provision of limousine services on a relative standalone selling
price basis.

Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services income
is recognised over time when the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits from the Group’s performance.
Such service is recognised based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

The contract liabilities represent deposits received from buyers
of the properties held for sale and advance payments from the
customers in relation to provision of hotel and integrated resort
general consultancy services prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

In relation to the Group’s travel related businesses, the Group
has acted as principal for transactions of hotel accommodation
products and other travel package products and acted as agent
for the rest. In assessing whether the Group acted as principal
or agent, the Group has considered whether it controls the hotel
accommodation products, other travel package products and
travel agency services before such products and/or services are
transferred to customers, indicators including but not limited to
whether the Group has primary responsibility in providing the goods
and services to the customers, inventory risk before the customers’
order and whether it has discretion in establishing price.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in note 3)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leases (Cont’d)

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in note 3) (Cont’d)

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in note 3)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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e B RRME

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FEGSTTHEGE)

Leases (Cont’d)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in note 3) (Cont’d)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Except for investment properties, right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-use assets
that meet the definition of investment property are presented within
"investment properties".

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leases (Cont’d)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transition in note 3) (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered as
integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of incentives
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leases (Cont’d)

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured under fair
value model.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Inventories

Properties for sale includes properties under development and
properties held for sale and travel related products which are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Properties under development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development and properties for sale are classified
as current assets. Except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting policies
of right-of-use assets upon the application of HKFRS 16, properties
under development/properties for sale are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for the properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to properties
for sale upon completion.

Costs of travel related products are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for travel related products less all estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified

financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Cont’d)

U

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is presented as the “change
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade receivables,
trade related amounts due from directors, amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
deposits, bank balances, other receivables and other deposits)
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
trade related amounts due from directors and amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

U

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

U)
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Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over one year past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

V)

136

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on
the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case, interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.
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e B RRME

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d)
A financial liability is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing
it in the near term; or

e oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded

derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

1 38 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d)

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
For financial liabilities that contain embedded derivatives, such
as derivative financial instruments, the changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments are excluded in determining the
amount to be presented in other comprehensive income. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to
accumulated losses upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amounts
due to related companies, a director and non-controlling
shareholders, loans from a related company and non-controlling
shareholders, rent and other deposits, bank and other borrowings,
debt component of convertible bonds and interest payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible bond
A conversion option that will be settled other than by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative.

An early redemption option provides the Group to redeem its
convertible bond before the maturity date at principal amount is an
early redemption option derivative.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Convertible bond (Cont’d)

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
component are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the
debt component of the convertible bond is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The derivative component
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated. The
entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in its
entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are
not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument
that are separated from the host contracts are treated as a single
compound embedded derivative unless those derivatives relate to
different risk exposures and are readily separable and independent
of each other.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

4.

FESFBR (&)

$®I A

SHEERED (&

A 1R AR (B %5 (4B)

REBEITRE - BB RITEBD YR
NAERER REZBHE - JTREES
METEIB D TofE A BERRFI SRR IR B 8K

RINER  TEBD R AREGE -
RAEEHRBEER

1T T A
TETEMBERNITETAGHFTLZA
HIW AR ERER  ERNEREHMRIA
HRAEEHIE FFEENBEaE
BAXLTETA

HAREAAHONITETA(RERES
B S SE R EORME AL £ & B A
E)  FRADE - BERA A KRN
RS A 4 8 (I FR) 548 A 4 2
EATEE -

fRERARIENTEETEHNITET RQLIE
BV BHREERNFERHBEANN S @BE
E)NETETRANER - ERBR IR
EFANTEZI@E  BEAHAIEF
BAnEFAER  IRSTEIAR
BRBYITET AR -

—RME BURTANNE—TAN
ZHBMAANTETAREFE-EER
ARPTET R - BRIFZSFTETAS R
TR R Bk O K 7] B8 B 2 B & 40 B 58
37 - BItERIE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a financial
liability with substantially different terms as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. A substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable
to the financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of
a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when
such difference is less than 10 per cent.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including
schemes registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and government retirement benefit scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service,
entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, Macau and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), a
mandatory provident fund scheme for its eligible employees in Hong
Kong, Macau and the PRC, the assets of which are held in separate
independent trustee-administered funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits (Cont’d)
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes and the mandatory provident fund scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions and, in respect of the non-mandatory
provident fund schemes, such contributions are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the schemes
prior to vesting fully in the Group’s contributions.

Share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwiill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised due to application
of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.
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e B RRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition as principal or agent

The Group engages in the travel related businesses, which
include the provision of arrangement of hotel accommodation,
transportation and entertainment. The Group has acted as principal
for transactions of travel related products and acted as agent for the
rest. In assessing whether the Group acted as principal or agent,
the Group has considered, among others, indicators including
but not limited to whether the Group has primary responsibility
in providing the goods and services to the customers, inventory
risk before the customers’ order and whether it has discretion in
establishing price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Cont’d)
Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolio and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale. As
a result, the Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including those completed investment
properties are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their fair values, details of which are disclosed in note
16. The fair value of the investment properties was determined
by reference to valuations conducted on these properties by an
independent and professionally qualified valuer not connected to
the Group using property valuation techniques which involve certain
assumptions of prevailing market conditions, such as rental income
of the property derived from the existing tenancy with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential of the tenancy which are
then capitalised into the value at an appropriate capitalisation
rate. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
may result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties included in the consolidated statement of financial
position and corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
decrease in fair value of investment properties of RMB112,800,000
(2018: RMB10,700,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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e B RRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories

Properties under development and properties held for sale are
stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value. Based on
the experience of the directors of the Company and the nature of
the subject properties, the directors of the Company determine the
net realisable value of properties under development and properties
held for sale by reference to the estimated market prices of the
properties under development and properties held for sale, which
takes into account a number of factors including the recent prices
of similar property type in the same project or by similar properties,
and the prevailing real estate market conditions in the PRC. The
directors of the Company estimate the future costs to complete
the properties under development by reference to the actual
development cost of other similar completed projects of the Group,
adjusted by certain current market data. During the year ended 31
December 2019, no impairment loss (2018: no impairment loss) has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate carrying amount of
properties under development and properties held for sale
amounted to approximately RMB583,183,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB597,283,000) in the PRC.

PRC land appreciation taxes (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The LAT is levied at
progressive rates on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of the sales of properties less the estimated deductible
expenditures, the cost of land use rights and all relevant property
development expenditures.

Significant judgment is required in estimating the amounts of land
appreciation and the applicable land appreciation tax rate due to
the uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties and deductible
expenditures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

PRC land appreciation taxes (“LAT”) (Cont’d)

However, the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC
and certain projects of the Group have not finalised their land
appreciation tax calculations and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. The Group recognised the LAT based on
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the related
income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised
with local tax authorities. During the year ended 31 December
2019, a reversal of approximately RMB8,431,000 (2018: provision
of RMB58,461,000) of LAT has been recognised.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The directors of the Company use their judgment in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. For derivative financial
instruments, the estimation of fair value of derivatives includes
some assumptions not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The carrying amount of the derivative financial instruments in
relation to convertible bonds and put options as at 31 December
2019 was approximately RMB2,146,215,000 and RMB2,619,000,
respectively (31 December 2018: RMB1,578,882,000 and nil,
respectively). Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in note
34. The directors of the Company believe that the chosen valuation
techniques and assumptions are appropriate in determining the fair
value of derivative financial instruments.
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e B RRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Impairment of interests in a joint venture/associates

The carrying amount of interests in a joint venture and associates
amounting to RMB727,780,000 and RMB514,519,000, respectively
(31 December 2018: RMB797,389,000 and RMB741,000,
respectively) is reviewed for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 whenever certain events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The Group
determines the recoverable amount which is the higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use is based
on the cash flows forecasts of the joint venture/associates and a
suitable discount rate. The key assumptions of the discounted cash
flow model include the growth rates, discount rate and the forecast
performance. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
or more than expected, or there are favourable or unfavourable
events and changes in facts and circumstances which result in
revision of cash flows forecast, a material impairment loss may
arise or reverse. During the year, impairment loss of approximately
RMB197,728,000 (2018: nil) has been recognised in respect of
the interest in an associate and no impairment loss has been
recognised in respect of interest in a joint venture for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation for interests in a joint venture and associates are
disclosed in notes 20 and 19, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for both years is as follows:

e B RRME

WA 7 BB E #
PATS R B R AR SR B 2 WA D AT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBETTT

Sales of properties HEYH 18,901 177,400
Property management services income YIS E R RIFUA 13,384 7,581
Travel agency services income BRI AR A5 U 5,796 7,741
Sales of travel related products & iR B2 4B A EE om 519,738 535,079
Hotel and integrated resort general B E MR E BN 2 —RER
consultancy services income ARIEUA 14,450 19,794
572,269 747,595
Leases HE 39,558 45,048
611,827 792,643

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) for the purpose
of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

(1) Property development — Development and sales of office
premises, residential and retail properties in the PRC;

(2) Property leasing — Leasing of retail and residential properties
and provision of property management services in the PRC;

(8) Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services —
Provision of hotel and integrated resort general consultancy
services;

(4) Travel related products and services — Sales of travel related
products and provision of travel agency services; and

(6) Others — Provision of property management services and
transportation services in the Philippines.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

6. WARZEHR ()

Disaggregation of revenue WADE
Year ended 31 December 2019
BZ2019F12A31A LFE
Hotel and
integrated
resort
general Travel related
Property Property consultancy products and
development leasing services services Others Total
BERGE
ERNZ
— B gzl
LIESE MERE k% ERRRE Htr it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥Trn AR¥Trn AR¥Tr AR¥Tn AR%ETx
Types of goods or ERBREER
services
Sales of properties MEHE
- Apartments -NE 18,901 - - - - 18,901
Sales of travel related T A B E
products HE
- Hotel accommodation ~ —B/E{ETE
products E - - - 519,435 - 519,435
- Others - Hfth - - - 303 - 303
Travel agency services TRERE R
income WA - - - 5,796 - 5,796
Property management MEEERE
services income O - 5,589 - - 7,795 13,384
Hotel and integrated resort EfE k44 B
general consultancy Z— MR
services income FRAIA - - 14,450 - - 14,450
Revenue from contracts REHZEFAH
with customers A 18,901 5,589 14,450 525,534 7,795 572,269
Leases HE - 39,161 - - 397 39,558
Total revenue #PA 18,901 44,750 14,450 525,534 8,192 611,827
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e B RRME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. WAR 2 ZER ()
Disaggregation of revenue (Cont’d) WA 23 (&)

Year ended 31 December 2018

BHZ2018F12A31ALFE
Hotel and
integrated
resort
general Travel related
Property Property consultancy products and
development leasing services services Total
BIE Rz A
Bz sl
ESE WEHRE  —RERRK 2 R R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥ETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Types of goods or ERRBEER

services
Sales of properties MEHE

- Apartments -RE 57,221 = = = 57,221

= Villas -RIE 120,179 - - - 120,179
Sales of travel related IREABEEREE

products

- Hotel accommodation ~ —EEEEEmR

products - - - 534,591 534,591

- Others - Hfth - - - 488 488
Travel agency services HRERIERBKA

income - - - 7,741 7,741
Property management MEBERBEA

services income - 7,581 - - 7,581
Hotel and integrated BIER&E B RN

resort general 2 — MR R

consultancy services WA

income - - 19,794 - 19,794
Revenue from contracts REZFAH

with customers A 177,400 7,581 19,794 542,820 747,595
Leases HE = 45,048 = = 45,048
Total revenue - ON 177,400 52,629 19,794 542,820 792,643
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. WAR 7 &R ()

Disaggregation of revenue (Cont’d)

WA 7 8 (&)

Year ended 31 December 2019
BZ2019F12A31A LFE
Hotel and
integrated
resort
general Travel related

Property Property consultancy products and
development leasing services services Others Total
BERGE
EfRRNZ
— R He3E AR B
VIESRA NEBE % EmRERE Hity Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%T=
Geographical markets HBEF#%2
by customers’ B WIS
locations
The PRC F 18,901 5,589 - - - 24,490
Macau P - - - 497,410 - 497,410
Cambodia R - - 3,441 - - 3,441
Vietnam il - - 11,009 27,110 - 38,119
The Philippines FEE - - - - 7,795 7,795
Turkey THHE - - - 1,014 - 1,014
18,901 5,589 14,450 525,534 7,795 572,269
Leases HE - 39,161 - - 397 39,558
Total et 18,901 44,750 14,450 525,534 8,192 611,827
Timing of revenue BRRARRE
recognition
A point in time TBH 18,901 - - 5,796 - 24,697
Over time BE B ] - 5,589 14,450 519,738 7,795 547,572
18,901 5,589 14,450 525,534 7,795 572,269
Leases HE - 39,161 - - 397 39,558
Total Bar 18,901 44,750 14,450 525,534 8,192 611,827
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e B RRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. WARZ2ZER ()
Disaggregation of revenue (Cont’d) WA 23 (&)

Year ended 31 December 2018

BHZ2018F12A31ALFE
Hotel and
integrated
resort
general Travel related
Property Property consultancy products and
development leasing services services Total
BIE Rz A
Bz sl
ESE WEHRE  —RERRK 2 R R st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥ETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Geographical markets by #ZEFihZ2

customers’ locations IR T iE

The PRC i 177,400 7,581 - - 184,981

Macau BF - - - 511,989 511,989

Cambodia RIB%E - - 827 - 827

Vietnam ] - - 18,967 30,831 49,798

177,400 7,581 19,794 542,820 747,595

Leases HE - 45,048 = = 45,048

Total st 177,400 52,629 19,794 542,820 792,643

Timing of revenue R ONES

recognition
A point in time T2 177,400 = = 7,741 185,141
Over time i - 7,581 19,794 535,079 562,454
177,400 7,581 19,794 542,820 747,595

Leases HE = 45,048 = = 45,048

Total st 177,400 52,629 19,794 542,820 792,643
The duration of contracts in relation to property management BEYEERERGEWA - HEREABE
services income, income from sales of travel related products, B ARBIE RIFEERBNZ —KRE
and hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services FREBRABENELHFH KD RN
income usually varies from 1 to 20 years, 1 to 10 days and 1 year, TAE20F - 1Z210B R1E - MZEEH
respectively and the contract fees of those contracts are fixed for MR2019F 2018 F 2 & HEB RETTE °

both 2019 and 2018.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sales of properties

The Group sells properties held for sale directly to buyers through
its own sales office and through real estate agents respectively.

The income from sales of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. The Group receives certain
percentage of the contract value as pre-sale deposits from buyers
when they sign the sale and purchase agreements. The pre-sale
deposits result in contract liabilities being recognised throughout
the property construction period until the buyer obtains control of
the completed property.

Provision of travel agency services

The Group has acted as an agent for the provision of travel agency
services including but not limited to reservation of helicopter, flight
and limousine services, sales of ferry tickets and event tickets. The
travel agency services income is recognised at a net amount after
reducing related cost of sales upon performance of the services.
It is generally satisfied at a point in time when the control is
transferred to the customer, which is at the time when the booking
service confirmed with the customer. The normal credit period is
30 days upon the invoice date, which is approximate to the date of
revenue recognition.

Provision of property management services

The Group provides the property management services to the
tenants of its investment properties. The property management
services fee includes pre-determined management services in the
lease contract in the PRC and real estate management services for
several residential and office condominium buildings and private
estates in the Philippines. The tenant is required to prepay the
property management services fee one month in advance. Property
management services income is recognised over time when the
tenants simultaneously receive and consume the benefits from the
Group’s performance. Such services income is recognised over the
term of the lease contract.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers (Cont’d)
Sales of travel related products

The Group sells travel related products including hotel
accommodation products and travel packages directly to the
customers through its physical point-of-sale counters and online
platform.

Income from sales of travel related products (i.e. hotel
accommodation products) is recognised over time when the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits from
the Group’s performance. When the customer obtains the control of
the hotel room reserved and consume the benefits from using such
hotel room for the period reserved. Such income is recognised over
the period reserved for such hotel room. The Group either requires
advanced payments from its customers or grant 30 days of credit
period to its customers from the invoice date, which is approximate
to the date of revenue recognition.

Income from sales of travel packages is recognised when the
performance obligations in the travel packages are satisfied. The
travel packages include several performance obligations such as
sales of hotel accommodation products and event tickets and
provision of limousine services. Each performance obligation in
the travel packages is considered to be a distinct goods or service
as it is both regularly supplied by the Group to other customers
on a stand-alone basis and is available for customers from other
providers in the market. Transaction price is allocated between
sales of hotel accommodation products and event tickets and
provision of limousine services on a relative standalone selling
price basis. Revenue relating to the sales of hotel accommodation
products is recognised over the period reserved for the hotel
rooms. Revenue relating to the sales of event tickets is recognised
at the occurrence of the events. Revenue relating to the provision of
limousine services is recognised at the time of using the limousine
services. The Group grants 30 days of credit period to its customers
from the invoice date, which is approximate to the date of revenue
recognition.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

6.

e B RRME

WA 7 BB E # ()
EFEHNHNENEE(H)

B E E m 95
AEEEAEBERHEMBEEIB LT
BREFERLEKRERMER B
BEETBEERRIKEBEESR -

kKexrEREERBUEEEEER) #H
EZWABKEER - AEEFREK
BEFERREASEEN 2#E - BEF
FERUSHIRRIEEFR 2 mhE - AR
I RRAEREEBEERMEZ
B o BREWARZEEEFEHE
MR - AEREERETPBENRK
RTEEPRZAH(EEAERZBHE
E)REET0R ZEEH -

KEKREERHE ZWATIRIKEESR
NZBHETEBITZHER - IRKEE
EREATENEME WEEEBE
mMEEEFIRHENARRERRERS
R - RIKBEEZAZBHBEHRER
BRBYERARY  AAEMRBALK
[ B Al = (BB ME B ER ¢ - OR el
mig LEMEREATFEN - X5E
RRBEEEBEERRBEPIRHEENUR
RUSREZERB2EOE - ZERA
HeBEBEE BETEEMFEERE
Z WA B E B TR AT B A RERR o B
BFIRHERA I WMARE B SBITR
R RRHRERERBGHERZBARE
ASERERGHER - AEEET
EHEPRZAH(EEARRBZAEE)
HETB0R ZEEH -
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers (Cont’d)
Provision of hotel and integrated resort general consultancy
services

Hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services represent
the provision of general consultancy services to the customers who
are developing hotel and integrated resort projects in Vietham and
Cambodia. The period of the contracts with those customers is
initial one year, with extension subject to mutual agreement. Such
income is recognised over time when the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits from the Group’s performance,
which is recognised based on the basis of the Group’s efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to
the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of services. The Group receives six-month advance
payments before the provision of general consultancy services to
these customers. These advance payments give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of the contracts, until the income recognised
on the relevant contracts exceeds the amount of the advance
payments. Depending on the terms of each contract, the Group wiill
then receive the general consultancy services income on a half year
basis or monthly basis from the seventh month of the contracts.
The Group grants credit period ranging from O to 15 days to its
customers.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

6.

WA R 7 BRE ¥t ()
BEFENNENEE ()
RELBE RS ERN 2 —RERRH

BIERREE RN 2 —RER RS R
RBEERERERERBEEMEREERN
HEZEFPRHE—REBEMRS - BZ2%E
BEZAEHNBULE—F  EHHET
AR - BEWABEREER « BIE%
EXFRBKUREEAREAEBEY
28 IRBAEEHBETEOER
R HS AR BITZENEETNE
SHBIRAER Bl EARERBRASE
EREEREEGEAENBLOBR
AEBRAZERFIRE—MEB RS
ATUWER N B BT 3k - ZEBARRA
NFRRBEEANEAE  EEHEBEY
HRZBABHZSBNZEEEL -
BEZAEONGER  AEBHREOHE
+tE ARG RS FL—ER WA —%
EERESRA - AEEHRTEEFENTO
ZE15HZIZEH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. WAK 2 ZBER (&)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers (Cont’d) EEAHNBHET(E
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance M20194FE K 2018512 A318 » DB EH
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December HBREHETCREREI B RATK) 2R
2019 and 2018 and the expected timing of recognising revenue are ZERRBHERRA ZFHHENAT
as follows:

Hotel and

integrated

resort general
consultancy

Sales of services
properties income Total

BERGE

ERNZ

— R B S PR 7S
MEHE ['ON st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT ARETT

As at 31 December 2019 72019512 A31H
Within one year —FR 127,197 - 127,197
As at 31 December 2018 72018512 H31H
Within one year —F RN 146,832 1,312 148,144
For the sales of properties, the amounts disclosed above represent MMEHEMNS - EXEBESEELRS
the Group’s expectation on the timing of transferring the legal EEHECHEREETHERP 2K
ownership to its customers. A e
Leases HE
2019
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Total revenue arising from leases MEEEZWALE
Lease payments that are fixed B ERE R 39,558
2018
RMB’000
ARETTT
Operating lease income LEFHE WA 45,048
Included in the operating lease income is contingent rental of HZE2019F12A31HILFE @ kAR e
approximately RMB1,791,000 for the year ended 31 December #IANREA1,791,0007T (20184 : AREE
2019 (2018: RMB1,820,000). 1,820,0007T) sT AL ZEFHE WA ©
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e B RRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. WARZ2ZER ()

Segment revenue and results DEWRA R HEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by UWTAREEREERREDEED 2
operating and reportable segments. WARZEE 2D °
Hotel and
integrated
resort Travel
general related
Property Property consultancy products and
development leasing services services Others Total
BEERGE
Eff
-RER gl
MERE NERE R%  EmREH Ht o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR ARETrn AR%TR ARETR AR¥TR
For the year ended 31 December  EZ2019F12731H
2019 LEE
Segment revenue from external MREF A HIA
customers 18,901 44,750 14,450 525,534 8,192 611,827
Segment (oss) profi AE(ER) &R (41,248)  (117,447) 4,110 9,001 2,958 (142,626)
Change in fair value of financial BRAREG ARG 2R
assets at FVTPL BEvinfER 20,681
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR W 9,245
Impairment on interest in an R—FEEE ARz
associate FE (197,728)
Change in fair value of derivative TEEBIEZARE
financial instruments b (521,746)
Share of profit of associates NG gl 5,604
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—-HaEraEE (82,165)
Loss on deemed disposal of RIELEMBAR CER
subsidiaries (151,951)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of ~ BEEA H & — &
equity interest of an associate DR BB (60,442)
Provision for liigation FEFA BE (27,800)
Unallocated other income, gainsand ~ KA EEMUA « Kz K
losses BB (85,810)
Unallocated finance costs RAOMBENA (163,420)
Unallocated expenses RAERY (96,895)
Loss before taxation hEaER (1,495,053)
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e B RRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. WARZ2ZER ()

Segment revenue and results (Cont’d) DA R LB (B)
Hotel and
integrated
resort general  Travel related
Property Property consultancy  products and
development leasing services services Total
BE RS
ERft igiaziclea
MERE NEHE —RERRK  ERREHK @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR

For the year ended 31 December EHZ2018512R31A

2018 ILEE
Segment revenue from external IREPHHRA

customers 177,400 52,629 19,794 542,820 792,643
Segment profit loss) HEEF (B1E) 69,435 (15,365) 2,966 31,928 88,964

Change in fair value of financial assets at AR Bt AB&RZ 28

FVTPL BEZALERY 1,011
Change in fair value of a convertible bond - ATk (%2 A% EE 73,936
Change in fair value of derivative financial  fT4 BT EZ RAEEH

instruments (1,189,505)
Share of loss of an associate El-REBERAER (1,047)
Share of loss of a joint venture El-FAERAER (14,896)
Unallocated other income, gains and RABEMIA « Was R

losses B8 (185,081)
Unallocated finance costs ROMBERE (110,046)
Unallocated expenses RARAR (41,348)
Loss before taxation BEAIER (1378,012)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments R RIS DR @R BUR M 4R
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies set out in note AEBZEHEEER -  DHEEES
4. Segment results represent the profit earned by/loss from each DEFBBAE FELEZEE B
segment without allocation of certain other income, gains and RAROEE TEMBA - W= KBS -
losses, certain finance costs, change in fair value of financial assets BETRMENAE - BAABEFAERZS
at FVTPL, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, impairment on interest in MEEZAABEESY  HEMBARZ
an associate, change in fair value of a convertible bond, change in Wa A— e R ZME - [
fair value of derivative financial instruments, share of profit (loss) of BmRES 2 ARBEEE  TEEHBRT A
associates, share of loss of a joint venture, loss on deemed disposal ZARNEED - BLHBEQT RS
of subsidiaries, loss on deemed partial disposal of equity interest of B) EH—BAERREE  GIERHE
an associate, provision for litigation and corporate expenses. This MEBARZEE  RIEXS D E M
is the measure reported to the CODM for the purpose of resources EREIREZEE  RFRAZEBEHEREA
allocation and performance assessment. AIRY - W ERS R RFFF &

AERLERREERZ T °
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e B RRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. WAK % &R (#)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by NTRAEEEREERRESHE D 2
operating and reportable segments: BERBGEZN
As at 31 December
MW128318
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Segment assets DEEE
Property development YR 617,405 608,684
Property leasing YEMRE 1,610,206 1,724,369
Hotel and integrated resort general BIEREEEERNZ
consultancy services — A% B [ AR 7% 13,354 11,108
Travel related products and services Tk % 58 B = dm K AR A% 112,509 113,880
Others Eb 179,949 =
Total segment assets DEEERE 2,533,423 2,458,041
Unallocated assets: ROBEE :
Interests in associates KB QR ER 514,519 741
Interest in a joint venture R—EEE R ES 727,780 797,389
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABR SREE - 44,934
Property, plant and equipment VI - BRE L& 297,526 =
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,656 =
Derivative financial instrument ESMTAE 2,619 =
Bank balances and cash SRITERNE S 35,422 64,815
Deferred tax assets BLEHIREE 66 83,597
Others H A, 4,981 5,361
Consolidated assets HREEE 4,118,992 3,454,878
Segment liabilities DEEE
Property development YR 733,097 587,517
Property leasing VERE 464,585 513,458
Hotel and integrated resort general BE RirEEBN 2
consultancy services — B RS 994 2,733
Travel related products and services R B2 AR A 2 o M AR S 65,461 67,374
Others H A, 7,224 =
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

e B RRME

WA R 7 EE R (F)
ITHEEREE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Total segment liabilities DEBERE 1,271,361 1,171,082
Unallocated liabilities: RAOMATE :
Current tax liabilities VAT IE B R 335,109 476,953
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHRIESE 335,326 359,413
Convertible bonds AR E S 581,731 515,120
Derivative financial instruments eI A 2,146,215 1,578,882
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,935 =
Loans from non-controlling shareholders REFFERIERE R 84,804 =
Amounts due to non-controlling JE < FEVE AR AR 3R 3R IE
shareholders 669 -
Amounts due to related companies JE 1< BAESE N B FRIE 290,020 233,658
Amount due to a director BN —REEFIE 5,002 4,893
Loans from a related company KE—EEBARER 729,589 164,463
Provision for litigation TLEFRA 2 BB 27,800 =
Others HAth 13,807 9,414
Consolidated liabilities FEAfR 5,824,368 4,513,878

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources among segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interests in associates, interest in a joint venture, financial
assets at FVTPL, right-of-use assets, derivative financial
instrument, certain property, plant and equipment, certain
bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and corporate
assets of investment holding companies; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than lease liabilities, convertible bonds, derivative financial
instruments, current tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities,
amounts due to a director, related companies and non-
controlling shareholders, loans from a related company and
non-controlling shareholders, provision for litigation and
corporate liabilities of investment holding companies.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

RERNBRAREDMcEIEE
R

s MBEEANKEEREDH  MHER
BeERR D  R—HAZAQ
RS  BARBERAREZS
BMEE ERBEEE TESRT
B -B5TYE BEERE BT
RITEBRNAS  BEEHEEER
BREEBRARZARBERIN - &

s FMEAEHIEZLKESH - M
ERfE -AREKES  TEER
TA AHMEAE  ELHER
B BN—REF BEBELFELFE
BRBRZHE - RE —HEBA
BIMSFEBRB R ZER - LR
BEARKEEBRARZARAE
RO o
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e B RRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

6. WARDHERNGE

Other segment information Hittn BER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 20191231 HILFE
Hotel and
integrated
resort Travel
general related
Property Property consultancy products and
development leasing services services Others  Unallocated Total
BERGA
ERfz-R KERBEER
MERR MERE B R R R Hit ROE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%TT AR¥ETR AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETrn AR%Tz AR%T:n
Amounts included inthe T AP SERT
measure of segment profit ~ DEEEHEZ
or loss or segment assets: ?%ﬁi
Addition to non-current FNBEENE
assets (Note) (Pt z) 10 15 - 98 19,422 604,411 623,956
Depreciation of property, 1% ~ BERK
plant and equipment il 26 67 111 707 153 770 1,834
Depreciation of right-of-use (£ REEEN&E
assets 73 - 354 524 131 1,425 2,507
Gain on disposal of property, HENE - BE R
plant and equipment SENE (122) - - - - - (122)
Interest income MEMA (240) (15) - (112) - (1) (368)
Interest expense FEREY 36,443 22,571 - - 28 163,420 222,462
Change in fair value of REMEZDAE
investment properties #%) - 112,800 - - - - 112,800

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the
measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Change In fair value of BAR B RS
financial assets at FVIPL & BEEZ A

L\ fﬁ Kﬁk - -
Gain on disposal of HjEIZﬁE P4
subsidiaries g - -
Loss on deemed disposal of & {EHENHBAA]
subsidiaries Vd T,?i - -

Loss on deemed partial RIEPAHER—
disposal of equity interest F'Elﬂﬁﬁ %“R AR E

of an associate BB - -
Provision for litigation harah.c Bl - -
Change in fair value @TE%MIEZQ

of derivative financial HEEH

instruments - -
Share of profit of associates  FE{GEE4 A GI& - -
Interest in associates JiN ANl 2 - -
Impaiment on interestinan 5 —FIB &R

associate EmAE - -
Share of loss of a joint FEiE—HAaE R

venture BB - -

Interest in a joint venture A~ Fﬁé\. VNG

Income tax expense frg Wﬁﬁ X - -

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets and deferred tax assets.
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ERMRHTIBELLERREBIFASD

MEBERDPEEAEB LR -

(20,681)

(9,245)

- - 151,951

- - 60,442
- - 27,800

- - 521,746
- - (5,604)
- - 514,519
- - 197,728
- - 82,165

- - 727,780
- - 14,219

(20,681)
(9,245)
151,951

60,442
27,800

521,746
(5,604)
514,519
197,728
82,165

721,780
14,219
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. WARK % IER (&)
Other segment information (Cont’d) Hith o I E R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BHZE2018F 12531 HILFE
Hotel and
integrated
resort general  Travel related
Property Property consultancy  products and
development leasing services services Unallocated Total
BIE RbRA
ERftz—f% IREEEER
EGES NENE BRIR% R AR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ~ ARETL  ARETR  ARERTT  AR%TR  ARETR

Amounts included in the AN EHBER
measure of segment profit ~ E&E qu%Z &
or loss or segment assets:

D
B

Addition to non-current assets  JERBIEERE

(Note) (Fir33) = 24 = 13,350 363,751 377,125
Depreciation bl 232 86 107 734 360 1,519
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE « BB &

plant and equipment REYE (111) (36) = = = (147)
Interest income FEHA 6) (22) = (65) (358) (451)
Maintenance costs R 32,796 = = = = 32,796
Interest expense MERZ 26,923 24,443 = = 110,046 161,412
Change in fair value of REMEZDAE

investment properties # - 10,700 - - - 10,700
Reversal of provisions for ‘m&%%ﬁﬁ #E

potential claims (19,518) - - - - (19,518)
Impairment loss recognised in - 51 ELfth B YUK

respect of other receivables  JERE 1,983 = = = = 1,983

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the THIRHFEIELERTEB T ADY
measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets: eSS DR EE nJriZ%%E
Change in fair value of RRAEGFABRL
financial assets at FVTPL % BEEAAE
~~~~~~ 2% - = = = (1,011) (1,011)
Gain on disposal of financial Hj’é}ﬁﬂ REFAR
assets at FVTPL BIEREEL
Wz - - - - (510) (510)
Change in fair value of a TRRESFCARE

convertible bond # = = = = (73,936) (73,936)
Change in fair value of ﬁiﬁﬁﬂlﬂz%ﬁ

derivative financial (EE-E)

instruments - - - - 1,189,505 1,189,505
Share of loss of an associate  JEfE —FIBE & A

BR - - - - 1,047 1,047
Interest in an associate R—fEE A flER - - - - 741 741
Share of loss of a joint venture fE(E—HE & A7

BA - - - - 14,806 14,896
Interest in a joint venture R-HAEAER - = = = 797,389 797,389
Income tax expense ITib - - = = 80,386 80,886

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets and deferred tax assets. Mk : FERDEETEESREERELEHIEE
B o
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e B RRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.
Information about major customers
No customer represented over 10% of total revenue of the Group
for both years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Geographical information

The Group operates in eight principal geographical areas — the PRC,
Macau, Hong Kong, Japan, Cambodia, Vietnam, the Philippines
and Turkey. The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location at which the goods were delivered and
services were rendered and information about its non-current
assets (Note) by location of assets, interests in associates and a
joint venture by location of its business operations are detailed

WA RS HER ()
EBXERFZER

REE20194F 201812 8318 IR @
FEHHE BEFPEASEAKASD
10% ©

= & R
REBNN\FEAEXEmE - 1 E - B -
B BA - RIFE - ME FERER
THELEED - ASBRIXTER
RERBFAEHRE S 2 REIBES
WARKRBBEIREEMEME D 2 IE
MEBEE I REREEAE D2
BENRR—HEERAREEZERF

below: M

Revenue from Non-current assets

external customers As at 31 December
REMBEFZBA M12A31BZERBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTRT AR®BTRT AR%®TET
The PRC H 63,651 230,029 1,610,501 1,723,038
Macau RFY 497,410 511,989 13,534 21,389
Hong Kong &5 - = 497,342 510
Japan =[N - = 208,444 741
Cambodia R 3,441 827 - -
Vietnam HiE 38,119 49,798 727,780 797,389
The Philippines JEREE 8,192 = 19,422 =
Turkey THEEHE 1,014 = - =
611,827 792,643 3,167,023 2,543,067

Note: Non-current assets exclude derivative financial instrument and deferred tax
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HmRME
7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. BEHlA - KEREE
2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT

Advertising income BEEWA 50 149
Interest income FEWA 368 451
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREZEZ
equipment & 122 147
(Loss) gain on disposal of financial assets at HEE A LB AR Z
FVTPL TRVEE 2 (E1E) Was (5) 510
Net exchange loss b 5 B 18 )5 58 (86,257) (181,006)
Maintenance costs (note 28 (b)) #EERK AR (M9 5E28(0)) - (32,796)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of L E i B B GRFE R
other receivables (note 46 (b)) BB R (I 5E46(0)) - (1,983)
Others EAh 3,404 (1,986)
(82,318) (216,514)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMEMA
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTF T ARBETTT

Effective interest expense on convertible AR ES 2 BEREAN SR
bonds (note 34(a)) (Bt 3E34(a) 54,116 93,974
Imputed interest expense on promissory note 34, Z 1% 2 (HE Fl 85I
(note 24(c)) (M 3E24(c)) 21,514 7,117
Imputed interest expense on loans from e —E@EBMARERZ
a related company (note 24(e)) HEF S5 (FizE24(e) 52,406 4,273
Interest on promissory note AREE RS 5,337 1,836
Interest on loans from a related company RE—EEBARTERZFE 28,939 2,846
Interest on loans from non-controlling REFEEREE K2 FIE
shareholders 665 =
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEER B 22,160 24,443
Interest on other borrowings EMEER S 36,854 26,923
Interest on lease liabilities HERERNE 471 =
222,462 161,412
No finance costs have been capitalised in 2019 (2018: nil). 20194 - HEEE &P A & A1k (2018
F4E) o
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e MBEmRME
9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BREAIEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after BRF¢ A E518 T8 0Bk GE A AR
charging (crediting) the following: THRBEY
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREETE
equipment 1,834 1,519
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 2,507 =
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 4,356 3,420
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) EE=ME (FIFE10) 27,297 13,061
Staff costs, excluding directors BIRA  TBIEES
- salaries and wages, excluding directors -~ HehkIE THEES 41,719 37,482
— share-based compensation benefits, - R R EFBER
excluding directors and consultants TEIEEE NEM 2,969 1,066
~ retirements benefits scheme —RIKEFETEI R
contributions, excluding directors TEIEES 2,782 2,030
Total staff costs, excluding directors and BRETINA  TREEEREMN
consultants 47,470 40,578
Total staff costs BETRA 74,767 53,639
Legal and professional fee for litigations MIBITRE(ERRME29) &
related to the Bank Claim (as defined in BRREREFLREER
note 29) and consultant claim BEXEH - 4,393
Cost of sales SHE A
- cost of properties sold - W E K AR 14,099 49,756
— cost of travel related products sold - IR E RIHE KA 487,829 499,175
— cost of services rendered - R RIS A 9,981 7,036
511,909 555,967
Gross rental income from investment KEMEZASWALBEE
properties (39,558) (45,048)
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for 8 : IEWEEL
investment properties EREEERY 3,213 4,574
(36,345) (40,474)
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e B WK

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEREEME

Retirement
benefit Share-based
Appointment Resignation Salaries and scheme Benefit compensation
date date Fees allowances contributions in kind benefits Total
BUEH R RER
Z{ERH REAH e HEREY AR RUEN  BRET @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR AREBTR AREBTR ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE019512A1ALFE

Executive Directors

HES

Chau Cheok Wa 2 September 2011 N/A 106 - 5 - - 11
ARE 201159426 il

Lo Kai Bong 9 March 2017 N/A 1,719 - 16 - 1,386 3,181
Efik 2017%3A9A TR

Au Chung On John 31 March 2017 N/A 106 5,364 5 - 17,052 22,527
Bh% 201753A31R TR

Manuel Assis Da Silva 31 March 2017 N/A 1,056 - - - 104 1,160
3 201753A318 18R

Independent Non- executive Directors

BUFHTES

Tou Kin Chuen 26 April 2012 N/A 106 - - - - 106
i e2:3 201254726 oyl

Wu Kam Fun Roderick 26 April 2012 N/A 106 - - - - 106
it 201244 A 26H oyl

Lo Wai Tung John 10 October 2012 N/A 106 - - - - 106
EER 0128108108 TER

Total 5t 3,365 5,364 % - 18,542 27,297
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e B RRME

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Cont’d)

10. EEREEME (B)

Appointment Resignation Salaries and
date date Fees  allowances
ZiTaH f ezl e HelkEd

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR

Retirement
benefit Share-based
scheme Benefit  compensation
contributions in kind benefits Total
RIVERIE i AR
A BoRA BERA EoEy

RMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR ARETL ARETRL

Year ended 31 December 2018

HE018F12A31ALEE

Executive Directors

#H1ES

Chau Cheok Wa 2 September 2011 N/A 102 - 5 - - 107
ArRE 20115942 oyl

Lo Kai Bong 9 March 2017 N/A 1,650 - 15 - 3,004 5219
BT 201763A9H 1R

Au Chung On John 31 March 2017 N/A 102 6,025 B - - 6,132
B % 201753A31H TER

Manuel Assis Da Silva 31 March 2017 N/A 1,016 - 15 - 266 1,297
B3R 201743A31R FER

Independent Non- executive Directors

BUITES

Tou Kin Chuen 26 April 2012 N/A 102 - - - - 102
i 22 201254 A26H TER

Wu Kam Fun Roderick 26 April 2012 N/A 102 - - - - 102
it 201254726 TR

Lo Wai Tung John 10 October 2012 N/A 102 - - - - 102
EER 20126108108 TER

Total &5t 3,176 6,025 40 - 3,820 13,061

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The emoluments of the Independent
Non-executive Directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a director was granted
share options, in respect of their services to the Group under
the share option scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(Cont’d)
Ms. Yeung So Lai was the chief executive officer of the Company
since February 2012 and the position was vacant after her
resignation.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during both
years.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, 2
(81 December 2018: 2) were the directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosure above. The emoluments
of the remaining 3 (31 December 2018: 3) individuals were as
follows:

e B RRME

10. EEREEM S (B)

HBREZTTE2012F2 A REERAF
TTIRAEEL - REHER IRz

RREEERN - TEZEHTETHA
BRENRENETANEOLHE -

AEBRAHESWE A LTH2% (20184
12A31H : 2R) BARAIES  Hile
R EXHERN - E##34%(2018F12H
318 : 3Z)ALTHBEWT :

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Salaries and allowances e MOER 7,846 7,340
Share-based compensation benefits M 1n BERFEERT 1,934 494
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREF T EI R 16 30
9,796 7,864
The emoluments of the remaining 3 (31 December 2018: 3) H##3% (2018128310 : 35 Me &
individuals with the highest emolument are within the following BATHBSEHEELT -
bands:
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N
2019 2018
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (Equivalent 2,500,001 7T 2 3,000,000/ 7T
to RMB2,200,001 to RMB2,640,000) (FHE MR AR®2,200,001TE
AR #2,640,0007T) 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 (Equivalent 3,000,001 7T £ 3,500,000/ 7T
to RMB2,640,001 to RMB3,080,000) (FBE R ARE2,640,0017tE
AR #3,080,0007T) - 3

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 (Equivalent 3,500,001 7T & 4,000,000/% 7T

to RMB3,080,001 to RMB3,520,000)

(HHE M AREES,080,001LE

AR #3,520,0007T) 1 =
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 (Equivalent 4,000,0017% 7t = 4,500,0005% 7T
to RMB3,520,001 to RMB3,960,000) (HEEN AR®3,520,0017TE
A FR#3,960,0007T) 1 =

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Apart from details of the balances with related parties disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and other details
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Company has not entered into a transaction, arrangement or
contract in which a director of the Company or a connected entity
of a director of the Company has a material interest.

RBEEER  AEEBERTAES

ZEEHEMA TSNS - EBRI K%
2 30 A 52 8 5 A £ B S5
SR -

BR&RE MR R NE ZRES S
15 &Eﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁmi’mﬁﬁ%z
HMFIR I - AR AW EET AR
5 RHIAHNMARBEEHALT
EEVREEREAEANES -
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e B RRME

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

1. Fi8HiBE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Current tax BN HAE 18
~ Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) - EMENR(EEMERD (39,863) 4,349
- Macau Complementary Income Tax — RPN
(“CIT”) ([FEFEPR1ETL) 2,769 3,903
~ Philippines Corporate Income Tax - SEREEEAEH
(“PCIT") ([GERERFEMER) 300 =
(36,794) 8,252
LAT TR E R (8,431) 58,461
Deferred tax (note 21) IEFE B 1B (P EE21) 59,444 14,173
14,219 80,886
(a) Hong Kong Profits Tax (a) BFEEFEH

172

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years. No provision for taxation in
Hong Kong has been made as the Group’s income neither
arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong.
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SREHE o KFIERKR20184F3
RosABREBENABZEETREBARE
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AEREEERNE2BE B Tal
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EIT

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

PRC withholding income tax

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors out of their profits earned after
1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be
applied when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are incorporated or operated in Hong Kong and
fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty arrangements between
the PRC and Hong Kong.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB668,499,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
RMB555,170,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

LAT

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive
rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowable
deductions.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 of the Cayman lIslands and accordingly,
is exempted from the Cayman Islands income tax. The
Company’s subsidiaries in the BVI were incorporated under
the International Business Companies Act of the British Virgin
Islands and, accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income tax.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

e B RRME

1. FiEHRAx ()

TEREHR
BIEFEPZEMSETE(EEMS
kD) RIEZEEHEE MR -
NS el = RN LE ok
R AE25% o

PEFEIFTEH

R B A R REGIMNEEE
ik 82008 1 A 18 #£BEEF &
1% B2 10% M) T 2 45 49+ B TE 40
Fris®i - WP BINEB RN EERE
AR TR BB MK NRE S
EEARATEEAFTENRB R E
ZHZHE - BIEAS%HEIKTEH
BEE o

BIBLEMGBEE  ERRIA
200841 A1 B+ BIFE A 7 T
BMZ@MERZEEER - 580
RN K HRIELTE B 2 - B K
BARRRMNEMEREREOS
AR #668,499,0007T (2018412 A
318 : Y AR¥S555,170,0007T)
TR AL BT H AT E
HELOEMANEBERZER
BrAlge T 2En] RARREE -

1B ER

o b SR AE A 1 s TH AR ¥R A B R B AR
ERAGPIFAE 2 RE A - LHIE
ERCREER I REVTHEF
HBE - BAR TAIHIRIAR -

EAFEB
ARFRBHE BB EHE0E
DAER B BB MR AR
SERAT - ik EREHAE
SREFER - ARTZHERT
BRABRARRSERELEAR
EREBRARBS MK - E
b R MR T RS A
8% -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

1. FrS%Fx ()
(H BFWEAEHR

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)
(ff Macau CIT

Macau CIT is calculated at the progressive rate on the
estimated assessable profits. The maximum tax rate is 12%
for the both years.

PCIT
PCIT is calculated at 30% of the estimated assessable profits
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Philippines withholding tax

Philippines withholding tax of 30% shall be levied on the
dividend declared by the companies incorporated in the
Philippines.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

SR R TS R TR IR [ st TE AR B
BRI B2ERETE - PREZMT
BREREAE12% o

FERBLERER
HZE2019F12A31B ILFE » 3E/2
B EAEH IR R ST
30%:tH -

FFRERNB
RIFFEZMALZ ARAEIRE
BEABUB0%IERETANM

FAMEHAXEESER KA
FHEHKREXARTAIEERZ RN
T

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Loss before taxation BRERIEE (1,495,053) (1,378,012
Notional tax calculated at EIT rate of RIS SEFTS IR R 25%(20184F ¢
25% (2018: 25%) (Note) 25%)FT B KB EBIE D) (373,763) (344,503)
Tax effect of share of loss of a joint Eh—EEER
venture HIERE 20,541 3,724
Tax effect of share of profits from RN NG
associates HIETE (1,401) -
Effect of different tax rates of REMEEEER
subsidiaries operating in other NGIENET RS
jurisdictions (2,438) (8,779)
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR A R FIE (8,362) (23,816)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N a]FJE Sz £ KT IB 522 373,280 388,161
Tax effect of deductible temporary R T LARESR AT HL Bk & B 2= R A
difference not recognised HIBTE 28,332 15,989
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & FUARER R IB 518 /I FL 18 24,216 3,710
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRI AR Z BIEE R
not recognised (39,863) -
Overprovision in prior years BT R (8,431) (2,446)
LAT THIRET - 58,461
Tax effect on LAT deductible for PETECEFSHM S LR
calculation of EIT THIEER IR 2,108 (14,615)
Income tax expense for the year FRETERAS 14,219 80,886
Note: The tax rate represents the statutory tax rate of the operations in the fisk : BEMEEAEBABOEBHEREEE

B ETSHDEE DR

jurisdiction where the operations of the Group are substantially based.
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e B RRME

12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a final EEgWMERIRNEE20196 %2018
dividend for each of the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. F12A31BEFERF 2 REKRE °

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREHE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

ARBHEEAREERERNREEER
ZATEEENT

Loss figures are calculated as follows: EREBTENT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Loss [Fi=]
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic ATEERERREEEE
and diluted loss per share (Loss for the B8 (R R RHE AEIEEA
year attributable to owners of the &18)
Company) (1,484,266) (1,458,541)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: e BETRR T E
Adjustment to the shares of profit of SA S (ER RH19)
(As defined in note 19) based on dilution RBEREREAN 2 E#E
of its earnings per share i ) 2 R (24) -
Loss for the purpose of calculating diluted T E SRR EEEEE 2 B8
loss per share (1,484,290) (1,458,541)
Number of shares
REEE
2019 2018
Number of shares gvig =]
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &S ERN K E#EEE 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss Lk N5 E
per share 6,666,972,746 6,116,414,264

@%2019@&2018@1% 31HILFE -
FTEEREEEBT RBRRITELRARF
ﬁifﬂiz,ﬁﬁﬂx%&m&zk RIREEZ
AREES  REATEZEERER
HnRKEERRESESEREER

Do

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the computation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options and the conversion of the
outstanding convertible bonds of the Company since the exercise
of those share options and the conversion of the outstanding
convertible bonds would result in decrease in loss per share.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRKE

Freehold Leasehold Furniture Motor
land improvement and fixture vehicles Total
AAEELE BENERE KEAREE AE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At cost BEA
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H = 1,444 2,928 8,781 13,153
Additions NE - - 358 - 358
Disposals e - = (207) (1,518) (1,725)
Exchange differences BHER - 63 6 136 205
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F12A31B &

1 January 2019 20191 A1H - 1,507 3,085 7,399 11,991
Additions RE - 1,439 372 - 1,811
Acquisition of MSRD (note 39(a)) YeEEMSRD (P E+39(a) 305,486 = = = 305,486
Acquisition of SunTrust (note 39(b)  4XEE SunTrust(FI7£39(0) = 1,373 5,205 = 6,578
Disposals e - = = (832) (832)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB LA (FE39(b)

(notes 39(o) and 40) %40) - (1,336) (5,206) (381) (6,923)
Exchange differences EHER (7,960) (15) (90) 40 (8,025)
At 31 December 2019 R2019512831H 297,526 2,968 3,366 6,226 310,086
Accumulated depreciation 25HTE
At 1 January 2018 "2018%1 718 - 430 2,517 6,601 9,548
Charge for the year FAXH = 433 141 945 1,519
Eliminated on disposals B 1 8 - - (196) (1,408) (1,604)
Exchange differences EHER - 35 3 103 141
At 31 December 2018 and 20185124318 |

1 January 2019 2019F1H1H - 898 2,465 6,241 9,604
Charge for the year FAZH = 859 294 681 1,834
Eliminated on disposals & B 1 85 - - - (791) (791)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE KT8 2 R (F3E39(b)

(notes 39(b) and 40) % 40) - = (83) (354) (437)
Exchange differences EHER - (29) (109) 38 (100)
At 31 December 2019 R2019512531H - 1,728 2,567 5,815 10,110
Carrying values RHEE
At 31 December 2019 R2019F125831H 297,526 1,240 799 41 299,976
At 31 December 2018 2018 12A31H - 609 620 1,158 2,387
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RE MK RERM
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 14. Y% - WERZEE)
Expect for the freehold land, all above items of property, plant and BRoK AERE LN - FHLFTBWE -
equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives and EREEEE RE N {5 {E AT
after taking into account their estimated residual values, using the e R B SE T AT E W LT KA GG
straight-line method, as follows: FlerEE -
Leasehold improvement Over the term of the lease HEMEEE FHHA
Furniture and fixture 3to 5 years RENES 3E54
Motor vehicles 4 years YRE 45
15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. EREEE
Leased
properties
HEmE
RMB’000
ARETT
Carrying amount as at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1 A1H 2 BREE 3,658
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) I B b8 2 /) (FYRE39(0)) 4,184
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) RAE & KB 2 B (i EE39(0)) (4,068)
Additions NE 1,131
4,905
Depreciation charge for the year FAMERS (2,507)
Exchange differences MEH ZER 258
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2019 MR2019F12 431 H 2 iREE 2,656

Expense relating to short-term leases with lease  E278 & B #114 FE A BB BT 75 3R & 2E R
terms end within 12 months of the date of initial 1658 B At 128 A N4&ER v AR E
application of HKFRS 16 BN 1,907

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets, HEEBELEAERBNI L (TRER

excluding short-term leases of low-value assets ~ BEZERHHEE) 6
Total cash outflow for leases HERESMLERE 4,604
Additions to right-of-use assets ERAREEERE 1,131
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15.

16.

178

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 12 to 54 months.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for various
offices and advertising boards. As at 31 December 2019, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term
leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements for
the use of several leased properties for 1 to 3 years. On the date
of lease commencement, the Group recognised RMB1,131,000 of
right-of-use assets and RMB1,131,000 of lease liabilities.

Leases committed

As at 31 December 2019, the Group entered into new leases for
several offices that are not yet commenced, with average non-
cancellable period ranged from 36 to 54 months, the total future
undiscounted cash flows over the non-cancellable period amounted
to RMB6,543,000.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 35 and 46(b).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB2,935,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of RMB2,656,000 as at 31 December
2019. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various commercial units and retail units
under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 1 to 20 years. The leases of
certain retail stores contain variable lease payment that are based
on agreed percentage of sales and minimum annual lease payment
that are fixed over the lease term.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.
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XGHAFRE - M2019F12H31H - MHIE
EHEAEBEUREXHBEZEREERS
2 EEERES -

FRN - AEERFERETHEMFEET L
E3F M ERZE - REERK AR -
NEEERE AEEEAR1,131,000
TRHEEEEAR1,131,0007T °

AHEE

MR2019F12A31H » AEERZEEF
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SEEARI N F36 =541 A - RN AT S
FZARRAURRERELTAARE
6,543,0007T °

EHANEEGE HER BT 2B
RHIEE35246(b) °

HERFIRIDHE
AN - R2019F 12 A31H » BHEREE

B EARY?2 0350007 M iEME AEE
EAREE2,656,0007C - BREFAFAEZ
TEEEZERERSN  BERETHE
MERRZE HELETTHARERRE
R o

BREYFE

AEEREELEHELHL EHEEM
MEEEN  HEBABAXN - HE—
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

e B RRME

16. REW=E ()

As at 31 December

R12A831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Fair value ARE
At 1 January ®1A1H 1,714,200 1,724,900
Change in fair value recognised RIBZANERZ AN BEEE)
in profit or loss (112,800) (10,700)
At 31 December W12A31H 1,601,400 1,714,200

All of the Group’s investment properties held under operating lease
to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The Group engages Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an
independent and professionally qualified valuer not connected
to the Group, to perform the valuation for the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The management of the Company works closely with
the qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The management of the
Company reports the external valuer’s findings to the board of
directors of the Company every six months to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use. The fair values of certain
investment properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid or
accrued operating lease income to avoid double counting.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all investment properties of the
Group have been pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings
and details are set out in note 33.

Income approach operates by taking into account the rental income
of the property derived from the existing tenancy with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential of the tenancy which are then
capitalised into the value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all investment properties are
included in Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

AEBRELEHERERDESREZ
EREMEDERAAEERNGE -
WD BEBREMERAREDENR

AEE DRI 20194 £ 2018F 12 H31H
FEAFFHERA A (AEANEFLE
FEMBEY XS AR GEM S AEE
WEMEZ AR BETHE - ARQAE
BEHEAGERINEHEMBERSE  §
Rl A EMmERM REXBASE - &
AREEESNERAMARRESSE
WONEHEMZAEERUARBRED
EQ/RBERBZRA -

REFMEZRAARER  ZEVWEZH
BRRERER/ERKZAR - ETKR
BEWMEZAABECHABEMERANNKE
AHEEHERANERERE -

MR2019F K20185F 12 A31H » NEEFR
BREMEDEFUEAREBRITE
EZER  BEFBEHRHESS -

WAZRB Bt RBRBEHOEEZYE
HEWA @ WEEFRBEHZEREA
BN RRBEENENEERHRENR
L REE -

M2019FE K20185E12A31H » FTEIRE
YIETARRBRERANREIR
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REMBHRKM T

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d) 16. RWEY (&)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during both W E F A E R I 2 8 B AR
years and there were no transfers among the fair value hierarchy EEEARREER 2 ELEER -

during both years.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of investment EBRKREMERIRARBTEZER
properties:

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity

BRI TAEECEERAYE BRBE

All investment properties  Income approach (31 December The unit rates range from RMB12,823 A significant increase in the

2018: Income approach) (31 December 2018: RMB13,914) rental unit rate used would
to RMB46,442 (31 December 2018: result in a significant increase
RMB49,339) per square meter with in fair value, and vice versa.

weighted average of RMB24,812
(31 December 2018: RMB26,560) per
square meter.

FE&RENE W AE(20185F12A318 - BRESNTEEHKARE12,8237T FARNEMNES AR REE
WASE) (2018%F12A318 : AR¥139147T) BAREKREEM  R2ZK

EAR#46,44270(2018F 12 431 o o
B : AR#49,33070) @ MnEFHHE
SAFFHRARE24,8127T(2018
F12A318 : AR26,5607T) °

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cost and carrying value RAERERERE
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(b))  FE U BRI B A A & A& (B 5E39(b)) 115,371
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) RAIEL &S B A R (T 5E39(0) (115,371)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H -
The goodwill acquired in business combination during the current FAREBEHTESZHETI AR
year was arising from acquisition of SunTrust and its subsidiaries (as ESunTrust R KB A7 (E& R
defined in note 39(b)). 39(b)) M EE 4 °
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e B WK

18. PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSIT FOR NON-CURRENT 18. ik RBEECRNERES
ASSETS
The prepayment and deposit are for the following items: UTEEZENERIES :

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTF T ARETTT

Land use right in the PRC (Note) A HR B A £ b 158 AR A (FfT ) 8,136 8,136
Deposit for property, plant and equipment  #1% - ME M &ZEIR S 785 =
Software development project in Macau PRSI REEIER - 13,146
8,921 21,282
Note: The amount represents prepayment for the land use right for a property project Mizt: ZEeWENPE-BENEEBNTHBER
in the PRC. EZHEMNE -
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE N RIS

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTF T ARETTT

Cost of investments in associates R/ o= 7N
Listed in Hong Kong RER LT 457,678 =
Unlisted 3E b7 20,108 1,745
Shares of post-acquisition results and RGN B EE R H M2 E WA
other comprehensive income (expense), (AR - ek E
net of dividend received 4,584 (1,084)
Exchange difference e H =58 32,149 80
514,519 741
Fair value of listed investment (Note) ETREZ AR E R 435,785 -
Note: As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Group’s interest in its listed MizE: K2019F12A31H » AEEREBZ ARE
associate, Summit Ascent Holdings Limited ("SA") of which its shares on the FERBBRAR (A - ERMHIBERRFT E
Stock Exchange was approximately RMB436 million based on the quoted =2 AR B A AREE436,000,0007T ©
market price available on the Stock Exchange, which is a level 1 input in terms P ERBEESMBREENEISHKAL
of HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. 52 51 BB A B PR S 2 PR

[
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)
The following sets out the particulars of associates of the Group at

31D

ecember 2019 and 2018, which, in the opinion of the directors

of the Company, principally affected the results or net assets of the

19. REE 2 B s ()

AT #2019 KX 2018F 12 A31H A

SEBERRZFBEER

GEE Y ES

BEREARBREREEFE -

Group.
Place of Place of Paidup Attributable equity Proportion of voting  Principal
Name of associates registration operation Legal form share capital interest held by the Group rights held by the Group  business
BEARER i BELY EEFA HRBR  AREREZEGRE FEESERZENE TERR
2019 2018 2019 2018
SeKeYiFL & (Note 1) Japan Japan Limited Company ~ JPY100,000,000 30% 30% 30% 30%  Investment holding
SkoviA@H () A% A% BRAA 100,000,000R RERRK
SA Bermuda Russian Limited Company HK$45,004,446  24.74% - 2474% = (Gaming and hotels
Federation (note 2) (note 2) operation
iy ARE FEIHA BRAR 45,094,446/ T (H3t2) (W2 BYREBEEE
First Oceanic Propety ~ The Phippines  The Philippines  Limited Company PHP198,062,500  24.27% - A421% - Realestate
Management, Inc. management
(‘FOPM’) (Note 39(b)) services and
transportation
services
Fist Oceanic Property ~ 3FE% FRZE ERAT 198,062,500 % FAEERRER
Management, Inc. RREGRE
(FOPMJ) (Kt zE39(o)
Notes: Bt

1.

182

The associate was incorporated in Japan on 27 November 2017. The Group
held 30% equity interest in the associate and the rest 70% equity interest was
held by two independent third parties for both years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held approximately 3.31% equity interest
in SA, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 102), classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

On 23 April 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of
additional 24.68% equity interest in SA for a total consideration of
HK$717,812,540 (equivalent to approximately RMB613,780,000).

The directors of the Company considered that the Group has
significant influence over SA through its representatives on the
board of directors of SA and therefore accounted for SA as an
associate upon the additional acquisition in April 2019 and as at
31 December 2019. Goodwill of approximately HK$84,274,315
(equivalent to RMB72,060,438) is recognised upon the recognition
of SA as an associate in April 2019.

Prior to the acquisition of additional 24.68% equity interest in SA,
the equity interest in SA held by the Group was diluted to 3.29%
from 3.31% due to the exercise of share options granted by SA.
Upon the additional acquisition in April 2019, the financial asset
represents 3.29% equity interest in SA held by the Group has been
derecognised on 23 April 2019 accordingly and approximately
RMB20,681,000 of gain from the derecognition has been recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

After accounting for SA as an associate of the Group, the Group
further acquired 1.80% equity interest of SA from the open
market for a total consideration of approximately HK$45,021,600
(equivalent to approximately RMB38,621,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, due to the exercise
of share options granted by SA subsequent to the acquisition of
29.77% equity interest in SA, the equity interest in SA held by
the Group was diluted from 29.77% to 29.68%. In addition, with
SA’s additional issuance of 300,000,000 shares to not less than
six independent third parties at HK$1.01 each, the equity interest
of SA held by the Group has been further diluted from 29.68%
to 24.74%. During the year ended 31 December 2019, loss from
deemed partial disposal of approximately RMB60,442,000 has
been recognised.

e B RRME

19. REE 2 7 s ()

R2019%F 4 A23H « AEE X UESF
REIN24.68% % - BR(EA/T717,812,540
BIT(HEE R AREE13,780,0007T) °

ARREERE  AEBBEBEENINA
EFe s RRYENATEEATES
W R2019F 4 A EEINREE 1R R Y2019
F12A31ABIAAREAEE A -
R2019F 4 B ERINFA B — & R F)
% CREARELNS4,274,3158 T(HE
RARMET2,060,4387T) ©

PUES S T 2B O 24 . 68% AR RERT » BN TT
FIAFRE BRE  AEEFFIA
fE#E MR 3.31% % EE3.29% - 20194
ARETEINREER  AEBFEIFA
3.20% My S RIEEE 1KR20199F4H 23
HARIETER  REREERZBEHA
R #20,681,0007t 2 R & £2019F 12 A
31H I FERER °

B AAREANEE —HEERRE
REBE— SR AMTS EWEIF
1.80% % #E + BB %) AR45,021,600/%5 7T
(HHER# AR #38,621,0007T) °

HE2019F 128318 IEFE - RUE
IFA29.77 %R EBINAR TFHE TH
B ETE  AEEFEINARER
20.77%#8529.68% ° L4 - ARSI
FizER%1.01% T &8 SN 17300,000,000
D FRLORANBEBILEZ A&
BB YA RER29.68%# — F#ES
24.74% o EE2019F12A31HILFE -
ERRBEERETDEEZEBROAR
#60,442,0007T °
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e B RRME

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 19. REEE N AR ()

The Group engages Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, an independent and professional qualified valuer
not connected to the Group, to perform the valuation of carrying
amount of the Group’s interest in SA as at 31 December 2019.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount of
SA has been determined based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
prepared by the management of the Group covering a 6-year
period, and discount rate of 18.7%. SA’s cash flow beyond the
6-year period are extrapolated using a 4% growth rate with the
cooperation with the Group for introducing a diversified portfolio of
gaming options for the players around the world, the management
of the Group considers the growth rate is reasonable. Other key
assumptions for value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted revenue from gaming
and hotels operations and marketing and promotion expenses,
such estimation is based on the past performance of SA and the
expected market developments by the management. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, impairment loss on interest in SA
of approximately RMB197,728,000 has been recognised.
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e B WK

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 19. REEE N Al R ()
Summarised financial information of material associates ERBEAR M BEERYE
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s PAEBESEREERNR W BEERS
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial ZH M T o TR 75 & KL 2 458
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s EREIRIBEESN G REEAFERNY
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. BT SR ©
All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method in REEREMEHRET  IBEZEHE
these consolidated financial statements. NElfEAEREANR
SA A
31 December
2019
2019F12H31H
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Current assets MEVEE 828,936
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,687,248
Current liabilities RENAE 256,856
Non-current liabilities EmEaE 44,591
From 23 April

2019 (date of
acquisition) to
31 December

2019

H2019%4H23H

(KR RE

20194%12H31H

RMB’000

ARET T

Revenue WA 314,581

Profit for the period B 29,502

Profit for the period attributable to owners of SA S FH#EH A FE(G HR A& 7 17,040

Other comprehensive income for the period HRNEMAEEKA -

Total comprehensive income for the period HAEERA B 17,040
Dividends received from the associate HINE Yt E AR E

during the period -
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e ERRME
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 19. REEE N AR ()
Summarised financial information of material associates BERBEQNTZHBEERBE (&)
(Cont’d)
SA (Cont’d) ZFH (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the LB ERNMEERZESRE Y IER
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the KRB E AR EEREEHE
consolidated financial statements:
31 December
2019
20195 12H31H
RMB’000
AR¥F T
Net assets of SA Iz EEFE 2,214,737
Non-controlling interests of SA’s subsidiaries S B A R 2 FEFE AR RE 2 (343,492)
1,871,245
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in SA  Zx£2 B Sl 7+ A #ERE 25 2 th 5 24.74%
462,946
Exchange difference IE X A=%8 32,140
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in SA AEBRIAER 2 REE 495,086
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mE B mRME
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 19. REEE D _HEm( &)
The financial information of the associates that are not individually 1I B NERZEE QT 2P EE R
material is summarised as follows: AR
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
The Group’s share of profit (loss) and FRAEBERREF (EE) RH A
other comprehensive income (expense) Z2EWRAFX)
for the year 400 (1,047)

As at 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF T ARET T

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest NS B B &R Rz 2 BREIE

in the associates 19,433 741

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20. R—EEE N EERS
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T ARETTT

Cost of unlisted investment FE ETIRE KA 363,621 363,621
Share of post-acquisition losses and FEREEBEREMEEMEZ
other comprehensive expenses (95,958) (14,191)
Exchange difference PE X =% 6,979 2,154
274,642 351,584
Loans to a joint venture (Note) m—REaE AR ERE) 444,309 444,309
Exchange difference P& i, =58 8,829 1,496
727,780 797,389
Note: The loans to a joint venture are interest-free, unsecured and with no fixed Mz : ZER—MEERARERARE BERIFLE
repayment term. Such loans form the Group’s net investment in the joint venture. [E E & A o ﬁ?ﬁg T%ﬁk$’§ BERZEER
RAIZIREFHE ©
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e B RRME

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Cont’d)

The following sets out the particulars of the joint venture of the
Group at 31 December 2019 and 2018 which, in the opinion of

20. R—EEE N aEE(E)
AT 71 AR & B 72 20194 220184 12 A
STAMEGERAFRE MARAEER

the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or net RBREERATEREREBEELE
assets of the Group. EFE -
Attributable equity
Place of registration Paid up interest held by the Group Principal
Name of joint venture and operation Legal form share capital (Note) business
rREREZELRE
RENAER SRREELY EERR BRRA (i) TRER
2019 2018
Gold Yield Enterprises Limited (‘GYE")  Place of registration:  Limited Company Us$2 50% 50%  Operation of an
BVI integrated resort
Place of operation: project in
Vietnam Vietnam
tROEERAR(ER)) i - KERE BRAA 2% 50% 50% REELE TR
REES BERNIER
2EMY - WE
Note: On 28 August 2018, the Group acquired (1) 50% of equity interest in GYE fisE : M2018F8HA28H  AKEEKE(1) SR

through acquisition of the entire equity interest in Star Admiral Limited (“Star
Admiral”) from Suncity International Holdings Limited (“Suncity International”),
a related company wholly owned by Mr. Chau and (2) the loan to GYE of
approximately US$38,740,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB264,388,000)
advanced by Suncity International for a total consideration of RMB628,009,000.
Goodwill of RMB87,185,000 has been recognised and included in interest in
a joint venture. The Group satisfied the consideration by issuing (1) convertible
bond (note 34(a)) with fair value of approximately HK$471,123,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB408,426,000) to Star Hope Limited (“Star Hope”), a
related company wholly owned by Mr. Chau and Better Linkage Limited (“Better
Linkage”), a related company wholly owned by Mr. Lo Kai Bong, a director of the
Company and (2) promissory note (note 24(c)) of approximately HK$253,291,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB219,583,000) to Star Hope, under the
instruction of Suncity International. The principal amount of the convertible
bond and promissory note issued for this acquisition is HK$297,000,000 and
HK$303,000,000, respectively.

Included in the cost of unlisted investment of GYE is goodwill
of approximately RMB89,122,000 as at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: RMB87,185,000).

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements for both years.
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#628,009,0007T * CHREEBARK
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o AEBEABHERERAETIR
RAEH AB471,123,0008 THERHDAR
¥ 408,426,0007T) Z AR &5 (Fi5E34(a))
FTEEAERAR(ER] AkE2E%
5 2 #% A 7)) & Better Linkage Limited
([Better Linkage]) * ANARIEEE/TH L4
2EEA 2B AR RQ)F R ZE (T
24(c)) #7253,291,000/8 T (HHERH AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B mRME
20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Cont’d) 20. R—EEE ARER (&)
Summarised financial information of the joint venture EEDTHBEERBE
Summarised financial information in respect of GYE is set out below. ReBORBERMEFHM T o AT
The summarised financial information below represents amounts MEBERBEReBRBIREBUE R
shown in GYE’s financial statements prepared in accordance with HEAREN P B RERMIRAEE
HKFRSs.
As at 31 December
M12H318
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Current assets TMENE 1,130,683 902,139
Non-current assets FEMENEE 5,885,597 2,898,498
Current liabilities mEE & 2,711,638 1,257,805
Non-current liabilities FmEBAE 3,471,419 1,490,480
Non-controlling interests JEVE R R 283,939 349,184
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: NEEERBENESHEBENTSE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBHEFEY 310,269 574,574
Development right 72 879,249 871,621
Current financial liabilities B & A ECTEFEE fth 0
(excluding other payables) 1,779,598 891,603
Non-current financial liabilities FERBEREETREALM
(excluding other payables) ANEY) 3,210,522 1,265,701

ABHEBERERAT 2010FFEHRE 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Cont’d)

Summarised financial information of the joint venture (Cont’d)

20. R —EEE QAR (E)

BEQAMBERBE (B

From

28 August

For the 2018 (date of
year ended acquisition) to
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
B20184F

BZ2019F 8A288 (&
12A31H HHE)ZE20185F
IHFE 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T

Revenue WA

Loss for the year/period attributable to R AELT HANEE

the owners of GYE (164,330) (29,791)
Other comprehensive income for the year/ &R AFERE BN HM 2

period attributable to the owners of GYE Uk A 796 1,409
Total comprehensive expense for the year/ ©BEA AFEEE BN ER X

period attributable to the owners of GYE ~ #8%8 (163,534) (28,382)

Dividends received from joint venture F/HAEKRAERRIRE

during the year/period

=}
c
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20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Cont’d) 20.

Summarised financial information of the joint venture (Cont’d)
The above loss for the year/period includes the following:

e B WK

R—E&E QT ER(H)
BEATAUBENEE @)
A EFHRBIREEATSA

From
28 August
For the 2018 (date of
year ended acquisition) to
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
B 20184
BZ2019% 8H28H (K
128318 HH)ZE2018F
LHFEE 128318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Depreciation and amortisation e N o (15,479) (4,945)
Interest income FEUBA 178 83
Interest expense FERZ - -
Income tax credit TS % 2,637 910
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the A Bt iﬁ BRI EHERZERE WER
carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the RERN—BHeE AR ERRABE Y

consolidated financial statements:

i

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETIT
Net assets of GYE SREEFE 549,284 703,168
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBRER 2B RERERLLO
interest in GYE 50% 50%
274,642 351,584
Loans to GYE mEEER 444,309 444,309
Exchange difference PE 5 =58 8,829 1,496
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ~ AEBR SRR 2 REE
in GYE 727,780 797,389
ABHEBERERAT 20195 FERE 191
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e MB|MRME
21. DEFERRED TAX 21, EREBIE
The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised in the RAFERBEFEREZRE TR E
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements NERZEEREEE(BR T RE
during the current and prior years are as follows: E N
Revaluation Accelerated  Capitalisation Retirement
of investment LAT tax of interest benefits
properties provision  depreciation expenses obligations Total
Bff  LHEER mE FEXHE
RENE B HERE X BUABNZEY ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AR%TT  ARETT  AR%TRT  ARETT  ARET:
At1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H (318,233) 96,223 (39,717) 84 - (261,643)
Credit (charge) to STABRE)BE
profit or loss 2,675 (12,696) 4,138) (14) - (14,173)
At 31 December 2018 12018124318 (315,558) 83,527 (43,855) 70 - (275,816)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  KEEH B A7l
(note 39(b)) (GEZO) = - = = 4,588 4588
Deemed disposal of RIEHENBAR
subsidiaries (note 39(b)  (FIEE39(0)) - - - = (4,613) 4,613)
Credit (charge) to AR E)EE
profit or loss 28,200 (83,527 (4,113) 4 - (59,444)
Exchange difference ERER - - - = 25 25
At 31 December 2019 #2019512A31H (287,358) - (47,968) 66 - (335,260)
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of BREEHBRRAERANZS - AT A
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax PHEEREMNMEY 2 BELERIBERD
balances for financial reporting purposes: #r
As at 31 December
R12A831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Deferred tax assets EEHRBAEE 66 83,597
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIA B & (335,326) (359,413)

(335,260) (275,816)
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22,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax has not been provided for temporary differences
attributable to the accumulated undistributed profits of PRC
subsidiaries of approximately RMB668,499,000 (31 December
2018: RMB555,170,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB339,967,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB277,380,000), available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will
be expired at various times within a period of five years from the
year of origination.

21.

e B RRME

IE FE 5 IE (48)

I AR BB B A R 2 BET R 9K & T
# N R #668,499,0007T (2018412 A 31
B : AR¥555,170,0007T) FE1E BB 14
ERHTIRELEHRIERE  BALREERE
THZEERMEEREBON R EZE
TR EERBRAEG TR R A RE
@ °

MR2019F12H318 - ASBEHEEARHH
T E 18 49 A R #339,967,0007T (2018
F12A31H : AR¥277,380,0007T) AJ
HHGE R AR F o B PR 2K s i 1 AT
TEORI - ik 3 4 3t B TR S 18 T SRR IE R IR
BE BEBESEELEFERATH
FE?WT\EH%FEEJEﬁ °

INVENTORIES 22. 78
As at 31 December
MW12A831H

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Properties under development BEERPME 248,930 248,930
Properties held for sale FHELEWz 334,253 348,353
Travel related products i 382 48 B 2= o 11,856 10,928
595,039 608,211

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no impairment
loss have been recognised in respect of inventories as the net
realisable value of the properties under development is higher (2018:
higher) than the carrying amount.

The properties held for sale were located in the PRC. Properties
held for sale which are expected to be recovered in more than
twelve months after the end of each reporting period are classified
under current assets as it is expected to be realised in the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

REZE2019%F K2018F 12 A31H IL4F
E WERTERIREESE  HTHEB
BRI E 2 ATEIEFESN (20185 ¢
SR EEEE -

FIELEMEGURFE - BHARE

BERREEBT —EARKDZHF5E
HENENBRRBEE - HAEHA
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e B RRME

22.

23.

INVENTORIES (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2019, certain portion of properties under
development with carrying value of approximately RMB47,000,000
have been seized by the court in the PRC for a legal proceeding
with an independent third party contractor of the Group’s
construction site. The contractor filed such legal proceeding against
the Group for the construction payable of approximately RMB44
million, of which RMB19 million is recorded as trade payables
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at 31
December 2019. Based on the view that the legal proceeding was
still in progress and with reference to the legal opinion obtained
from the Company’s PRC lawyer, the management considered that
the likelihood for outflow of resources of the Group was remote. As
a result, the management considered that no provision in relation
to the remaining balance of RMB25 million was necessary as at 31
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain inventories have been
pledged to secure the Group’s other borrowings and details are set
out in note 33.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

22. ZE (&)

R2019F 128318 * F A 2 AR —
REAEEREENWE —ZBIYE=H
ERBBZFAEHBRYPYWEZET
o - HEREELH A AR47,000,000
TC e X GABELERE TR EMNKIEL
AR#E44,000,000c 8 AL EETHEE
SREA 0 Hep AR¥19,000,000 T A&
B 2019F 12 B31H 2458 T 5 RE 5
EREMNER - ERERRAFANEE
17 WRBREBRAQRPEEMERZE
ZER TEERALAEBTRAES
TEFRRE - Atk - EEERBR2019
F12A31BRBELERB T EHRARE
25,000,000 {E B -

MN2019F K2018F 128318 » 5T F&
BEEFUEAAEEEMEE ZER -
BRAFFIBENKIFESS ©

23. BUYRA R H B R AR

31 December

R12A831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFIT

Trade receivables (Note) JFE LT B R (BfT )
— contracts with customers -BE&E4 57,715 64,576
- operating leases - REHEE 1,878 222
59,593 64,798
Allowance for impairment VERERER ] - -
59,593 64,798
Other receivables H i jE IR 3,665 4,374
Other deposits Hibite 7,249 7,130
Prepayments TR 2,695 2,360
73,202 78,662
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e B RRME

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Note: Amount represents the trade receivables from sales of properties, rental income,

23. BRI R H WA R ALK
(%)

Wi SEEXREMEHE  B2URA - BERES

hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services and travel agency
services. Proceeds receivable in respect of sales of properties are settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the sales and purchase agreements.
Buyers are not granted with any credit period for both years. For the proceeds
receivables in respect of rental income from lease of investment properties, no
credit periods are granted for both years. For the hotel and integrated resort
general consultancy services, a credit period ranging from 0 to 15 days is
granted. For the travel agency services, the Group generally allows a credit
period of 30 days to its customers.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables based on the dates of
the properties delivered, dates of check-in and invoice dates of both hotel and
integrated resort general consultancy services and property leasing at the end of
each reporting period which approximated to the revenue recognition dates.

BB 2 — AR BRI AR 7S A R ki R I2 AR 2
FEUERR © SHEME 2 BUGIATDRIZEE
R AR - EARMEFEHEER
EREEY - pEEREMEEEZHERA
BRZEEHIET S - MEFEHRERLEER
o BOBE REFAEBN 2 —RERRBM
5 BRENTOEI5AZEEY - siRBERRE
REME @ AEE—RETHEEPORZER
H e

T RREREMREEERIZDERN B
H - SR B A BB R R A R 2 —ARER
BRI R MERE 2 BHF A H(EEARER
BAEE) 25 ZBREDIT ©

As at 31 December

M12A8318
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Within 30 days 308 & 56,257 62,957
31-90 days 31EZE90H 870 129
91-180 days 91BZ180A 544 -
Over 180 days 23181800 1,922 1,712
59,593 64,798

As at 31 December 2019, approximately RMB2,338,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB1,712,000) of trade receivables from sales of travel related products and
provision of hotel and integrated resort general consultancy services are past
due for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group has
not held any collateral over the trade receivable in respect of hotel and integrated
resort general consultancy services.

As at 31 December 2019, approximately RMB998,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB129,000) of proceeds receivables from lease of properties are past due for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The rental deposits are
held as collateral over the proceeds receivable in respect of rental income from
lease of properties.

For credit term reviews of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit initially granted up
to the end of the reporting period.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL which
uses a lifetime ECL, trade receivables have been assessed on individual basis
and, the directors of the Company considered that ECL for the trade receivables
is not significant as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 due to the high internal
credit rating of these debtors.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

201912 A31 1 + gt 84 &S ik B2 MR &= T A
RRHEE RiGEE RN 2 —REM RS 2 &
W BRI 4 A R#2,338,0007T (2018412 A 31
A AR¥1,712,0007m) @8 - EAREEL X
EER BB R - AEBEWEEE REE
BBz — R R 2 U AR 25 A AR
e

MR2019F12A318 * st ERE 2 KB
A AR #998,0007T (2018F 128318 :
AR¥E129,0007T) 8 8 + 1B AN 5 F S R VB H R
BEEERE HeReNEAEENEELEY
WA B REZ BUFTS RIE 2 1R & i #
ﬁ °

B ERUERZEERRAME  AKEZE
BREEMGRRL ANRERENREZERE
WIEREEB R Z EMES -

REEERREERE  AEEEEEERK
EFaEEEEERE EFRELRAMGES
TR AR R BT B B AR

RNEB R BBV RS ELF oW B IR
ERPEEBREEAZBESREESE) &
AR B @RI ETE - MAAREERAR
2019F Kk2018F 12 A31 A IR BR 3k 2 TEHi{
BEEBYTBEX REAZREBEBAZAL
FEFL AR -
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e B RRME

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)/LOANS FROM 24.
DIRECTORS/RELATED COMPANIES/NON-

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

(@) Amount due to a director
The amount due to a director of approximately RMB5,002,000
(31 December 2018: RMB4,893,000) as at 31 December
2019 represents the HK$ denominated promissory note
(“2016 Promissory Note”) of principal amount of approximately
HK$5,584,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB4,676,000
as at 31 August 2016) which is non-interest bearing and
repayable after two years from 31 August 2016 (date of
issuance).

Movement of the amount due to a director during the years is

W (M ES BBAR,*
BERBRRREREES BB
DR FERBRER

(a)

B —RESHIE
R2019F 12 A1 HEN —REER
T8 #) AR #5,002,0007T (20184 12
A31H : AR#4,893,0007T) f5 7K
458 495,584,000 7T (201648 B
S1HBEERHARY4,676,0007T)
Z A TTERHE 2 & A EE ([20164F
EHBE])  ZEZEBETFERA
201648 A31H (317 H B B M -
B8R -

FARN-—RESZHHEZEHMN

as follows: T
RMB’000
ARBTFIT
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1 H 4,668
Exchange difference MEHZER 225
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A831H 4,893
Exchange difference MEHZER 109
At 31 December 2019 A2019%12831H 5,002
Amount represented as: SREEV A
At 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Current M ED
Non-current (Note) FEED (FHEE)

5,002 -
- 4,893

5,002 4,893

Note: On 8 May 2018, the Company and the director entered into an
amendment letter to extend the maturity date of the 2016 Promissory
Note from 31 August 2018 to 31 August 2020 and therefore the entire
balance is reclassified to non-current liabilities as at 31 December 2018.
Save for the extension of the maturity date, all other terms of the 2016
Promissory Note shall remain unchanged.
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e B RRME

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)/LOANS FROM
DIRECTORS/RELATED COMPANIES/NON-

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)
(b) Amounts due from directors

24. EW(EMES BB LE¥F
ERBRRFEREEE BB
DEFERBRRERE)

(b) EBHREZNER

Amounts due from directors of approximately RMB32,000 at
31 December 2019 (831 December 2018: RMB368,000) are in
trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and recoverable within
30 days.

The amounts due from directors and an aging analysis of such
balances presented based on the invoice dates at the end
of each reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates are as follows:

R2019F 12 A31 HEWE EHE
#) AR #32,0007T (20184 12 A 31
H: AR¥368,0000) BE 54
g miKi BB RANI0A AU
@ o

WERES S ETES S8 T
I 49 (52 4% W A HE 32 L 1) 60
W B R R SRR 5
#

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Within 30 days 30R A

32 368

Amounts due from directors are within the credit period as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The average age of the amounts due from directors is 30 days
in 2019 (31 December 2018: 30 days).

The Group has not provided any allowance for credit loss of
amounts due from directors for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 as the entire amount is immaterial.

R2019F 2018512 A31H » EUk
SEEFERNEEHRREA -

AEBUWERZEEHIFTEEME
G ° 2019F FEUR E EFTEA T 1T
IR# A30H (2018412 A31H : 30
H) e

HZE2019% K2018F 12 A31H ILF
[E - AEBEWESEWESEFRIE
REMEESERE BRr2HS
BTERK -
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e B RRME

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)/LOANS FROM
DIRECTORS/RELATED COMPANIES/NON-

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)
(c) Amounts due to related companies

198

(c)

The amounts due to related companies as at 31 December

2019 and 2018 are as follows:

24 EW(EMES BB LTE¥F
BERBRRFEREES BB
DEFERBRRER @)

FEFBARE D T FRIE
20195 K 2018F 12 A31H 2 FEf+
AR A TIRIENT ¢

At 31 December

M12831H8
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Non-trade related: FE S :
2018 Promissory Note (Note (i) 20185 A H Z 1 (i aE()) 256,023 229,000
Accrued interest of 2018 2018 # H Bk < FERT &
Promissory Note 1,869 1,824
Accrued interest of loans from RE—MEHMARERZ BT
a related company A E 32,128 2,834
Trade related (Note (ii)) & 5 FE 78 (T (i) 50,776 47,445
340,796 281,103
Less: Amount due within one year B —FRE SR (308,668) (52,103)
Amount due after one year —FRHEReR 32,128 229,000

Notes:

)

On 28 August 2018, the Company issued a HK$ denominated promissory
note (“2018 Promissory Note”) of principal amount of HK$303,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB262,677,000) to a related company,
controlled by Mr. Chau, as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
the entire equity interest of Star Admiral and shareholder’s loan owed by
Star Admiral.

The 2018 Promissory Note is unsecured, interest bearing at 2% per
annum and repayable after two years from the date of issuance and
therefore is classified as current liabilities in 2019.

The fair value of the 2018 Promissory Note is approximately
HK$253,291,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB219,583,000) on the
date of issuance, calculated based on the present value of the principal
amount plus accrued coupon interest over the expected life of the 2018
Promissory Note. The prevailing market rate of 2018 Promissory Note is
11.67% per annum.
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([2018F A AER]) - ERWEEEZ
2HRERESERBRREZBERZ IS
RAE -

2018F AN EBAEEM - RFEFE
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)/LOANS FROM
DIRECTORS/RELATED COMPANIES/NON-

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)

(c) Amounts due to related companies (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

)

(i)

(Cont’'d)

Movement of the 2018 Promissory Note during the years is as follows:

e B RRME

24. EW(EMES BB LE¥F
BERBRRREREES HH
DEFERBRRERE)

(c) FESEARE LD RFNIH (F)
BEE - ()

0

€]

FR2018F AL RIFNFEMAT ¢

RMB’000

ARETT

At 1 January 2018 H2018F1A1H -
Issuance during the year FRNETT 219,583
Imputed interest expense (note 8) (HEF B AL (FTFES) 7,117
Exchange difference [EHZR 2,300
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31H 229,000
Imputed interest expense (note 8) HEF B A (FIFE8) 21,514
Exchange difference [ N =58 5,509
At 31 December 2019 A2019%F12H31H 256,023

Effective from 1 January 2019 and 2018, the Group has entered into a
management service agreement (“MS Agreement”) with Sun City Gaming
Promotion Company Limited (“Sun City Gaming Promotion”), a related
company which is wholly owned by Mr. Chau. Pursuant to the MS
Agreement, Sun City Gaming Promotion will provide certain management
and administrative services to the Group at a fixed monthly fee.

On 6 February 2017, the Group has entered into a hotel accommodation
procurement agreement (“HAP Agreement”) and ferry ticket supply
agreement (“FTS Agreement”) with Sun City Gaming Promotion. Revised
HAP Agreement has been entered into between the Group and Sun City
Gaming Promotion on 15 May 2017 in order to revise the original annual
cap of hotel accommodation procurement.

Pursuant to the HAP Agreement, the Group will procure the hotel
accommodation products from Sun City Gaming Promotion for its
business in relation to the travel related products and services. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group procures the hotel
accommodation products from Sun City Gaming Promotion in aggregate
of approximately RMB472,115,000 (2018: RMB476,539,000).

Pursuant to the FTS Agreement, Sun City Gaming Promotion will
purchase the ferry tickets from the Group.

Upon signing the HAP Agreement, the Group engaged Sun City Gaming
Promotion to follow up the collection of the trade receivables in respect
of the hotel accommodation products. During the year ended 31
December 2019, Sun City Gaming Promotion collected approximately
RMB578,197,000 (2018: RMB596,662,000) from the customers.
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BEEERBEER - REE2019F12
A31BLEFE  AEEBEABHERF
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e B RRME

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)/LOANS FROM
DIRECTORS/RELATED COMPANIES/NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

(e)

200

Amounts due to related companies (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

(ii) (Cont’'d)
The amount is in trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable

within 30 days. An aging analysis of such balance is presented based on
the invoice dates at the end of each reporting period as follows:

24 EW(EMES BB LTE¥F
BERBRRFEREES BB
DEFERBRRER @)

(c)

FE 1 B Rk 1 R R 0E ()
i - (4

iy  #&)
ZeBABEHUHE  EIER 22 KA
MB0H AUE o TFIZ2F|REmE KR
ERBZHHNZERORERDIT

At 31 December

M12A31A8
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T AR®TT
Within 30 days 30H A 50,776 47,445

Loans from non-controlling shareholders/amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders

The loans from non-controlling shareholders are secured
by a freehold land, interest bearing at 2.4% per annum and
repayable on 21 July 2020.

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are in non-
trade nature, interest-free, unsecured and repayable on 21
July 2020.

Loans from a related company

2019 Loan 1

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a loan agreement dated 8 April 2019 with
Star Hope with total loan facility of HK$1,500,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,343,700,000) (the “2019
Loan 1”). HK$978,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB846,457,000 at the drawdown date) has been drawn
down by the Group as at 31 December 2019. The amount is
unsecured, interest bearing at 3.5% and repayable after 60
months from the date of the loan agreement, and therefore
the amount is classified as non-current liabilities as at 31
December 2019.
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e B RRME

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)/LOANS FROM
DIRECTORS/RELATED COMPANIES/NON- ERERRARE KEES B

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d) AR FERBRRER(E)
(e) Loans from a related company (Cont’d) (e) RE—HEEATNERGE)

24. EW(EMES BB LE¥F

2019 Loan 1 (Cont’d)

As the amount represents loan from a related company
which is controlled by Mr. Chau to finance the operations
of the Group and the interest rate charged on 2019 Loan 1
is below prevailing market interest rate, imputed interest of
such loan upon initial recognition of RMB422,373,000 based
on the difference between the prevailing market rate and the
coupon interest rate has been charged to capital reserve as
deemed contribution from a shareholder for the year ended 31
December 2019. The prevailing market rate of 2019 Loan 1 is
20.29% per annum.

2019 Loan 2

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a loan agreement dated 30 October 2019
with Star Hope with total loan facility of HK$1,750,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,567,650,000) (the “2019
Loan 2”). HK$170,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB152,796,000 at the drawdown date) has been drawn
down by the Group as at 31 December 2019. The amount is
unsecured, interest bearing at 3.5% and repayable after 60
months from the date of the loan agreement, and therefore
the amount is classified as non-current liabilities as at 31
December 2019.

As the amount represents loan from a related company
which is controlled by Mr. Chau to finance the operations
of the Group and the interest rate charged on 2019 Loan 2
is below prevailing market interest rate, imputed interest of
such loan upon initial recognition of RMB85,925,000 based
on the difference between the prevailing market rate and the
coupon interest rate has been charged to capital reserve as
deemed contribution from a shareholder for the year ended 31
December 2019. The prevailing market rate of 2019 Loan 2 is
23.97% per annum.
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2019F B51(4&)
ARZRIEARAE — X AL EE
FIBBERRIZER  UBEFAE
B &% R2019F B K17 Fj =
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ZEMERZ MEREAE)EHE2019F
12A31A L FEEREARE
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22 BTN HFFIE F23.97% °

201




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)/LOANS FROM
DIRECTORS/RELATED COMPANIES/NON-

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)
(e) Loans from a related company (Cont’d)

202

2018 Loan

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into a loan agreement dated 27 July 2018 with Star Hope
with total loan facility of HK$400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB358,320,000) (the “2018 Loan”). During the
year ended 31 December 2018, HK$275,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB240,077,000 at the drawdown date)
was drawn down by the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2019, HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,520,000 at the drawdown date) has been further drawn
down by the Group. The amount is unsecured, interest bearing
at 3.5% and repayable after 60 months from the date of the
loan agreement, and therefore the amount is classified as non-
current liabilities as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018.

As the amount represents loan from a related company
which is controlled by Mr. Chau to finance the operations
of the Group and the interest rate charged on 2018 Loan is
below prevailing market interest rate, aggregated imputed
interest of two drawdowns of loans upon initial recognition
were RMB81,972,000 (2018: RMB80,436,000) calculated at
difference between the prevailing market rate and the coupon
interest rate has been charged to capital reserve as deemed
contribution from a shareholder as at 31 December 2019 and
2018, respectively. The prevailing market rate of 2018 Loan is
13.21% per annum.
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)/LOANS FROM
DIRECTORS/RELATED COMPANIES/NON-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)
(e) Loans from a related company (Cont’d)
Movement of the loans from a related company during the

U]

years is as follows:

e B RRME

24. EW(EMES BB LE¥F

BERERRFBRAEE B

DEFERBRRER ()

() RE—RIBIHEA R EM ()
FRRE - MHBARNERZEH
T -

2019 Loan 1 2019 Loan 2 2018 Loan Total

20195871 20195 €72  2018FEEF @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT AR®ETFT AREFT

At 1 January 2018 201841 F1H - - - -

Advance during the year FRBFK - = 240,077 240,077
Deemed contribution from BIE—ZRFEE

a shareholder - - (80,436) (80,436)

Imputed interest expense (note 8)  HEF B 51X (FfzE8) = = 4,273 4,273

Exchange difference BHESE - - 549 549

At 31 December 2018 720181231 H - - 164,463 164,463

Advance during the year FRBF 846,457 152,796 4,520 1,003,773
Deemed contribution from BIE—RZRFEE

a shareholder (422,373) (85,925) (1,536) (509,834)

Imputed interest expense (note 8) A E RIS B (Ff518) 37,220 1,752 13,434 52,406

Exchange difference ERESR 15,116 (225) 3,890 18,781

At 31 December 2019 120195127318 476,420 68,398 184,771 729,589

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder

The amount is non-trade in nature, interest-free and
recoverable on demand as at 31 December 2019.
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e B RRME

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

25. AR

31 December

EFt ABENEREE

31 December

2019 2018
201945 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR¥ET T
Financial assets mandatorily measured REIEA R ERFABRTTERN
at FVTPL: TREE
Listed securities held for trading: HIEEB 2 LHESH
Equity securities listed in the PREE R PT T HI AR AN 35 5
Stock Exchange - 44,934
26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK 26. SIKFRITERZREIE
DEPOSITS (XN
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits for the following EEFRITEFREARTIEN ZF
purposes: b
At 31 December
R12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Securities for banking facilities (note 33) TT BB 2 R (I 5E33) 6 6
Securities for mortgage loan facilities TETAESEMEES 2
granted by the banks to buyers of the ?;z?%% A E 2 R (HEE41)
Group’s properties (note 41) 298 297
Securities for the travel agency business 2t P4t fErg 2 Ik iE R IR 215 K
to the suppliers and license granted by RS E B T 2 R ER
the local regulatory bodies 11,771 7,068
12,075 7,371
Amounts represented as: SR A
Current M ED 304 303
Non-current (Note) FEmEh (B aE) 11,771 7,068
12,075 7,371

Note: The amounts are placed for rendering travel agency services and the entire

balances are not expected to be received within one year and therefore are

classified as non-current assets.
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26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK

DEPOSITS (Cont’d)
At 31 December 2019, the pledged bank deposits are subjected to
floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 1.5% (31 December 2018:
0% to 0.3%) per annum.

At 31 December 2019, the restricted bank deposits represent
(il an advance instalment of a loan repayment as requested by a
bank and it cannot be withdrawn prior to the approval of the bank
amounted to approximately RMB573,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB3,068,000); and (ii) certain balances frozen by the relevant local
bureau in the PRC amounted to approximately RMB22,969,000 (31
December 2018: nil) (the “Frozen Bank Accounts”)

The Group did not recognise any provision as a result of the Frozen
Bank Accounts as at 31 December 2019 as the management of the
Group is still in the process of understanding the incidents resulted
in Frozen Bank Accounts and cannot estimate the corresponding
financial impacts.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank balances and cash are
denominated in the following currencies:

26.

27.

e B RRME

SIEFIRTERZREIET
ER(E)

MR2019F12H318 » B BIBRITFERIL
FRBNFO%E.5%(20184F 12 A 31
H : 0%ZE0.3%) K F B FIEFT B o

R2019F 12831 H » B HIRITFHIE
(BRITESk —2BRERZENSHA
H Rl Rz RITHEERTIRELZ R A
R#573,0000(2018F 12318 : AR
#£3,068,0007T) : K (ii)# B FEEE & b F6
PIRE 2 & T AR 22,969,000
T(2018%E12 A31H : &) ([ R ERTT
FAal e

REE W EERERLERITEOR2019
FI2A3 BB A WEE  RER
AEEEEB(NE T RERBRERTT
FOZZEEMN  ReelhrtiEEM K
28 o

BITHBRES
KB RT R RE S OHREEL TSI
A

At 31 December

M12831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
RMB AR 3,918 54,962
Uss$ I 16 16
HKS$ ABTT 65,251 32,249
Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) SR ([SRPIHE ) 743 5,441
JPY B 7,587 =
PHP W= 175,882 -
253,397 92,668

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to the relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2019, bank balances carry interest at prevailing
deposit rates which ranged from 0% to 3.60% (31 December 2018:
0% to 0.35%) per annum.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

BARBEHERERERBINE AR Z
FIEFHERTERRASELPEA
38 5T 7P B BT AR e 2 S I 16 4 B 1R 15
KB -

MR2019F12A318 © SRITEBRIREITF
RAEFGENF0%ZE3.60% (2018512
A31H : 0%%E0.35%)5t & °
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e B RRME

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28. B IR R H M EAK

At 31 December

MW12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF T ARETT

Trade payables (Note (a)) FE S BRFR (FF 5% () 57,107 65,762
Other payables and accruals (Note (b)) FL At 15 5% I FE R R IE (P 5% (0)) 120,040 147,524
Interest payables FERT 72 20,302 32,191
Other tax payables H fth fE TR I8 11,504 23,177
208,953 268,654
Notes: B EE
(a)  The credit period of trade payables ranges from 30 to 180 days. (a) ENERZEEHNTFI0HE180H -
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The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the end of each reporting
period based on invoice dates:

ATARERERRZERANEN 2 AR
K BRER AT -

As at 31 December

A12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBF T
0-90 days 0ZF90H 12,574 19,674
Over 90 days 90H M E 44,533 46,088
57,107 65,762
As at 31 December 2019, there is an accrual of RMB15,974,000 (31 December (o) M2019F12A318 ' st ABFRBZ %5

2018: RMB31,725,000) which was included in the accruals related to a landslide
accident occurred nearby the Group’s properties held for sale in Longgang
District, Shenzhen during the year ended 31 December 2018. Subsequent to
the landslide accident, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group received a notice
from Longgang District Government (the “District Government”), under which
the District Government required the wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
to formulate and execute an emergency plan and reinforcement plan for the
affected area (the “Maintenance Work”).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has entered into several
construction contracts with independent third parties for the Maintenance Work
in accordance with the requirements of the District Government. Based on
the contract, the Maintenance Work was expected to be completed into three
phases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)
(b)  (Cont'd)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group completed the first
and second phases of the Maintenance Work, with an aggregated cost of
approximately RMB16,822,000 (2018: completed first phase with the cost of
RMB1,071,000). However, due to certain unfavourable conditions during the
Maintenance Work, the third phase of the Maintenance Work is expected to be
completed by the end of 2020 with consent from the District Government.

Since the wholly owned subsidiary of the Group was instructed by the District
Government to execute the Maintenance Work during the year ended 31
December 2018, accrual of Maintenance Work for the remaining phases of
approximately RMB31,725,000 had been recognised during the year ended 31
December 2018 with reference to the construction contracts entered into with
independent third parties.

No additional accrual has been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2019 after reviewing the terms of construction contracts and the status of the
Maintenance Work.

29. PROVISIONS FOR POTENTIAL CLAIMS

The balance represents the provisions for potential claims which
include refund of the deposit and compensation to the buyers of the
properties held for sale in relation to the breach of terms stipulated
in the sales and purchase agreements entered into between the
Group and the buyers.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a bank (the “Bank”)
initiated an enforcement of a civil claim (the “Bank Claim”) against
the Group including the seizure of certain properties. The Group
then received a notice from EBR & RZIITHFARZER (the
“Intermediate Court”) in connection with an enforcement civil ruling
(the “dudgement”) relating to the Bank Claim.

Certain properties under pre-sale arrangement have been seized
by the Intermediate Court due to the Bank Claim with immediate
effect in accordance with the Judgement. As a result, the Group
failed to fulfil the obligations stipulated in the sales and purchase
agreements within the predetermined period of time and is liable
to the claims for the return of pre-sale deposits and instalment
payments made by the buyers and compensation stipulated in the
sales and purchase agreements. With reference to the legal opinion
from the PRC lawyer, the estimated provisions for potential claims
were approximately RMB42,082,000.

e B RRME

28. FEAY BRI H £t PB4 K ()

M« (8)
o) &

HE2019F12A31HIEEE  AEEE R
REETHEE R B ARADARK
16,822,0007T (20184F : FEpk 5 —HA Z BN A
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HRAEE2ENBARERBFEIAEBE
2018F 12 A1 HILFEHITHETIE - 8T
RN #EE T{EREST RUIE K AR #31,725,000
TTEREZ2018F12A31A L FELEHE
NE=FRIMMBRESNTER -

PR BEANZ GRAREETEZEER
HZE2019F12A31 B L FE B EEREINE
HEZ¢EE

20. BERERE

BB EBERERE  HEPBREFEH
EMEZETHRERAEHBREHFTL
ZEEWMBRRAZGRMEEZRER
Bl & B8 -

HZE2017F12A31BILEE - —MER
TRITDMAEERLHTRERE
(TRITRE)) BREEHETYE - &%
EERBWEEREFITHREARER
(AR N BBAITETREZRER
TEREE(HRD 2B -

BELZHET 2 THEERERE AR
BB A 2 SRITREW R AREPLEH ©
EHit - AEEEIRBETHERNETE
EHFTACER REFEAEES
Rz REBERS RS HNRZRE
IREERZETHREZEE - K2EH
BHEMZEAEER  BEREZHHE
BH A AR 42,082,0007T °
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e B RRME

20.

30.

208

PROVISIONS FOR POTENTIAL CLAIMS (Cont’d)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, all seized properties
were released by the Intermediate Court. The Group has then
performed all obligations stipulated in the sales and purchase
agreements, and reversal of provision of approximately
RMB19,518,000 was recognised in profit or loss. The remaining
balance represents the probable exposure of which the Group
is still subject to the claims from the buyers due to the failure of
fulfilling the obligations within the time frame stipulated in the sales
and purchase agreements.

No claims from the buyers have been received by the Group during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The movement of the provisions for potential claims is shown as
follows:

20.

BEREREE
HZE2018F12A31 B ILEE - RAER
ERKREREHDE AEEEEZER
TEEHHIBZAEELT LR ER
EREFERD Y ARE19,518,0007T °
BT ERIEAEERREREBEHER]
ArEBRABTEAMERERREY
% A BE R B 0 o

REE2019F K2018F12A31H L4
B BEFERAEERTEERE -

BEREBRERZBEIIMT

RMB’000

ARETIT

At 1 January 2018 201851 H1H 42,082
Credit to profit or loss T AER (19,518
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 20184 & 2019%F12 A31H 22,564

PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group received an
enforcement civil ruling (the “Judgement”) from Shenzhen Baoan
District People’s Court (the “Court”) relating to the enforcement of a
civil claim (the “Individual Claim”) by an individual (the “Individual”),
an independent third party to the Group. The Individual Claim
relates to a lease agreement in respect of a unit, which forms
part of the Group’s investment properties (the “Unit”) for the lease
term from 26 September 2011 to 24 October 2062, as well as the
damages arising from the non-performance of the lease agreement.
Certain investment properties of the Group with fair value of
approximately RMB533,000,000 were seized for the period from 10
May 2019 to 9 May 2022. Pursuant to the Judgement, the Group is
liable to compensate the loss arising from the non-performance of
the lease agreement during the period from the inception of lease to
25 June 2019 amounting to approximately RMB1,595,000.
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RE KRR
30. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Cont’d) 30. BEFFAZ B (E)
In the opinion of the lawyer in the PRC, it is probable that the Group FEEMRE  AEBEBERAEUEEER
will be liable to compensate the loss of the Individual Claim and FRERAREZBAERRAFGEER
the loss arising from the non-performance for the remaining lease REBTHERREEEZIEBX 282
period with reference to the estimated future rental income from EBURFAREER 2 MEETARAKESHK
the Unit for the remaining lease period. Provision of approximately A ° 201912 A31 B REE20194F
RMB27,800,000 has been recognised as of and during the year 12A31ALEGFE ' EERBEHEHARE
ended 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: nil). 27,800,0007C (201812 A31H : 4##) -
31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. aHEE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Sales of properties HE W 127,197 146,832
Hotel and integrated resort general B JE KRG E BN 2 —RER RS
consultancy services income WA - 1,312
127,197 148,144
Analysed for reported purposes as: REBBBRIWAE
Current liabilities nBBE 127,197 148,144
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31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 3. EHNEEE)
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in TREIINAFERRMAELEE S L
the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BEMEENIER -

Hotel and

integrated

resort general

consultancy

Sales of services

properties income

BIEREE

ERfz—K

HEME BEERRBBA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARMBT

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F12A31HLFE
Revenue recognised that was included STAFVIEHNBEARERNBA
in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year 19,635 1,312

Hotel and

integrated

resort general

consultancy

Sales of services
properties income
BIE RERE

BBz —%

HEWE  ERRBEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBT T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F12H31HILFEE
Revenue recognised that was included FFAFE N BELESRERHEA
in the contract liability balance at the

beginning of the year 171,430 -
During the current year, none of the revenue recognised relates to RAFE - BED BRI A BT B
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior periods. BERTTZEBOEEER -
As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted to approximately MR2018F 1818 » BHEBHAARE
RMB288,480,000. 288,480,0007T °
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RE KRR
32. RECEIPT IN ADVANCE 32. FEUNBRFX
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, receipt in advance represents R2019%F K 2018F 12 4318 + FARERK
prepaid rental and management fee from tenants of the Group’s EEEASEEREYENES WA TE
investment properties. The entire receipt in advance is expected to NEERERE - TAEWERXBEHR
be released to profit or loss within one year. —FRNEEERE o
33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 33. /|ITRHEMEE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTF T ARBET T

Bank borrowings — secured IRITIEE - HEKH 365,000 405,000
Other borrowings HMEER

- Secured - B 216,442 193,252

- Unsecured — I 278,000 87,000

494,442 280,252

859,442 685,252
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33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 33. |ITRHEHMEE ()
The maturity profile of bank borrowings is as follows: RITEEZHHBESBRNAT ¢

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBET T

Within one year —FN 80,000 40,000
More than one year but not BE—FETHBBME
exceeding two years 30,000 40,000
More than two years but not AR FEETHEBRT
more than five years 90,000 130,000
Over five years REE 165,000 195,000
365,000 405,000
Less: Repayable on demand due to breach & : FARE R E 2 mBR Tk
of loan covenants (Note) B (HE) (55,000) =
Amounts due for settlement within —FAEBEMNHFRIE
one year (shown under current Gl EREAER)
liabilities) (25,000) (40,000)
(80,000) (40,000)
Amounts due for settlement after one year — 414 | HIE N B 285,000 365,000
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019, a wholly owned subsidiary of Mzt : B Z=2019F12A31BLLFE  A5E—H
the Group breached the covenants of a bank borrowing due to the seize of 2EWBRARIENREN2019F12A31B A
investment properties with fair value of approximately RMB533,000,000 at 31 REXH A ARES533,000,0007T 2 EWE
December 2019 by the Court (note 30), which led to an event of default for such WA EH (M E30)MERRITHEERNR
bank borrowing. Accordingly, the bank borrowing amounting to RMB55,000,000 o OBHBEBHRTEENENSEH -
is reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities as of 31 December It - R2019F 128310 » ZRITEEARE
2019. On discovery of the breach, the Company has informed the relevant bank 55,000,000 E#IERBEEEFDEER
and commenced negotiations to waive such covenant and the negotiation has BEE RBEBELRELE  AQREEM
not been concluded as at 31 December 2019. As of the date of this report, BERT  URHAERUREEHERE -
the Group has not obtained written waiver from the relevant bank for strict ERER2019F 12 A31BNAEE - HEARRK
compliance on the relevant financial covenant requirements. HERE AEENABESERRITEENRE

IR ST B R B R RE
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33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in RMB at the end of each reporting period.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the bank borrowings are as follows:

e B WK

33. |ITRHMEER (F)
RERERR - ARERITIEENKRE
BEAARKE -

ZERTEEZBEBRNE(TREFERRTH
ME)AT

As at 31 December

2019

MA12831H
2018

Effective interest rate per annum:

Variable-rate bank borrowings

115% of People’s Bank of
China benchmark rate
(“PBOC benchmark rate”)

115% of People’s Bank of
China benchmark rate
(“PBOC benchmark rate”)

(equivalent to 5.64%) (equivalent to 5.64%)
BRFERZE HEIARBITEEFRIR A RERITEAEF K
PR EBITEE (TRITEERR]) 2 ([RITEERE]) 2
115% (% 45.64%) 115% (% 505.64%)
The maturity profile of other borrowings is as follows: HtEEZEHEEBEROT
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Within one year —FN 293,442 203,252
More than one year but not BE—FETBBME
exceeding two years 201,000 77,000
494,442 280,252
Less: Amounts due for settlement B —EREHEN B FRIE
within one year (293,442) (203,252)
Amounts due for settlement after one year — 1% B HAE A FIAE 201,000 77,000
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other borrowings are RERESHR  AEBEMRITEED
denominated in RMB at the end of each reporting period. BREENUARKEE -
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted H b & %ZEIV FI = (IR E R PR ET ) H)
interest rates) on the other borrowings are as follows: )T
As at 31 December
MA12831H
2019 2018

EHRFF
(&l 7 A

Effective interest rate per annum:

K
Fixed-rate other borrowings RH

L fE &

6.00%-12.00% 6.00%-12.00%

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE
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e BRI
33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 33. MITREMEE (&)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group has pledged the REREHR - BAKERITEEMIE
following assets as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings: HOREEEENT
As at 31 December
R12A831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Investment properties (note 16) HE W (HE16) 1,601,400 1,714,200
Pledged bank deposits (note 26) B IR RIT17 5K (i 5E26) 6 6
1,601,406 1,714,206
At the end of each reporting period, the Group has pledged the REREMR - BASEEMEEME
following assets as securities for the Group’s other borrowings: HHAREBEENT ¢
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ET T
Inventories (note 22) & (Fizr22) 172,139 172,139

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 34. TRRES TESRMTIA
INSTRUMENTS

(a) Convertible bonds (a) "EERES

2016 Convertible Bond 20164 A[ 12 R (& 5

On 8 December 2016, the Company issued a convertible M2016F 12880 * AR RMAR
bond (“2016 Convertible Bond”) with a principal amount of AIEERRBEFRAR(HE]D
HK$570,000,000 (equivalent to RMB505,077,000 at the 17K €58 /5570,000,00078 7T (FA
issuance date) to Fame Select Limited (“Fame Select”), the ZE1THHEE R ARYS505,077,000
major shareholder of the Company to set off the balance of the JO) R AT R AR E 5 ([2016F A R (&
loan from immediate holding company and the related accrued 1) - AR FE R RE2016F Al A%
interest due to Fame Select on a dollar-for-dollar basis against BAHEMNERERE  HKEEMSE
the total subscription price payable by Fame Select in respect ERREEEZERATERRER
of the subscription of the 2016 Convertible Bond. BAREET RS o
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(a) Convertible bonds (Cont’d) (a)

34. MRRES PTESET A G

AR AR R 2 ()

2016 Convertible Bond (Cont’d)

The original maturity date of the 2016 Convertible Bond is 7
December 2018 (“2016 CB Maturity Date”) which is 2 years
from the date of issue of the 2016 Convertible Bond. The
2016 Convertible Bond is not interest bearing and matures
on 2016 CB Maturity Date at the principal amount. The 2016
Convertible Bond is convertible into shares of the Company
at any time after the issuance up to the close of business on
the 2016 CB Maturity Date at the conversion price of HK$0.26
per share, subject to anti-dilutive adjustments (“2016 CB
Conversion Option”). The initial number of ordinary shares
of the Company issuable upon conversion is 2,192,307,692
shares, which represent 59.34% of the total number of
ordinary shares of the Company issued and outstanding as of
the issue date of the 2016 Convertible Bond as enlarged by
the conversion of the entire 2016 Convertible Bond.

The Company is entitled to an option to early redeem at any
time before 2016 CB Maturity Date the whole or part of the
principal outstanding amount of the 2016 Convertible Bond at
principal amount.

The 2016 Convertible Bond contains a debt component and
derivative component. The 2016 CB Conversion Option is
classified as a derivative financial liability as it will be settled
other than by an exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments on the
basis that the 2016 Convertible Bond is denominated in HKS,
a foreign currency of the Company.

The fair value of the 2016 Convertible Bond was
approximately HK$568,761,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB503,979,000) on the initial recognition date. On initial
recognition, the debt component was recognised at fair
value, calculated based on the present value of the principal
amount plus accrued coupon interest over the expected
life of the 2016 Convertible Bond. In subsequent periods,
the debt component is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest rate of the debt
component is 14.64% per annum. The derivative component is
measured at fair values at the date of issue and in subsequent
periods with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

2016%F A[ 12 IR 15 5% (1B)

2016 A AR ESF 2 REHA A
2018F 12478 ([2016F AJ # X (&
AFHR ] - BlE2016F Al i (E
FETHHRF REME - 2016
FAMBRESFTEHE - BIRASHE
FR2016F Al AR EHEIHI A B H -
2016 F AIMARE S A REITEER
2016F A AR &7 5 B B & % 5 [
HERIFBERIRERETRR0.26/8 T
ERmARAR KA  EAERHR
HE A ([2016F Al 1% B 5 iR
BIBRE ) o ANQF IR AT BT
2 ERIEAIAE R 52,192,307,692
A% - MEE R EIR S E2016%F AT iR
M (EH B A& AR E 20164 Al i
REHBITHBR B BT RAEARE
TEMARARE 2 59.834% °

AND AV RER BN 20164 Al # iR &
% B A B B (£ O] B R $2 AN 4 2B R A
B [0 2 2 sk 204 201 64 A #R AR (& 5
ZREELREE -

2016F AR E S B IR BB H O &
PTHEE D - 2016F AJ R RIEHEIR
BEESBERTTESREE  RAE
RERBTEZ2016F I RRESFE
A TT (R R RSN 5HE 2 B2
EELBE < REHMETHE 2
RAREBRAT BT -

2016 F Al AR EH N V1R 1E R
B2 AR {E%) A568,761,000/%8 T
(HHE R A R#503,979,0007T) °
RYATFERE - HEBIA DR R
BERER  sTEEEE2016F 0
BEFZASERBENEBHEH
EEAZEAANE - REE& M -
ER B AT B F BRI SR A
PR - B A O 2EREREAR
14.64% ° HTEEB D IREEITHE R EE
BHBMZARENE  AREE
RIBERRER ©
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(@) Convertible bonds (Cont’d)

216

2016 Convertible Bond (Cont’d)

On 8 May 2018, the Company and Fame Select entered into
an amendment agreement (the “Amendment Agreement”) to
extend the 2016 CB Maturity Date to 7 December 2020. The
Amendment Agreement was passed by the ordinary resolution
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
28 September 2018.

Due to the extension of the 2016 CB Maturity Date,
the carrying amount of the debt component has been
reduced from approximately HK$553,768,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB486,929,000) to approximately
HK$469,683,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB412,993,000) on 28 September 2018 (i.e. date of
extension) based on the present value of the principal amount
plus accrued coupon interest from the extension date to 7
December 2020. The change in fair value of debt component
of approximately HK$84,085,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB73,936,000) is recognised in profit or loss. The effective
interest rate of the debt component is 8.01% per annum after
extension.

On 8 November 2018, the Company received the conversion
notice from Fame Select in respect of the exercise in part of
the subscription rights attached to the 2016 Convertible Bond
to convert an aggregate of HK$168,000,000 of the principal
amount of the 2016 Convertible Bond into 646,153,846
ordinary shares (note 37) at the conversion price of HK$0.26
per share.

Due to the conversion of partial 2016 Convertible Bond,
the carrying amount of the debt component has been
reduced from approximately HK$502,867,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB444,204,000) to approximately
HK$334,867,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB295,803,000) and the carrying amount of the
derivative financial instruments have been reduced from
approximately HK$1,558,596,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,376,770,000) to approximately HK$1,099,220,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB970,985,000) on 8
November 2018 (i.e. date of partial conversion) based on
the present value of the principal amount plus accrued
coupon interest over the expected life of the remaining
2016 Convertible Bond after the conversion of Partial 2016
Convertible Bond. The change in carrying amount of the debt
component of HK$168,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB148,401,000) and of the derivative financial instruments of
approximately HK$459,376,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB405,785,000) are transferred to the equity.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

34. TRRES PTESRT AR

(a)

AR E % ()

20164 A[ 12 IR & 55 (#B)
MR2018F5H8H » AR A HHE
R EET ek ([EETHhakl) - A
2016 F A MR ELFIBAERSE
202012 87H - il H=m=E R
2018F9A28H BT 2 AN ﬁﬁi%
BRIRE AL RRERAG -

MR2016F Al R EHEH A
TR HEXBOZEEER
201849 A28H (EHLE”‘EUEE
47553,768,0007 T (FHE R4 A
Eﬁ%486,929,ooom#m§%’]
469,683,000/ 70 (HHE RO AREE
412,993,0007T) * W HER A &5
REMNBERE B#EE2020F1218
TEHZEMmAE - BBIBH 2 ARE
5 4984,085,000% 7T (FEE R KA
R#73,936, OOOE)ﬁATa/\WEE?
RIEREEB R D 2 BBRFENEA
8.01% °

R2018F1188H » RARIK L EE
U B 54 77 185 201 64F A 2 % 1 5 B 745
s ﬁ;%@%%z;ﬁﬁﬁﬁ-Lﬂ LA i
N4 #A 4L 51168,000,000/8 7T 2 2016
E‘Hﬁﬂxfi%ﬁ&t@ 153,846/% & /@
B (BF3E37) - EIRE AER0.26/8
= -

MREHRED20164F 7] # IR E&
5 HEBH» 2EKEER2018
F11A8B (ANE» i A ) A
#9502,867,000/8 7t (FHE R4 A
R#¥444,204,0007T) Bl & = %)
334,867,000/8 L (FHE R AR
295,803,0007T) * EEITE SR T
A ZBRMEE R A %1,558,596,000/%
TTHEERHARYE,376,770,000
JC) Bl R 2= 491,099,220,0007% 7t (48
B4 AR #970,985,0007T) ¢ It
Th BRI 20164F Al A% (&
5B BT 22016 F A BIRES 2
AReBBENEBHFHEELEZ
ZEAE - BEBLOREEZE
168,000,000/ 7t (A& R4 A R
148,401,00070) R{TE S @ T AR
Eﬁz ''''''' £ 80 #7459,376,0007% 7T (48
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(@) Convertible bonds (Cont’d) (a)

34. MRRES PTESET A G

AR AR fE 2 ()

2016 Convertible Bond (Cont’d)

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments of 2016
Convertible Bond as at 28 September 2018, 8 November
2018, 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are
determined by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an
independent and professionally qualified valuer not connected
to the Group, based on the Binomial Option Pricing Model (the
“Binomial Model”).

2018 Convertible Bond

On 28 August 2018, the Company issued a convertible
bond (“2018 Convertible Bond”) with a principal amount
of HK$297,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB257,475,000 at the issuance date) to Star Hope and
Better Linkage for the acquisition of the entire equity interest of
Star Admiral (note 20).

The maturity date of the 2018 Convertible Bond is 28 August
2020 (“2018 CB Maturity Date”) which is 2 years from the date
of issue of the 2018 Convertible Bond. The 2018 Convertible
Bond is not interest bearing and matures on 2018 CB Maturity
Date at the principal amount. The 2018 Convertible Bond is
convertible into shares of the Company at any time after the
issuance up to the close of business on the 2018 CB Maturity
Date at the conversion price of HK$0.90 per share, subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments (“2018 CB Conversion Option”).
The initial number of ordinary shares of the Company issuable
upon conversion is 329,999,999 shares, which represent
5.20% of the total number of ordinary shares of the Company
issued and outstanding as of the issue date of the 2018
Convertible Bond as enlarged by the conversion of the entire
2018 Convertible Bond.

The Company is entitled to an option to early redeem at any
time before 2018 CB Maturity Date the whole or part of the
principal outstanding amount of the 2018 Convertible Bond at
principal amount.

The 2018 Convertible Bond contains a debt component and
derivative component. The 2018 CB Conversion Option is
classified as a derivative financial liability as it will be settled
other than by an exchange of a fixed amount of cash for fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments on the
basis that the 2018 Convertible Bond is denominated in HK$,
a foreign currency of the Company.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

20164 [ 12 IR & 55 (1B)
MR2018F9HA28H - 2018511 A8
H - 201812 A31H Kk2019412 A
318 ' 2016 A MR EHF2ITES
BMTAZAREE—HEAEE
MEEECBLMNEESERME
BB EARARRE - B
EEEERER(—EARADEE -

20184 /12 R &5
R2018FE8A28H » "ARIFUE
ER(Mad20) 2 2dRERESE
¥ Better Linkage®$ 1T Al # J% (& %
(feo1sFa @R ES]) - A2 A
297,000,000/ 7T (R %17 H BB E
R# AR #E257,475,0007T) °

20184 A% (&%~ EI #f A £2020
F8H28H ([20184F ] # fx &5 EI HA
B - Bl2018F ] 2 R (&5 3% 7T H
HIE AT - 2018 F A I EH T
B - BIRASFEN20184F Al A%
BEHZH BB - 2018F Al (&
A O PEEITREE2018F Al (&
FEHR B R REA R LR R E
BEER0.0BTEBRALXATZ
BRfn - HERIVED RESE AR ([2018
Fa R EHEIRBEE]) - AQ
AR BE IR ] 81T 2 B AR 46
B 4329,999,9908% © HE K&
B2 E2018F Al AR EHEARE AN
N ER2018F Al AR B 5317 H HA
ZEBEOIRMABITERRAE 2
5.20% °

RRABAEEEZR2018F AR R(E
75 2 8 B A ({7 B R 42 2K & B $E A
BE 25k 02018F ARk ESH
ZIAREERNEHE -

2018 A MRIE S BREREBK O &
PTHEED ° 2018F A ARG HFE R
ERESBESTTEERMAE KA
REBT&IZ2018F AR REFE
AT (AR RSNE)SHE 2 A
BEEB o REBRREER]E 2 A
RERHBRAT BT -
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(a) Convertible bonds (Cont’d)

218

2018 Convertible Bond (Cont’d)

The fair value of the 2018 Convertible Bond is approximately
HK$471,123,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB408,426,000) on the initial recognition date. On initial
recognition, the debt component was recognised at fair value,
calculated based on the present value of the principal amount
plus accrued coupon interest over the expected life of the 2018
Convertible Bond. In subsequent periods, the debt component
is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate of the debt component is 9.86% per
annum. The derivative component is measured at fair values at
the issuance date and in subsequent periods with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments of 2018
Convertible Bond as at 28 August 2018, 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2019 are determined by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, an independent and professionally qualified
valuer not connected to the Group, based on the Binomial
Model.

The inputs used for the calculation of fair values of the
derivative financial instruments are as follows:

34. TRARMES HTESET A (E)

(a)

TR & & ()

2018F IR 155 (1)
2018 A MR EHF N VIR FER A
HZ AR EXAE471,123,000/8 T
(HBERHARBEA08,426,0007T) °
RANEERE HEETDIEAR
ERER  sTEEE52018F 7]
BEHZASHERENLBHFH
EEACZEBEMNE - REEEHRK -
B TS EB 7 LA B B FI| -5 42 8 45 A AR
TR - BB O2EBRFFNEXRA
9.86% ° HTHEES D LB 1T B HAKNBE
BHBEzAREHE  AREE

ANVIN =S
RIBEETER o

R2018%8H28H + 2018412 A 31
H %2019 124318 » 20185 AJ
REF2ITEEBMIAZAREBED
H—HErAEEREFECBILK
BELEBREEMPEFIGHERA
RIRE —TEARAE T -

AETESRIAZAREMER
ZEABEAT

2016 Convertible Bond 2016 N2 R &
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
128318 12A31H
Share price & (& HK$1.5905& 7t  HK$1.230/% 7T
Conversion price HIRE HK$0.260& 7T HK$0.2607 7T
Expected volatility (Note (a)) TEER R 1R (Ff 5E () 61.57% 69.17%
Expected option life TEHR B RE SF AR 0.94 Yearst 1.94 Yearsf
Expected dividend yield (Note (b)) T8 HAAR B & (FF 5% (b)) ZeroZ® ZeroZ
Risk-free rate (Note (c)) 2 [ F A1 =R (M () 2.09% 2.18%
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 34. MR ES TESHMIAGE

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(a) Convertible bonds (Cont’d) (a) TTERRKRESR(E)
2018 Convertible Bond 20184 o[ 12 JR & %

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20194 20184

12H31H 12H31H

Share price I (& HK$1.59058 7t HK$1.230/8 7T

Conversion price HEIR(E HK$0.95% T HK$0.978 7T

Expected volatility (Note (a)) TEHRR 18 (M 5E(a) 62.75% 66.83%

Expected option life TEHREARE F R 0.66 years£F 1.66 Years4r

Expected dividend yield (Note (b)) TEHA AR B =& (T 5% (b)) ZeroZ® ZeroZ

Risk-free rate (Note (c)) 42 [, F A1 =R (B 3 () 2.07% 2.17%

Notes: BiaE -

(@  The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility (@) BRI AR R A E R T F 5

of the Company’s share price over a period commensurate with the BRI (B 2 SRR IR EETE

remaining term.
() TFEHKREXTNEZ2ERRBDESREIK

N RC 8k AR R MG 2 TEHAR SR+ & 1
Bt

(b)  The expected dividend yield was estimated with reference to the historical
dividend payment record and the expected dividend payment in the next
two years of the Company.

© ERRANXDREZEERUKTFHZ
AT Ml AR 2 ek R A A

(c) Risk-free rate is estimated based on the yield of Hong Kong Dollar Swap
Curve with a similar remaining tenure.
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(a) Convertible bonds (Cont’d) (a)
The movements of the debt component of convertible bonds

34. TARMES FTESEMT A @)

AR AR 2 ()
AREESEF B RITESRT

and derivative financial instruments are shown as follows:

BZZH5IRMT :

Derivative
Debt financial
component  instruments Total
ERBE TELWMIA e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARETTT
2016 Convertible Bond 2016 F AR ES
At 1 January 2018 E’;\201 8F1A1H . 411,107 439,938 851,045
(Credit) charge to profit or loss, GtAHKRER - BER

including adjustment on extension BREARRAER AR

recognised in profit or loss (73,936) 1,582,565 1,508,629
Exchange difference i ) 24,159 147,618 171,777
Effective interest expenses (note 8) ERF EF (58 51,663 = 51,663
At 28 September 2018 20189 H 28 F (K B &)

(date of extension) \ 412,993 2,170,121 2,583,114
Credit to profit or loss sTABZ - (807,286) (807,286)
Exchange difference [ 5 =5 ) 1,875 13,935 15,810
Effective interest expenses (note 8) BIRA B 55 (i 7E8) 29,336 = 29,336
Partial conversion to shares FRBLERBRNH

during the year (148,401) (405,785) (5654,186)
At 8 November 2018 72018411 H8H

(date of partial conversion) (Ep o asia H AR) 295,803 970,985 1,266,788
Charge to profit or loss HkriER - 443,958 443,958
Exchange difference fEH =28 \ (2,416) (10,518) (12,934)
Effective interest expenses (note 8) EIRF B (F5E8) 4,121 - 4,121
At 31 December 2018 1201812 331H 297,508 1,404,425 1,701,933
Charge to profit or loss MkiEm = 463,127 463,127
Exchange difference bE L E R \ 7,165 39,730 46,895
Effective interest expenses (note 8) B F S5 (FI7E8) 28,335 - 28,335
At 31 December 2019 7420194128318 333,008 1,907,282 2,240,290
2018 Convertible Bond 2018 F AR EH
At 28 August 2018 (date of issuance) 11201858 A 28H (%17 H &) 206,611 201,815 408,426
Credit to profit or loss FTABZ = (29,732) (29,732)
Exchange difference M5 =% 2,147 2,374 4,521
Effective interest expenses (note 8) ERFEHZ (fT8) 8,854 = 8,854
At 31 December 2018 M2018%12A31H 217,612 174,457 392,069
Charge to profit or loss k8= = 59,504 59,504
Exchange difference [ =58 5,330 4,972 10,302
Effective in interest expenses (note 8)  E B K 5512 (FiF3E8) 25,781 = 25,781
At 31 December 2019 H2019F12H31H 248,723 238,933 487,656
Total wEr
At 31 December 2019 72019512H31H 581,731 2,146,215 2,727,946
At 31 December 2018 201812 H31H 515,120 1,578,882 2,094,002
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 34, RRES FTELRMTI A (E)
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Put option (b) FRTHHIAE

On 28 October 2019, the Group has entered into an
agreement with Westside City Resorts World Inc. (“Westside”)
and Travellers International Hotel Group Inc. (“Travellers”),
related companies of a non-controlling shareholder of
SunTrust (as defined in note 39(b)). Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group is entitled, at its sole discretion, to exercise a put
option in relation to its 51% equity interest of SunTrust with
consideration of RMB151,548,000 plus interest of 3.5% per
annum to Westside and Travellers upon event stated in the
agreement.

The fair value of the derivative financial instrument of the
put option as at 28 October 2019 and 31 December 2019
were approximately RMB1,741,000 and RMB2,619,000
respectively, which is determined by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, an independent and professionally qualified valuer not
connected to the Group, based on the Binomial Model.

The inputs used for the calculation of fair value of the derivative
financial instrument of the put option are as follows:

M2019F10828H - A& B &
SunTrust(GE & R M 7E39(b)) — 4 3E
A% % 3R 2 BB 2 Bl Westside City
Resorts World Inc.([Westside]) &
Travellers International Hotel Group
Inc.([Travellers|) 5T 32 3% © IRIE
WE AEBEREG S H
BEBBEDERS M Westside
KTravellersiTf# —HEBER
SunTrust 51% /% 2 R A ERE - X
EAARM151,548,000T 5 &
F3.5%FE °

MR2019%10H28H K& 2019412 3
318 R ITESRITA
ZRAREDRGEARE,741,000
TR AR2,619,0007T » JhH EAR
EEVEMEZBYEESERME
BERFFETHERARIZE-ZEAE
RIFTEETE °

AERLHRTEERTIAZAR
EFTER 2B ABIEIAT ¢

Put option L EIE
31 December 28 October
2019 2019
20194 20194
12831H 10H28H
Share price f&(E PHP1.230#%%& PHP1.710#=
Exercise price I (E PHP0.959#% % PHP0.959#% &
Expected volatility TEHRR 1@ 47.95% 48.03%
Expected option life TE ERHAME F HA 3.25 YearstE 3.42 Years#F
Expected dividend yield TEHRR B X ZeroZ ZeroZ
Risk-free rate R R X 3.36% 3.50%

The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised
standard deviations of the continuously compounded rates
of return of the share price of SunTrust as of the valuation
date. The fair value calculated for the put option is inherently
subjective due to the assumptions made and the limitations of
the model utilised.

FTERAZEEIIERNGEERD S
SunTrustiR B 2 F BB BIHE 2
FHFEEEZERZ - ARATERR
MATREA B ETRSG - BUt 20h 5B
EFENAREHRETERD -

ABHERERERAT 20194 FERS 221




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 34. MR ES HTEESMI A @

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Put option (Cont’d)

(b) FBH AR ()

Put option (Cont’d) Rn IR (1B)
The movement of the fair value of derivative financial MESBRTAZ ARBEZEEHIIR
instrument is shown as follows: s
RMB’000
ARETIT
On 28 October 2019 (i.e. date of grant) 2019910 A28 H (BN H B 1)

(note 39(b)) (BE39(b)) 1,741
Credit to profit or loss FTAEZE 885
Exchange difference b i =5 (7)
At 31 December 2019 72019128 31H 2,619

35. LEASE LIABILITIES 35. HEAE
31 December
2019
20194
12A31H
RMB’000
ARET T

Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year
Within a period of more than one year but not

AR TEES M ZHERRE -
—FR 2,274
BB FETBAME

more than two years 661
2,935
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months & : 121 B R EIHAE ~ 89 738
shown under current liabilities Gl ErBaE) (2,274)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 A& 2| 8RB H B (31 &
shown under non-current liabilities EREBEE) 661
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

e B RRME

35. HEAE (@)
B EE TR &N EiE

AHEZHAERERT

HK$ MOP JPY

BT BPY =]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTF T ARBFR

As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12H31H

1,142 933 456

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group provides defined contribution plans to its employees
and executive officers in Macau, Hong Kong, the PRC and other
jurisdictions.

Macau

Employees employed by the Group in Macau are members of
government-managed Social Security Fund Scheme (the “SSF
Scheme”) operated by the Macau Government and the Group is
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the SSF Scheme to
fund the benefits.

Hong Kong

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of these schemes
were held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The cost charged to the profit or loss
represented contributions payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The PRC

The Group contributes to the local municipal government retirement
scheme for all qualifying employees in the PRC. The employers
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at the rates specified in the scheme’s rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

36. RIRFRIFE
AEERMEMRF - BE  HEKE
AR EER ZEEB RITHABRMKR

E AT E -

B

AEERRFIEE KRFIBTATEE R
LENHEREZSFTE((HERESRF
DKRE  "EEASARLKRESG
ETE B FAB B EN -

i
AEEREMBRBEBZAERERR
VRTERETE c RFRIEIZEETIBFE
AR ZESRHE BAKEZEE
DHEE - BESIBRIRATIEAR
Bizst BRAIATIA 2 L R AE S X
B

R Ed
AEBRMETEAERERR AL
AHBARAKGTEHK - BEREEN
AE B EIR AT AR R At 8¢
e AEBEBBZENRGE 2HE—RE
AR BIE L IEE M SR -
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e B RRME

36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Cont’d) 36. BIKERIGHEI ()

The Philippines
Defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan operate in the
Philippines.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into local social insurance
programs and has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after payment of the fixed contribution.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an
amount of post-employment benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and salary. Post-employment defined benefit
plan covers all regular full-timer employees. However, pursuant
to Republic Act No. 7641 of the Republic of the Philippines, retail
service and agricultural establishments or operations employing
not more than ten (10) employees or workers are exempted from
the coverage of this provision. During the year ended 31 December
2019, there is only one employee in the Philippines office after the
deemed disposal of subsidiaries of SunTrust as detailed in note
39(b) and the Group applied exemption of the defined benefit plan.

Japan

Contributions to the plans by the Group are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
plan cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.
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e MR RME
37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. B&
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEIBTHNEZER
Number of shares Share capital
REAEE BR&
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Authorised EE
At beginning and end of year RENRER 50,000,000,000  50,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERIRAR
At beginning of year REA 6,666,972,746  6,020,818,900 666,697 602,082
Allotment of shares under the conversion  20164F A # R & 5 2 A fy
of 2016 Convertible Bonds ) - 646,153,846 - 64,615
Atend of year WER 6,666,972,746  6,666,972,746 666,697 666,697
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
RMB equivalent AR EEE 582,811 582,811
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company received HE2018F12A31H ILFE » AAEMHE
the conversion notice from Fame Select in respect of the exercise 2R BLITE 20164 A # AR & 5 I 45
in part of the subscription rights attached to the 2016 Convertible ZHORBERE BB - NEBRAS
Bond to convert an aggregate of HK$168,000,000 of the principal ®E £ 51168,000,000/% 7T 2 20164 AJ 2 [%
amount of the 2016 Convertible Bond into 646,153,846 ordinary B2 73646,153,846% & ik - % F &M@
shares. The ordinary shares were issued on 8 November 2018 to f& 82018 11 A8H BT TR % o 25
Fame Select. The new shares rank pari passu with the existing BHOEMEFEEBEERDZERE
shares in all respects. iz o
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 38. R AERTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2007 Scheme”)
on 31 January 2007.

The purpose of the 2007 Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant share options to selected participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or
its associated companies (as defined under the 2007 Scheme). The
2007 Scheme was adopted on 31 January 2007 and terminated on
2 June 2016.

Under the 2007 Scheme, the board of directors may, at its
discretion, offer directors of the Company (including Executive or
Non-executive Directors), executives, officers, employees or certain
other eligible participants, share options to subscribe for shares of
the Company.

The exercise price in relation to each share option was determined
by the board of directors at its absolute discretion and was not
less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (i) the average of
the official closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of share
options; and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of offer of share options. Each of the grantees was required
to pay HK$10 as consideration for the grant of share options in
accordance with the 2007 Scheme. The offer of a grant of share
options must be accepted within 60 days from the date of the offer.
All share options are fully vested as at 31 December 2016.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, were
subject to approval in advance by the Independent Non-executive
Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of in aggregate
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue (based on the date of
offer) and an aggregate value of HK$5 million (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of each offer), within
any 12-month period, were subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The 2007 Scheme was terminated on 2 June 2016 and no further
options can be granted under the 2007 Scheme. However,
the share options granted under the 2007 Scheme prior to its
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the 2007 Scheme.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2019, 92,400,187 (31 December 2018:
92,400,187) share options are outstanding under 2007 Scheme.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no share
option was granted, exercised or cancelled and 3,558,149 share
options have been lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2018, in accordance with the terms of the 2007 Scheme.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2016
Scheme”) on 2 June 2016.

The purpose of the 2016 Scheme is to replace the 2007 Scheme
and to continue to enable the Company to grant share options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries and/or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest. The 2016 Scheme will remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on 2 June 2016.

Under the 2016 Scheme, the board of directors may, at its
discretion, offer directors of the Company (whether Executive
or Non-executive Directors and whether independent or not),
executives, officers, employees or certain other eligible participants,
share options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion
and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (i) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of share options; and
(iiiy the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer
of share options. Each of the grantees is required to pay HK$1 as
a consideration for the acceptance of the grant of share options in
accordance with the 2016 Scheme. The offer of share options must
be accepted within 21 days from the date of the offer.

e B RRME

8. lBRAEST 8 ()

MN2019%12H318 @ BE2007F 512
92,400,187 (2018F 12 A31H
92,400,18717) BB IR RE M ARTTIE ©

BIZ2007F 518 2 &K - RE E2019F
K2018F 128318 IEFE - EERE
EEH - 17EEE - mMREE2018F
12A31HILEE » 3,558,149 BB ED
KA o

RARMR2016F6 H2 B FRN— A B
#EEH8I(T20165F &1 & ) o

2016F 5T &8 § fFER B 2007 F 5 21 I 4
BEANTMET2HEER THERAEE
BREHARQNAR,/SHETMKERQR
R/ SAEBMIMAKERGREFES
EAREZ EMEEAIFERRERER
Bi 2 BBk 2/ - 2016 F 8B B R
2016F6 A2H BT 10F HAE AN B -

RIB20165F:T8 EFGARBERALR
AEE(THELRRITHIERTESR
THELRBILESR) THAE  2Mf
BE EEIETHMAERZEER
TREBENRBEARRRND

ERREZTEENHESTE2RE
T EREBTIEIRAT 2RSS ()
R R A B AR A R B0 IR B 32 P
BHEBERMBIHEHE : ()BEREL
BREASMAEEEXAARRBBRNR
BRXAERARERMRFHETE :
R (iR B E B M ARR G 2@
B - |RI|F2016F5 8 - FARABXN
1TBTIEREMERBREZNRE - &
T2BREENREDBHEF21B K
e
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d) 38. AR AESTEI (&)

306,900,000 share options have been granted under the 2016
Scheme since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2019,
271,400,000 (81 December 2018: 232,500,000) share options
are outstanding under the 2016 Scheme. The maximum number
of shares of the Company available for issue upon exercise of all
share options which may be granted under the 2016 Scheme is
271,400,000, representing approximately 4.07% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the end of the reporting period. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and which may fall to
be issued upon the exercise of share options to be granted under
the 2016 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of share option in
excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by
the Company and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the Independent Non-executive
Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of in aggregate
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue (based on the date of
offer) and an aggregate value of HK$5 million (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of each offer), in the
12-month period up to and including the date of the offer of such
grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The following tables disclose details of the share options held by
directors, employees and other eligible participants under the 2007
Scheme and 2016 Scheme and movements in such holdings during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

(@ The terms and conditions of the grants that existed at the end
of each reporting period are as follows, whereby all options are
settled by physical delivery of shares:
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d) 38. FEMRAELT & ()
(@ (Contd) @ (&)
2019 20194
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Granted  Cancelled Lapsed At Dateof price
Grantees At1.1.2019 during 2019 during 2019 during 2019 31122019 grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share
HO19F  2010ER  2019FR  2019ER  H2010E
RRA 1A1R BET [35is BXAY  128%A  RERY  BREH AR BRITHEE
(Note (i)  (Note(ii))  (Note (i) HKS
2 1) N 21 B
Directors of the Company
ALHEE
Mr. Lo Kai Bong 8,000,000 - - - 8000000 492017 NAFER 4.9.2017 10 3.9.2027 0.455
EfTaks 12,000,000 - - = 12000000  4.9.2017 4.9.2017 0 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
20,000,000 - - = 20000000  4.9.2017 4.9.2017 0 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva 600,000 - - - 600000  4.9.2017 NATEHR 4.9.2017 10 3.9.2027 0.455
MR 900,000 - - - 900000  4.9.2017 4.9.2017 0 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
1,500,000 - - = 1,500,000  4.9.2017 4.9.20170 3.9.2019 4.9.20190 3.9.2027 0.455
Mr. Au Chung On John = 12,000,000 - = 12000000  2.7.2019 NATER 2.1.2019101.7.2029 192
B ZRE = 12,000,000 - = 12,000,000  2.7.2019 2.7.20190 1.7.2020 2.1.2020t0 1.7.2029 1.92
= 16,000,000 - - 16000000 27.2019 2.1.2019 10 1.7.2021 2.1.2021 10 1.7.2029 1.92
43,000,000 40,000,000 - - 83,000,000
Other employees of 462,559 - - - 462550 12122013 12122013101212.2013 13.12.20130 12.12.2023 0.344
the Group 2,100,000 - - = 2100000 492017 NAFER 4.9.2017 10 3.9.2027 0.455
AEEAkES 3,150,000 - - - 3150000 492017 4920171392018  49.2018103.9.2027 0455
5,250,000 - - - 5250000 4.9.2017 4.9.2017 0 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
= 2,040,000 - = 2040000  2.7.2019 NATER 2.1.2019101.7.2029 1.92
= 2,040,000 - = 2040000 27.2019 2.1.201910 1.7.2020 2.1.20200 1.7.2029 1.92
= 2720000 - = 2720000 27.2019 2.1.2019 10 1.7.2021 2.1.2021 10 1.7.2029 1.92
10,962,559 6,800,000 - = 17,762,559
Consultants of the Group 91,937,628 - - - 01007628 12122013 1212201310 12122018 13.12.2013t0 12.12.2023 0.344
FEEER 135,000,000 = (15,000,000) - 120000000 1112017 NATER 11.1.2017 t0 10.1.2027 0.202
16,500,000 - - - 16500000 1942017 NATER 19.4.2017 o 18.4.2027 0.700
4,100,000 = (500,000) - 3600000 1942017 NATER 19.4.2017 o 18.4.2027 0.700
6,150,000 = (750,000) = 5400000 1942017 194.201710184.2018  19.4.2018 0 18.4.2027 0.700
10,250,000 = (1,250,000) = 0000000 1942017  19.4.2017t018.4.2019  19.4.2019t0 18.4.2027 0.700
1,400,000 - - = 1,400,000 4.9.2017 NATER 4.9.2017 0 3.9.2027 0.455
2,100,000 - - = 2100000  4.9.2017 4.9.201710 3.9.2018 4.9.2018t0 3.9.2027 0.455
3,500,000 - - - 3500000 4.9.2017 4.9.2017 0 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
= 2,880,000 - = 2880000  2.7.2019 NATER 2.1.2019101.7.2029 1.92
= 2,880,000 - - 2880000 2.7.2019 2.7.20190 1.7.2020 2.7.2020t0 1.7.2029 1.92
- 3,840,000 - - 3840000 27.2019 2.1.2019 10 1.7.2021 2.1.2021 10 1.7.2029 1.92
210,937,628 9,600,000 (17,500,000 - 263,037,628
324,900,187 56,400,000 (17,500,000 - 363,800,187
Bxercisable 17% 284,400,187 324,320,187
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REMBHRKM T
38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d) 38. AR AESTEI (&)
@ (Cont'd) @ &
2018 2018
Number of share options
e
Bxercise
Rechssficaon ~ Cancelled Lapsed At Dateof price
Grantees At1.1.2018  duing2018  during2018  during 2018 31.12.2018  grant Viesting period Exercisable period per share
. 20185 %018¢ 2018@? 2018?79 0186
ERA 1810 ENAR  BdEl  BXR 12A%A RERH  BEEE T ShikE
(No@e ) (No@e (i) (No@e (i) HKS
Oeakg) oz sk B
Directors of the Company
AL7ES
Mr. Lo Kai Bong 8,000,000 - - - 8000000 492017 NATER 492017 103.9.2027 0455
ElfaRt 12,000,000 - - - 12000000 492017 49.20171039.2018 4.9.20181039.2027 0455
20,000,000 - - - 20000000 492017 49201710 39.2019 49201910 39.2027 0455
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva 600,000 - - - 600,000  4.9.2017 NARER 4.9.20171039.2027 0455
HXELE 900,000 - - - 900,000 49.2017 49201710 39.2018 49201810 39.2027 0455
1,600,000 - - - 1500000 492017 4920171039.2019 492019103.9.2027 0455
43,000,000 - - - 43,000,000
Other employees of 462,659 - - - 462059 12122013 1212201310 12122013 13.12.2013 10 12.12.2023 0.344
the Group 2,700,000 (600,000 - - 2100000 492017 NATER 492017 103.9.2027 0455
KEERLES 4050000 (900,000) - - 3150000 492017 4920171039201 492018103.9.2027 0455
6,750,000 (1,500,000 - - 5250000 492017 49.20171039.2019 49201910 39.2027 0455
13,962,559 (3,000,000 - - 10962599
Consultants of the Group 3,558,149 - - (3558149 - 1322008 132.20081012.8.2008 138200810 12.2.2018 3822
REEER 91,937,628 - - - 91937628 12122013 1212201310 12122013 13.12.2013 10 12.12.2023 0.344
150,000,000 - (15,000,000 - 135000000 1112017 NATER 11.1.20171010.1.2027 0.202
16,500,000 - - - 16500000 1942017  NATEA 19.4.2017 10 18.4.2027 0.700
4,100,000 - - - 4100000 1942017 NATER 19.4.201710 18.4.2027 0.700
6,150,000 - - - 6150000 1942017 194201710 184.2018 194201810 18.4.2027 0.700
10,250,000 - - - 10260000 1942017 194201710 184.2019 194201910 18.4.2027 0.700
1,400,000 600,000 (600,000 - 1400000 492017 NARER 49201710 39.2027 0455
2,100,000 900,000 (900,000) - 2100000 492017 49.20171039.2018 49.20181039.2027 0455
3,500,000 1,500,000 (1,500,000) - 3500000 492017 49.20171039.2019 4.9.20191039.2027 0455
28949,777 3000000 (18,000,000 (3,598,149 270,987,628
346,458,336 - (18,000,000) (3558,149) 324,900,187
Exercisable FI17( 279,258,336 284,400,187
Notes: B3 -
() The cancellation of the share options is due to resignation of consultants. (i %SRBSR 55 Ty R BA R BT g o
(i)  The lapse of the share options is due to the expiry of the exercisable (i) R R E AT AT BRI R o
period.
(i) ~ The number of share option and the corresponding exercise price have (i)  FEAVEEE RABETEED F20165 5
been adjusted due to the issue of rights share during the year 2016. TR D TAETTHE ©
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 56,400,000 share
options were granted on 2 July 2019 (“July 2019 Batch”) and
no share option was exercised or lapsed and 17,500,000 share
options have been cancelled in accordance with the terms of the
2016 Scheme.

The fair value of the share options granted on 2 July 2019 is
HK$48,468,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB42,652,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share option was
granted, exercised or lapsed and 18,000,000 share options have
been cancelled in accordance with the terms of the 2016 Scheme.

Prior to year ended 31 December 2017, share options were
granted on 11 January 2017 (“January 2017 Batch”), 19 April 2017
(“April 2017 Batch”) and 4 September 2017 (“September 2017
Batch”) and no share option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2016 Scheme.

The fair values of the share options granted on those dates are
HK$13,523,000, HK$12,192,000 and HK$14,343,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB11,697,000, RMB10,546,000 and
RMB12,407,000), respectively.

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Model. The
inputs of model were as follows:

e B RRME

8. lBRAEST 8 ()

REBE2019F12A31 B ILEE -
56,400,00017 & Az #E B 1R #2016 F 51 2
ZAEFN20195F7 A2 HER T ([20194F
7RH#R]) - A EEERRAEEITFERE L
R+ M17,500,00017 BE A% AE B A& E 88 o

R2019F7A2ARE 2 BREARE
548,468,000 T (HHE R AR
42,652,0007T) ©

REZE2018F12A31HILEE - BiERE
AR FEIRIE2016F 5T 8 2 G ER L - 17
fEEE KR+ 1M18,000,00017 B A 4 Al
WAL o

REE2017F12A31 B IEFERT - B
BB RIE20165 518l 2 K2 582017
F1H11H (201751 A#LX]) ~ 201744
A198 ([2017F 4 A#lbix]) k201794

REMETTE - FEHHE R -

RZEBHBREZEREZ ARED
B /413,523,000/8 ¢ ~ 12,192,000
T % 14,343,000 T (HHER AR
11,697,0007T * AR#¥10,546,0007T & A
E#12,407,0007T) °

AAENFEA_BERERSE - ZER
ZBABEBNT

September

July 2019 January 2017 April 2017 2017

Batch Batch Batch Batch

2019474 201714 2017444 2017494

/N /N /N /N

Share price & HK$1.92/8 70 HK$0.197/8 7T HK$0.7007 7T HK$0.45578 7T
Exercise price 1IfEE HK$1.928 7T HK$0.202/8 7T HK$0.7007% 7T HK$0.45578 7T
Expected volatility TEHRR IR 38.76% 47.12% 46.65% 45.43%
Expected option life T8 HA A F R 10 years4F 10 years4F 10 years4F 10 yearsf
Risk-free rate = R R R 1.88% 1.65% 1.35% 1.38%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B e R 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
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38.

39.
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e B RRME

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised standard
deviations of the continuously compounded rates of return of the
share price of the Company as of the valuation date. The fair value
calculated for share options is inherently subjective due to the
assumptions made and the limitations of the model utilised.

The Group recognised the share-based compensation benefits of
approximately RMB25,903,000 (2018: RMB7,443,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Acquisition of MSRD Corporation Limited (“MSRD”)

On 2 September 2019, the Group acquired 51% equity interest
in MSRD at a consideration of US$9,588,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB68,631,000) (the “MSRD Acquisition”).
At the date of acquisition, MSRD had a plot of freehold land
located in Okinawa, Japan with no operating activities. The
major asset of MSRD is the freehold land and the major
liability is the shareholders’ loans. This acquisition has been
accounted for as an acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of a subsidiary. The non-controlling interests
arising from this acquisition have been accounted for as
approximately RMB60,947,000 at the date of acquisition.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

38.

39.

BREST 8 (R

PIRAZ BB ERBEG[ERRAR
AREZHEEADHREZ FHFER
ERE - ARPTERERPAAENB T
Rl SRBEEAENAAEHRE

HZE2019F12A31 B ILEE - AEE5
RATRE 2 BRERERARD AER
HERF L ARE25003,0007T (2018
& AR¥7,443,0007T) °

WK EE KB A 7]

(a) W EMSRD Corporation Limited
(TMSRDJ)
N2019%F9A28 » A& BEI
BMSRDZ51%K#E » R1E A
9,588,000k L (FHER B AR
68,631,0007T) ((MSRDUEEEE]) -
HUE B E - MSRDR B 7R h 48 E
ERESEEH CKAEREL
e MSRDZ X BEE BKAERE
T FEEEABRRER - UL1E
WEEARAZBWE —FMKBA
RIZEERABWIE - B EUKE
EEZIEERESNKEASHE A
iR - A AR®60,947,0007T °
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e MR RME
39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 39. WK B 7 ()
(@) Acquisition of MSRD Corporation Limited (“MSRD”) (a) Y EEMSRD Corporation Limited
(Cont’d) (TMSRDJ) (&)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at date of the MSRD RMSRDY i = 18 B BARE R 2 Pl
Acquisition are as follows: BEERARWET :
Fair value
ARE
RMB'000
AREFIT
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) Wz - R k& (HEE14) 305,486
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHBEIR S 282
Trade and other payables FEATBR F R H Ath FE 5 3R (340)
Loans from non-controlling shareholders REFFEBRRR ZER (88,712)
216,716

Non-controlling interest arising from the MSRD ~ MSRDUY BE 5182 4 7 AR #E 55
Acquisition (60,947)

Net assets acquired Frus s - EEFE 155,769

Net cash outflow arising from the MSRD MSRDWBEEEE 2RSSR L FHE

Acquisition:
Cash consideration paid BENEERE 155,769
Less: bank balances and cash acquired B FTBEBIRITESR KA (282)
155,487
(b) Acquisition of Suntrust Home Developers, Inc. (b) Y EESuntrust Home Developers,
(“SunTrust”) and deemed disposal of subsidiaries of Inc.([SunTrust)) R REHE
SunTrust SunTrustffi B 2 &)
To establish the Group’s footprint in the gaming casino and REBIFEE B IREIS RIRET
entertainment market of the Philippines, on 28 October % R2019F10A28H » A& E
2019, the Group acquired 1,147,500,000 ordinary shares, W B%1,147,500,000f&SunTrust (X
representing 51% equity interests, of SunTrust of which the BORFEREEHFR S EM)E
shares are listed on The Philippine Stock Exchange Inc., at Mg - BVES1%E - BRENA
a total consideration of approximately PHP1,100,569,000 1,100,569,000 R (FHERHAR
(equivalent to approximately RMB151,548,000) (the “SunTrust #151,548,0007T) ([ SunTrustU i =
Acquisition”). SunTrust is engaged in property management IH]) o SunTrustit EMHER R R B
and transportation services, which are carried out by its BRHREEL  HEBEWBAF
subsidiary, FOPM and FOPM'’s subsidiary. FOPM & FOPMZ Fff B8 /A BI3#E1T ©
The SunTrust Acquisition has been completed on 28 October SunTrusttfEEIBEE K 2019410
2019 accounted for using the purchase method. The H2o8H T ' FRABEEAR
amount of goodwill arising from the SunTrust Acquisition was SunTrustWERIHEL ZHE R
approximately RMB115,371,000. 45 AR ¥115,371,0007T °
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REMBHRKM T
39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 39. U A& FY I 2 =] (&)

(b) Acquisition of Suntrust Home Developers, Inc. (b) Y EESuntrust Home Developers,
(“SunTrust”) and deemed disposal of subsidiaries of Inc.([SunTrust!) RiR{EHE
SunTrust (Cont’d) SunTrustH{E AT ()

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at date of the RSunTrustY i H 18 A B w2 2 P
SunTrust Acquisition are as follows: WEEERBEWNT !
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before Fair value
combination adjustment Fair value
RE PRI
Wi Z BREE AREAE ARE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR¥ET T ARBET T

Property, plant and equipment  #1% - HE M :&

(note 14) (Fi5E14) 6,578 = 6,578
Right-of-use assets (note 15)  {F AEEE (IzE15) 4,184 = 4,184
Trade receivables and P M R 5 R L A P LB R

other receivables 43,405 - 43,405
Deferred tax assets (note 21)  IELEF B E E (Hi7E21) 4,588 - 4,588
Amounts due from FE U A& 75 BUIE

related parties 11,448 - 11,448
Bank balances and cash IR1TEEBR MR 223,071 = 223,071
Trade and other payables JE A BR SR M E b B A 3R (199,652) = (199,652)
Lease liabilities HEBE (4,377) = (4,377)
Amounts due to related parties  J& 1~ B3 5z I8 (14,514) = (14,514)
Tax payable FERTBIIE (985) = (985)
Retirement benefit obligations iR KEF 3£ 1% (6,223) = (6,223)

67,523 - 67,523

Non-controlling interest arising UBES=IEEA 2

from Acquisition FEERR - - (33,087)
Derivative financial instrument  $T4 4@t T A
(note 34(b)) (FFzE34(0)) - 1,741 1,741
Net assets acquired Frukis - BEFE 36,177
Goodwill (note 17) 2 (fEE17) 115,371
151,548
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(b) Acquisition of Suntrust Home Developers, Inc.
(“SunTrust”) and deemed disposal of subsidiaries of
SunTrust (Cont’d)

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to approximately RMB43,405,000.
The gross contractual amounts of those trade and other
receivables acquired amounted to RMB43,405,000 at the date
of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected amounted

e B RRME

39. WK B 7 ()

(b) UWEESuntrust Home Developers,
Inc.([SunTrust]) RRIEHE
SunTrustH{EAF] ()

U B OHA R UOAR SR % H A R U
K2 AR EH R/ AREEA3,405,000
TC o MU B ERAT IS v i S B
ERREMEWGRZEOBEAA
R 43,405,0007T © 78 A3 % i Bl
ZENREREZ ZEMBERKE

to RMB nil. HHRARKBZT -

RMB’000
ARETT

Net cash inflow arising from the SunTrust WEEEEECRESRATHE

Acquisition:

Cash consideration paid BENEERE 151,548
Less: bank balances and cash acquired W TR RITESR LIRS (223,071)
(71,523)

The following pro forma financial information of the Group
is prepared by the directors of the Company to illustrate the
financial effect of the Group as if the SunTrust Acquisition had
been completed on 1 January 2019.

Included in the loss for the year is approximately
RMB47,622,000 attributable by SunTrust. Revenue for the
year includes RMB8,192,000 generated from SunTrust.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, total
group revenue for the year would have been approximately
RMB677,214,000 and loss for the year would have been
RMB1,504,241,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually achieved
when the SunTrust Acquisition was completed on 1 January
2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

THAEBZEEHFERBALRD
AIEERR - LB RERESunTrust
W EE=1A D N201951 A1 8 ek &
REBMZUBHE -

SunTrustfEH B E O AR
47,622,000 T AF NESTE © SunTrust
Ed 7 WA ARES,192,0007T5H A
FRUA

MU EEED R2019F1A1H%
K BIFARAEERRALAEARE
677,214,0007T ' MERNEERA
R#1,504,241,0007C - EEHHE
HERAE WA —FRISunTrustd
BEEER2019F1 A1 B A EA
SEERER 2 RARKEEE -
INEEIERRRELE ZTEA -
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e B RRME

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
(b) Acquisition of Suntrust Home Developers, Inc.

236

(“SunTrust”) and deemed disposal of subsidiaries of
SunTrust (Cont’d)

The principal businesses of the FOPM are entirely unrelated
to the casino and entertainment market of the Philippines in
which the Group is investing and has never been the basis
upon which the Group made its investment in SunTrust. The
Group has no intention to make any further investment in
the FOPM which is engaged in businesses which are entirely
unrelated to the casino and entertainment market of the
Philippines in which the Group is investing. To allow SunTrust
to devote its resources to tourism-related business, FOPM
subsequently issued 150,000,000 new shares to a related
company of a non-controlling shareholder of SunTrust and
SunTrust’s equity interest in FOPM was diluted from 100% to
24.27%. Accordingly, SunTrust lost control over FOPM which
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group from 10 December
2019 and became an associate of the Group and is accounted
for using the equity method since then. The initial accounting
of the investment in FOPM is not yet completed and the
investment in an associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements for this deemed disposal has been
determined provisionally.
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Inc.([SunTrust!) RR{EHE
SunTrustif{ B AR (&)

FOPMZ X ZEBEAEBMIEER
FREZIREIERIRENISE T2
mE e BRABRASEEIZER
SunTrustZ JRE o RN&E B &= ¥
FOPM{EH (E{aiE — 3% & + FOPM
HERAREBIEENIFERE IR
SIS NIRRENIS T BRI R o
AESunTrustd & &R % U Ik 2
R TS - FOPME & [ASunTrust—
BIEVERR IR R 2 — R B A R AT
150,000,0008% #T A% 15 + M SunTrust
MRFOPMZ i # M 100% & 5 =
24.27% > At © SunTrustsk £ ¥
FOPMZ ¥Ef%# - FOPME2019412
A10BRTBAXRER 2B QA
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IFE AR A AR c RFOPME &
2R GETEE W RTENK - MEZ
RIELEFTHEE NG A VSRR E
RBZR—HEBE N ZRECET
BFEETE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

39. WK B 7 ()
(b) UWEESuntrust Home Developers,

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
(b) Acquisition of Suntrust Home Developers, Inc.

(“SunTrust”) and deemed disposal of subsidiaries of Inc.([SunTrust)) RRIELHE
SunTrust (Cont’d) SunTrustH{EAF] ()
The net assets at the date of deemed disposal of subsidiaries RREHENB AR BB EEF
were as follows: ERCINN
RMB'000
ARBTIT
Net assets disposed of FTHEEESFE
Goodwill (note 17) & (FeE17) 115,371
Right-of-use assets (note 15) 2 At & E (i 5E15) 4,068
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) VI - BB R (FEE14) 6,454
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & U BR 2 Kz £ b i U 5k 7 78 1~ 7108 16,030
Amounts due from/to the related parties, net FER SREEB A FE SR 14,235
Deferred tax assets (note 21) FEFR A EE (fsE21) 4,613
Other assets Hih&EE 17,848
Bank balance and cash RITEHR NS 37,880
Trade and other payables and accruals FE AT BR 5% B H A JE A< 5K JE 5T RRIR (35,385)
Lease liabilities HEAE (4,277)
Retirement benefit obligations RIRENE T (6,522)
170,315
Fair value of 24.27% equity interest of FOPM  FOPM X H [ BB A 7124.27 %% #E 2
and its subsidiaries NiRE (18,364)
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiaries REZEBRZGIELERBARZ
recognised in profit or loss &8 151,951
Cash outflow arising from deemed disposal REHEHBATMELEZRER
of subsidiaries
Bank balance and cash disposed of Rt 2 IRITHEB RIS 37,880

40. HEMHB AT

R2019F 4 A30R -« A5 [F B R IE KPS i
REHERZEAR QR ([HEIE]) FEHERR A
ReBRRTER DLz (ZBED -
BEZHE  ASBREEEMES
FAEEEABFHEHEAR AR (K
GEH] - AEBE2EMRB AR 2B
% REAARE20,000,0007T ° #ZHK
R HER201945 A3H (BN A&k = #5
TR T EH 2 B) K o

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 30 April 2019, the Group entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) with a company which is the shareholder of the non-
controlling shareholder of Fushun Sun Era Property Development
Company Limited (“Fushun”) (the “Purchaser”). Pursuant to the
Agreement, the Group agreed to sell and the Purchaser agreed
to purchase the entire equity interest in Sun Metro Real Estate
Company Limited (“Sun Metro”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, at a consideration of RMB20,000,000. The consideration
was determined after arm’s length negotiation between the Group
and the Purchaser. The transaction was completed on 3 May 2019
on which date control of Sun Metro passes to the Purchaser.

237
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e B RRME

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 40. HEHB AR (&)
Sun Metro is principally an investment holding company. Sun AGFBEER—HIREZER AR - K
Metro held 100% equity interests in Sun Metro Real Estate (HK) [T B RSB B E (B BR
Company Limited (“Sun Metro (HK)”) which is principally engaged ANRI(KGFHW(EB)] - T2REFRE
in investment holding. Sun Metro (HK) held 90% equity interests TR TE)100% AR HE o KI5 3 (B8 #
in Fushun. The remaining 10% equity interest in Fushun was held EHRIEQ0% AR #E o #2 T10% R IE I #E F
by a subsidiary of the Purchaser. Fushun is principally engaged in EF—FNBAREE - EIEFXERF
property development in the PRC. BN EYHEBERER
The net liabilities at the date of disposal of subsidiaries were as HEWBARBBzaEFEOT :
follows:
RMB’000
ARBT T
Net liabilities disposed of FHEEERE
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) M - B R (fisE14) 32
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - =S REMEUEK 203
Bank balance and cash RITHEBEIRS 110
Other payables and accruals E b e 3k R FEET R (774)
Amounts due to the Group’s companies, net JEAREEE AR ZRIE - JFEE (110,538)
(110,967)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR 11,184
Waive of amounts due to HERNASBE R G ZIA -
the Group’s companies, net FEE 110,538
Gain on disposal recognised in profit or loss RIBEER 2 H & W= 9,245
Cash consideration ReRE 20,000
RMB’000
ARET T
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEECZBESRATE
Cash consideration received BURERE 20,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B FTHERITESR RS (110)
19,890
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41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

(b)

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group provided
guarantees to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities
granted in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
buyers of the Group’s properties as follows:

e B RRME

4. FREE

(@

2019 k2018128318 » A&
EREBEAEEMEE HRI M NIE
BEXMBELOIZBEMERE W
ATRITIREEEROT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Guarantees given to banks for ME R ERIZBREEE MRTT
mortgage facilities granted to REER
buyers 990 990

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees contract, if there
are any defaults on the mortgages, the Group is liable to the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalty payable by the defaulting
buyers to banks. The Group is then entitled to take over
the legal title and possession of the related properties. The
guarantees shall be released upon the issue of the relevant
buyer’s property ownership certificate and in the custody of
the banks.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
significant and is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The directors of the Company consider that no
provision should be recognised at the end of each reporting
period as the potential cash outflow related to the guarantee is
not probable.

Bank balances of approximately RMB298,000 (31 December
2018: RMB297,000) have been pledged with the banks as
guarantee deposits for the mortgage loan facilities granted by
the banks to buyers of the Group’s properties (note 26) as at
31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was involved in several
litigations in relation to the construction of the Group’s
properties under development in the PRC with several
contractors and suppliers, who are independent third parties
to the Group. In this regard, approximately RMB37 million is
recorded as trade and other payables on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as at 31 December 2019.
Based on the view that the legal proceeding was still in
progress and with reference to the legal opinion obtained from
the Company’s PRC lawyer, the management considered that
the likelihood for further outflow of resources of the Group was
remote.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

RIFEREHZHRR - HRBHIR
EBHRR  AREABREBEEED
BETRRBITZABERBATE
REEMERER - AEEZEH
REERBYENEIEXELME
- HBEETNMEMERERR
BERHBRTREFZEERETH

BRAEFRREH#BMZ2AET T
BEXR - F I ER AR A B 5 ik i
R ARAEZTRS > ARERTD
ARRELEBERESRAL  ®BAR
B E HIRRERRRA

R2019F 12 8318 -« IRITEHRHA
R #298,0007T (201812 8318
AR #297,0007T) B FRIT -
ERIRITRAAEBEMEE T RE 2
RIBERRE 2 RES (FI5E26) °

R2019%12A31H » KEE ¥ K
ZEEBERHERBINAEE
ZE=F)BHEEAEENFE
ZEBEBRBPYE T ZRFD o Bt
AEEEE2019F12A318 2474
B 75 R 3% B 16 FE A5 BR SR N H At FE A
A AR #37,000,0007TE 8 © 2
RERRAFADELRT  WBE
AARFRARMEZREZER B2
EBRE AEBERE—FREZ
AJREIEIRAN o
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e BRI
42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 42, REHERE
The Group as lessee AEBIERFEBEA
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments R2018F 128318 » TAIAEKEHE
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: TARREN 2 HEAERNKRTOT -
2018
RMB’000
ARETTT
Within one year —F R 3,398
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRF(BREEEMSF) 1,572
4,970
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group HEFHEMNTIEAEERE S FIEEN
for its offices. Leases are typically negotiated for three years and do MHe HERBHE=FH BEIrE
not include contingent rentals. ERARES -
The Group as lessor AEBERAHBEA
All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed BEERTHEBE ZFREDMED D RIEX
lessees for the next 1-7 years respectively. RAB7TF 2 FAEEGE -
Minimum lease payments receivable on lease are as follow: MEZ Y HERERNZTAT :
2019
RMB’000
AR¥T
Within one year —FR 31,390
In the second year F 4 30,705
In the third year F= 14,109
In the fourth year FEIOF 14,532
In the fifth year FRF 14,968
Over five years AFME 26,003
131,707
2018
RMB’000
ARETTT
Within one year —FR 34,730
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFEFAF(BREEERT) 91,409
Over five years AFME 43,466
169,605
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42.

43.

44.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)

The Group as lessor (Cont’d)

The investment properties rented during the year have committed
tenants for terms ranging from 1 to 20 years (31 December 2018: 1
to 20 years). In addition to the minimum lease payments, the Group
is entitled to receive contingent rent based on a fixed percentage of
turnover of the tenants as stated in the relevant rental agreements,
the percentage is ranging from 2% to 12%, for both years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has following material commitments in respect of the
properties, plant and equipment and properties under development
which are not provided for in the consolidated financial statements
as follows:

42,

43.

e B RRME

KeEHEAEE
AEBEEREEAE
FARMECIREMERBRE 2 HOER
HHR1E20F 7% (2018128318 : 1
F20%) - KRERERFIN - AEBEA
B EEEEHERACHPEEE 2
ETEBDHWESATE » RZmEF
EEBED LN T2%E12% °

BARERE

AEEHRYME  BEERBARERES
MERBZARGABBHREABEEGZ
ERALEMT

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Contracted but not provided for EEEEE R 62,786 80,312
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 44, BEFHE

As stated in note 24, the Group is engaged in the travel related
businesses by providing hotel accommodation, transportation
and entertainment to external individual customers (“Ultimate
Customers”). Substantially all of this business is deriving from
Ultimate Customers referred to the Group by its controlling
shareholder and/or its controlled entities, and these Ultimate
Customers were also customers of the controlling shareholder
and/or its controlled entities in their other businesses. Also, the
controlled entities are the major supplier of the underlying services
(such as provision of hotel rooms, cars and similar products),
as well as the settlement agent for certain Ultimate Customers.
Therefore, the Group’s trade receivables and trade payables were
net settled with the controlling shareholder and/or its controlled
entities on a regular basis.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

HAAM 24Pt - AR EEB RSN E
AEP(&EEPDRMBEEE X
BRIREN FIRBHABER - LEBR
REABRAREBEBRBRR,HEF
THEBRAAKRBEN Z2EKEF - M
RERERBEFPTRANEEERKRRR,
SEZEHERBIEMEFZIER o It
S+ % F AR HIE B IR S ARRE AR (A0 4
WEERE - RERBUER) < EE2H
EEARETREREFP ZHENRE -
gt - ARG 2 R R N R AN AR B
BRI AR R R SR E RIS B LR

43z
5
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44. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d) 44. BE T E (&)
Apart from details of the balances with related parties disclosed in bR R A B S AR R R A

the consolidated statement of financial position and other details
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group also entered into the following significant transactions with

related parties during both years:

W2 BHREET

ZREBHABARREE M BRI E ML
TREOEMFSI
SERRRESET MIEARS ¢

NN EESEFARN

Name of related parties Notes Nature of transactions 2019 2018
BES AR Mz XBHE RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTET
Fame Select (i) Effective interest expense on 28,335 85,120
BE 2016 Convertible Bond
20165F Al AR & 25 2 BRRF S5 X
Sun City Gaming Promotion (ii) Travel agency services income 8,558 8,225
RESHIEREH N ez IR BR S U A
Purchase of hotel accommodation 472,115 476,539
products
REBEEEREER
Purchase of travel related products 147 71
RS TR B AE B
Management service expenses 2,572 2,473
B RS X
Star Hope (i) Effective interest expense on 15,364 5,277
=] 2018 Convertible Bond
2018F AR ES c ERF EMAX
Imputed interest expense on 21,514 7,117
2018 Promissory Note
2018FEHEBR ZMENERAX
Imputed interest expense on 13,434 4,273
2018 Loan
2018F ER 2 BN ERXE
Imputed interest expense on 37,220 -
2019 Loan 1
2019 BRI 2 EF B
Imputed interest expense on 1,752 -
2019 Loan 2
2019F ER2 2 hEHMBFX
Interest expense on 2018 5,337 1,836
Promissory Note
2018F AR RR ZF B
Interest expense on loans 28,939 2,846

ERAMBRAX
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44. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d) 44. BEFHE (B
Name of related parties Notes Nature of transactions 2019 2018
BRESRE Wi RBHEHE RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Hoi An South Development Ltd (iii) Hotel and integrated resort general 11,009 11,145
consultancy services income

BIE KRR A B BN —RERRBEA

Better Linkage (iv) Effective interest expense on 10,417 3,577
2018 Convertible Bond
2018 F Al AR B 5 2 BIRF B

Mr. Chau and Ms. Chan Wai Leng (V) Sales of travel related products 373 565
ARERRERZ LT S IR B2 AE A EE om
Travel agency services income 1,674 7
ez IR R S UL A
Mr. Lo Kai Bong (iv) Sales of travel related products 385 607
ETREE 34 IR B AR A 2
Travel agency services income 215 5
ez IR RS UL A
Notes: MeE -
(0] Fame Select is the immediate holding company of the Company. 0} BER/RNRZEEERAT -
(i) Sun City Gaming Promotion and Star Hope are wholly owned by Mr. Chau, the (i) AEBBEERNREZHEARREERR - #
major shareholder, Executive Director and chairman of the Company. TEEREIRALELEHRE -
(i)~ Hoi An South Development Ltd was a related party of which Mr. Chau (i) ~ Hoi An South Development Ltd%—% B&E A
beneficially owns approximately 34% equity interest before the acquisition of the T RREEz2HRENBBALEER
entire interest of Star Admiral. After the acquisition of the entire interest of Star B HI3A%IE - R E S 2 EIER - A
Admiral, the Group indirectly owns approximately 34% equity interest in Hoi An SEFEBAKE -GS A RIEEREEH An
South Development Ltd through a joint venture of the Group. South Development Ltd4)34 %% # °
(iv)  Mr. Lo Kai Bong, an Executive Director of the Company, is the ultimate beneficial (v)  ARABITESET R L AL ABetter Linkage 2
owner of Better Linkage. BEBE=FEAA ©
(V) Ms. Chan Wai Leng is the spouse of Mr. Chau. v BRERLZLTAALEZRS -
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44.

45.
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
amounts due to a director, related companies and non-controlling
shareholders, loans from a related company and non-controlling
shareholders, bank and other borrowings, and convertible bonds
as disclosed in notes 24, 33 and 34(a), respectively, net of pledged
bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and
cash, comprising share capital, share premium and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from
time to time. As part of this review, the management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, the issue of new shares, new debts or the redemption of
existing debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(@) Categories of financial instruments

e B RRME

46. €T R
(@) £WMIANSE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Financial assets TREE
FVTPL BARER ABRR
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL BHIZ AR EFABREE - 44,934
Derivative financial instrument TEemIT A 2,619 =
Amortised cost - ST IDWIN 363,321 179,777
365,940 224,711
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost - 11BN 2,782,448 1,872,031
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,935 =
Derivative financial instruments PTESMITE 2,146,215 1,578,882
4,931,598 3,450,913

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, derivative financial
instrument, amounts due from directors and a non-controlling
shareholder, bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank deposits, trade and other payables, amounts
due to related companies, a director and non-controlling
shareholders, loans from a related company and non-
controlling shareholders, rent and other deposits, interest
payables, lease liabilities, derivative financial instruments,
convertible bonds, and bank and other borrowings. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (represented by currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

(b) EREMREEEFEREE

AEB IESBRTABEEKE
R EMERR - AR ERFAR
BITMEE TETSRMIA &
WE =N — R IR KR - iR
TRHENREE  DEFRTER
RRHRITER - BABRREEA
AR BNBBLAR - —RES
R IR R FROR ~ KB — AR B
REIRFEBEERER e kH
fbire  EAMNE  HERE 07
EEBTA  ATMBRESARRT
REMEE ZEERTAZHS
ERNEBMERE -ZFEeRTA
Wz R eEmEE R (RS % E
%~ MRERREMERRR) - E
SRR LB tER R o anEDEE %
FRBHMBRENTX - EEREE
BERERZEFRAR - AR KR
B R RBUE S 151 o
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

246

46. €R T B (&)
(b) ©REKRSEDERBE @

(Cont’d)
Market risks 5 E
() Currency risk () EEEE

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group’s exposure to
currency risk is mainly attributable to trade and other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, amounts due
from directors and a non-controlling shareholder, bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, trade and
other payables, interest payables, amount due to a
director, amounts due to related companies, loans from
a related company and non-controlling shareholders,
derivative financial instruments, lease liabilities and
convertible bonds that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they related. The management manages and monitors
this exposure to ensure approximate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
other than the functional currency of the group entities to
which they related at the end of each reporting period are
as follows:

Liabilities
&=
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

ARAETH BB ETINE
BE  ZRAKEERKIINER
% AEEmEEcE¥RRE
ZRAEBERDERER U
Z B RHE 2 W R E A
FEWR - BAREABEZ
TREE RBUREFER—%3F
ZRBCR IR - RITAEER MR
& DHEWRITER - EBNAE
R E A AR - BAFIE
e —RESFHA - EERR
NAEIFIA - KE—HEYAF
FIFEBBRER - TE 2’
TA HEAREBERAJBRE
> BEEEEREENERZRE
@ ARELR K B B2 2R BRER
EEREE

AEERERERRUEEE
BIMREEBUIINERFEZE
BEERERABEREMAEND

_{

Assets
BE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTT ARETT

HK$ BT 3,819,613 2,544,461
PHP = 102 =
Uss$ E7T - =
MOP SELPY 933 =
JPY S| 86,932 =

135,699 85,545
182,567 -
3,107 -
1,229 -
7,792 -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Market risks (Cont’d)

()

Currency risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on a 10% increase/decrease in functional currency of
respective entities against the relevant foreign currencies.
10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 10% change in
foreign currency rates.

If RMB had been 10% strengthened/weakened to HK$
for respective HK$ denominated monetary assets and
liabilities, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have decreased/increased
by approximately RMB276,294,000 (2018: post-tax
loss would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB184,419,000).

If RMB had been 10% strengthened/weakened to PHP
for respective PHP denominated monetary assets and
liabilities, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have increased/decreased by
approximately RMB13,685,000 (2018: nil).

If RMB had been 10% strengthened/weakened to JPY
for respective JPY denominated monetary assets and
liabilities, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have decreased/increased by
approximately RMB5,936,000 (2018: nil).

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

e B RRME

46. €R T B (&)
(b) ©RMEKRSEDERBEE

45 2 B2 ()

()

B b (4

BRRE DT
UNTH#HEESMNERSER
e EE S EEINE EF T
B10% MET - 10%hAEE
EIEABURBE N 2 MINE
R RANSRELE I
REEEEHINEEERT S
BEBHFTME - UREDITE
BREUIINESTERNMAZNE
BEIH B - W RS BAR AN
[E R FB)10%VEE KA o

WS ABTAHENEEEE
MEBARBHEBTER T
#10% » RIARSEEREZE2019
F12A31HIEFERNKRTBE
BEBRL EMHARE
276,294,0007T (20184F : Br#d
‘EBBRD, NGO ARE
184,419,0007T) °

WS UERTENELEE
MEBRAREBHERERER T
E10% + BIARSBE R ZE2019
F12A31HILFEMRTIE
BERBEN RO ARE
13,685,0007T (20184 : £) »

WS ABEFENEYEE
MEBEEAREBHEABLER T
#10% + BIARSBE R Z2019
F12A31HIEFENKRB %
BEKRD EMEOARE
5,936,0007T (20184F : #) o
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Market risks (Cont’d)

248

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
related to amount due to a related company (note 24),
loans from a related company (note 24), loans from non-
controlling shareholders (note 24), other borrowings (note
33), debt component of convertible bonds (note 34(a))
and lease liabilities (note 35).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to the restricted bank deposits (note 26),
pledged bank deposits (note 26), bank balances (note
27), bank borrowings (note 33) due to the fluctuation of
the prevailing market interest rates for both years.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. The directors of the Company monitor
the Group’s exposure on ongoing basis and will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly sensitive to
the fluctuation of interest rate arising from the Group’s
restricted bank deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rate risk for restricted
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points for
restricted bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and 50 basis points for bank borrowings
increase or decrease are used during the year for the
Group when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Market risks (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

If interest rates of restricted bank deposits, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances had been 10 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2019
would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB217,000 (2018: post-tax loss would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB111,000).

If interest rates of bank borrowings had been 50
basis points higher/lower, with all other variable held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2019 would have increased/decreased
by approximately RMB1,369,000 (2018: post-tax loss
would have increased/decreased by approximately
RMB2,570,000).

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL as
at 31 December 2018. For equity securities measured at
FVTPL quoted in the Stock Exchange, the management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group has appointed
a special team to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The Group is also required to estimate the fair value
of the derivative financial instruments at the end of
each reporting period with changes in fair value to be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as long as the
convertible bonds and the put option are outstanding.
The fair value adjustment will be affected either positively
or negatively, amongst others, by the changes in market
interest rate, share market price and share price volatility
of the Company and its subsidiary, SunTrust.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

e B RRME

46. €R T B (&)
(b) ©RMEKRSEDERBEE

45 2 B2 ()

(i)

(i)

FlIE =z (B

BRE DT (B)

i ZBRFIERITIFE 58~ B K7
BITFERRBITEHAE
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#217,0007T (20184 : B Fi
BEBBRD NG ARE
111,0007T) °
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

250

(Cont’d)

Market risks (Cont’d)

(i) Other price risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses of derivative financial instruments
below have been determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk and volatility risk arising from derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period
only as the directors of the Company consider that the
change in market interest rate may not have significant
financial impact on the fair value of derivative financial
instruments.

Changes in share price

If the Company’s share price had been 5% higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year (as a result of changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments) would have
increased/decreased by approximately RMB133,612,000
(2018: post-tax loss for the year would have increased/
decreased by approximately RMB98,487,000).

If the SunTrust’s share price had been 5% higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year (as a result of changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments) would have
increased/decreased by approximately RMB155,000
(2018: nil).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, restricted bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, amounts
due from directors, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, other receivables and other deposits. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets and other items under ECL model. Information about
the Group’s credit risk management, maximum credit risk
exposures and the related impairment assessment are set out
below.
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46. €R T B (&)
(b) ©RMEKRSEDERBEE

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers/trade
related amounts due from directors/amount due from

a non-controlling shareholder

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed twice
a year. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 8% (31
December 2018: 5%) of the total trade receivables was
due from top five customers as at 31 December 2019. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model on trade
receivables, trade related amounts due from directors and
amount due from a non-controlling shareholder individually.

As stated in notes 24 and 44, controlling shareholders and/
or its controlled entities act as collecting agent for the Group,
therefore the Group has concentration of credit risk under
such arrangement.

Other receivables/other deposits

For other receivables and other deposits, the directors of
the Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records and past experience. The
directors of the Company believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For
the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables and other deposits
were insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

= B R fe R Bl E A (A
BEFEHELZEKRS TEKE
FE SIE IR EW— 5 IR
REHH
REMEFAH TP - BB
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BRI 4E%E 2 8% (2018412 A31H
5%) BEWAREFRIA - thAs
BEGEEEERREFRBN - ARE
BIEREERR  AEEEEERZ
KEXEBEETEERMIREESR
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e B RRME

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

46. £RLT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Pledged bank deposits/restricted bank deposits/bank
balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits
and bank balances is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies. The Group assessed 12m
ECL for pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits
and bank balances by reference to information relating to
probability of default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies.

Based on the Group’s internal credit rating, no material loss
allowance is recognised for pledged bank deposits, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances.

The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

(b) E@EEREEBSRBEK(E)

=B R E G (A
EBHFRITIEN KRR TF
wIRITRERR

EEMRITER - ZRBRITFK
R ERTTH %ZFEH ﬁ@ R &
REFH/BREERT - BRER
%Eﬂﬁ&%%%ﬁ%%#ﬂ%%%ﬁ& s
AEBEZE2ERINBEEFREE
B2 HBEEFRZEZOMER
BAOBBREXENFEHCERRTE
F o RRBRITEARRRITERZ
12AFRREEEE -

RBAEEZ AFMEEFR - B8
REEMBITER - XRHET
TR RIRTTRERTER 2 BB ERE
o

TRHFLAEEEREEZFER
g0 - HARXAHEEEEN

fiy
2019 2018
External Internal Gross Gross
credit credit carrying carrying
Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
B S 12f8 B 5 20195 20185
e GEIER FEIE  2HRHEEESA ARREE BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARBTRL
Financial assets at amortised cost
BEERANE S REE
Trade receivables 23 NA (Note 1) Lifetime ECL
IR TER (FiszE1) rHEBEERR
- contracts with customers 57,7115 64,576
-EFaH
- operating leases 1,878 222
-REHE
Amounts due from directors 24b)  N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 32 368
EWESTE TR (FrzE1) HEHEEER
Amount due from a non-controling 24()  N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 3,768 -
shareholder
N —ZIERRETE TER Cia) PHEBEERR
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46. TR T B (&)
(b) ©RMEKRSEDERBE @

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

=B R A EF L ()

2019 2018

External Internal Gross Gross

credit credit carrying carrying

Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount

o kS 12835 20195 20184

M EEFIR  GEFIR  2UELHEERE HEEE BEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETR

Other receivables 23 NA (Note 2) 12m ECL 3,665 4,374
H IR @yl (f3E2) 1REARBEERE

Other deposits 23 NA (Note 2) 12m ECL 7,249 7,130
Hibize NER (H3k2) REAEREEESE

Pledged bank deposits 26 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 12,075 7,371
BHEBRITER NER 1A EREERBE

Restricted bank deposits 20 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 23,542 3,068
RRHRTER NER 12EAESHEERE

Bank balances 27 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 253,397 92,668
BITER NEfA 1EAESBEERE

Notes: B E -
1. For trade receivables, trade related amounts due from directors and 1. FEWER EWESESHBEFIER

amount due from a non-controlling shareholder, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these items
on individual basis. Trade receivables of approximately RMB59,593,000
(2018: RMB64,798,000), trade related amounts due from directors of
approximately RMB32,000 (2018: RMB368,000) and amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder of approximately RMB3,768,000 (2018: nil)
are assessed on individual basis within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired).

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no material loss
allowance on trade receivables, trade related amounts due from directors
and amount due from a non-controlling shareholder is provided on
individual basis. The directors of the Company considered that no loss
allowance is necessary at the end of the reporting period.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of these assets and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

R —BIERBEAEM S AEE
CEABRBVHEREEAFORBE
REPEBEEEBEEEEE - X
SEAEMNEEEEZFHEA ZESE
EEE - EUERFA A RKES59,593,000
70 (20184 : AR#64,798,0007T) * f&
WEEE 5 EERIELARE32,0007T
(20184 : AR ¥368,0007T) MEW—%
FEFERR AL SR R IE A A R #53,768,0007T (2018
FE) AR EEF G2 HEHREES
BEEEERE) -

REE20194F ;2018F 12 A31 A IEF
B BEREKER - BAEEE S
BB R B — & FE IR AR IR SR R A R
ZERNEBEE(CHEREE) - KAF]
EERARREHRBETEHELEE
Bt -

AR EEEDENBEBR ZENXIE
HZEREZEHFHMA - UHES
AW Z KA F BRI BT 2 BT AR
AR EH R -
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e B RRME

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

254

(Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past
due information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

46. €R T B (&)
(b) ©REKRSEDERBE @

1= B /B2 R Bl (E P 1 (A,
MR - (80

2. HAREERREEMNENME @ A%
B 7 A E RS E B R R B R
RARE BEEEM -

Not past due/
No fixed repayment terms
REHEEEERS
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019%12A31H 2018%12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Other receivables YR 3,665 4,374
Other deposits Hitviz e 7,249 7,130

Other receivables of approximately RMB3,665,000 (2018: RMB4,374,000)
and other deposits of approximately RMB7,249,000 (2018:
RMB7,130,000) are assessed based on 12m ECL. During the year ended
31 December 2019, no material loss allowance on other receivables and
other deposits is provided (2018: loss allowance of RMB1,983,000 on
other receivables). The directors of the Company considered that no other
loss allowance is necessary at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. A monthly report on forecasted inflow and outflow
of cash is compiled for the review by the directors of the
Company. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
and other borrowings and loans from a related company.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings, loans from
a related company and convertible bonds as significant
sources of liquidity. The Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB3,282,328,000 as at 31 December
2019. Furthermore, the Group’s total liabilities exceeded its
total assets by RMB1,705,376,000 as at 31 December 2019.
Taking into account the financial resources of the Group,
including the financial support from its controlling shareholder,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group has sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due for at least the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period.
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RE KRR
46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 46. TR T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices b) sREREEEEREEE)
(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) TEEN R R (FE)
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual TREFNAEEFETECRHEEN
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables RSN HAPR - ZZHKE
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows RemEBENARMERSTERE
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the RAEE A % BRA R & F B H
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest B o 5'] =BE ﬂ BERAEHIE®
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are ME - ENBRB/FBHHE - BIR
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest MRESBIBES iﬁiﬁﬂﬂim MG
rate at the end of each reporting period. e
Weighted Within More than More than
average 1 year or 1yearbut  2yearsbut Total
effective repayable less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 2years 5years 5years  cashflows amount
MERH 15/, 1E)L pi N AME

BRAZ  REXEE  BORE  (BHNSF SENE REREAE REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARMTR ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR

Asat31 December 2019 R2019%12A31R

Non-derivative financial T4 2RAER
liabilities

Trade and other payables BB REMENT - 144920 - - - 144,920 144,920
Amount due to a related R —HEBARTE

company 11.67% 275,942 - - - 275,942 256,023
Amounts due to related ERBRARSE

companies - 52,645 - 32,128 - 84,773 84,773
Amountduetoadiector  ER-AEZFE - 5,002 - - - 5,002 5,002
Convertible bonds kG 8.80% 623,198 - - - 623,198 581,731
Rentaland other deposts & Rtk s - 6,141 - - - 6,141 6,141
Loans from a related company K& —HEBARER 19.34% - - 1,503,063 - 1,503,063 729,589
Loans fomnon-controling ~~ KBFARKEER

shareholders 240% 85,091 - - - 85,001 84,804
Amounts due to non- e GEE

controlling shareholders - 669 - - - 669 669
Bank borrowings RITEE 5,64% 100,586 46,074 128,070 193,764 468,494 365,000
Other borrowings HthfgE 8.75% 314,700 225,245 - - 539,045 494,442
Interest payables RIS - 20,302 9,052 - - 29,354 29,354
Lease liabltes HERE 14,02% 2,468 685 - - 3,153 2,03
Total it 1,632,564 281,056 1,663,261 193764 3,770,645 2,785,383
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e B RRME

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

256

(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

46. EMIT A (/)
(b) ©REKRSEDERBE @

Bt E R ()

Weighted Within More than More than
average 1 year or Tyearbut  2yearshut Total
effective repayable less than less than Morethan  undiscounted Camyjing
interestrate  on demand 2 years 5years 5 years cash flows amount
il 382 1R 1EHE %I ARR
BRAE  REYER  EONE BOHSE SENE RERELE HEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Asat 31 December 2018 2018512 31R
Non-derivative financial ~ ¥fT£ $RERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ FERBRFRE MR = 213,752 = = = 213,752 213,752
Amounts due to related ERERADE
companies - 52,108 - - - 52,108 52,108
Amount due to a related ER-RBEARTE
company 11.67% 5310 269,028 - - 274,338 229,000
Amount duetoadirector BRI —AESFE - - 4,893 - - 4893 4893
Convertible bonds ThRESR 8.79% - 612,464 - - 612464 515,120
Rentaland other deposts B4 R fiks = 7448 = = = 7448 7448
Loan from a related company - RE—~HERATER 13.21% 8,433 8433 262,628 = 279,494 164,463
Bank borrowings RIS 5.64% 61,847 59,593 171,347 230,606 523,393 405,000
Other borrowings HthfgE 1028% 223,100 85,301 = = 308,401 280,252
Total @t 571,993 1,039,712 433,975 230,606 2,276,286 1,872,031
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of term
loans of RMB55,000,000 with a repayment on demand clause
based on the agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements. The amounts include interest payments
computed using the specified fixed rates or variable rates. As a
result, these amounts are greater than the amounts disclosed
in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis above.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company do not consider that it is probable
that the banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such
term loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

e B RRME

46. £RLT A (&)

(b) <&@ EkEE B R RBEK(E)

Bt m R ()
TRIBBENE KW E 2 15 EER
REEXMAESREREEGRR
EHE R AR55,000,0007T 2 2
HIN AT - ZEFABRAE 2 E
EMESFESHNKRGFEZFE
Moo Bt - ZEREBBR L F
MR ER ]G HEEBE AR NE
ZHE o Gt RAKEZH BN -
ARRREZRA TR SIRITA AIRETT
EEMBERERAKER - AQF
EEZAR/REEHERBREER
ERMREZEFREREE -

Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HALH - BERBAR EEREBERIZRTEE

Total
Less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows amount
KRB
S kS 1525 225 HEREBAH REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTRT AR®TR ARBTT AR®TR
31 December 2019 2019F12H31H 18,102 22,256 21,128 61,486 55,000

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each
reporting period.

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE

£FBF E BB EE S R
2z FEEER - Bl E3E6T
EeMABYTATIAZ GBS
B2 B
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e B RRME

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

258

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available.

(i)  Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used) as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or
liabilities at measurement date;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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46. €R T B (&)
() €MIE>AAENEGE

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Cont’d)

() Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities () HBEEMHEELULARBETEZ
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis PHEERTHMEBEZALE
(Cont’d) (#&)

Financial assets/ Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) and Significant
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  key input(s) unobservable inputs
SHEE/SHER RATREZANE  AAEER GEXKRIZAAUE EXFABRRARE
31-12-2019  31-12-2018
2019% 2018%
12A318  12A31A
RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR
Non-derivative financial assets - 44934 Level Quoted bid prices in an active Nil
at FVTPL F1 market. i
BRREFABR 2 HTE RETHMREAR
ERAE
Derivative financial liabilities 2,146,215 1578882 Level3 Binomial Model = in this approach, Estimation of share price volatility,
classified as FVTPL = B certain parameters (note 34(a)) determined by reference to the
convertible bonds determined by management average historical volatiltty of the

PEREAR BB
iEeRAE - TakESR

are input into the Binomial
Model to derive the valuation of
the derivative financial
instruments.
SRR - M p AT R
EEENET28(:4)
HAZEARRNGHTES
BIAfbME-

Certain parameters include:
ET2uBE:
- Share price
-1k
= Conversion price
-BHE
~ Risk-free rate
- EER N %
=~ Expected option life
- REHEES
- Expected dividend yield
-BEREKEE
= Expected volatility
-EERE

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

46. EMIT A (/)
() €RMIE>AABENEGH

(Cont’d)

() Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities () HBEEMHEELURARLBETEZ
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis PHEERTHMEBZALE
(Cont’d) (#&)

Financial assets/ Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) and Significant
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy  key input(s) unobservable inputs
SHEE/CRAE RATREZANE  AAEER RERKRIZBALE EXTAERBALE
31-12-2019  31-12-2018
20195 18
12A318  12A31A
RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Derivative financial asset 2,619 - Lewel3 Binomial Mode! - in this approach, Estimation of share price volatilty,
classified as FVTPL 3 certain parameters (note 34(0)) determined by reference to
- put option determined by management the average historical volatility of

MEREAR B MRS TE
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are input into the Binomial
Model to derive the valuation of
the derivative financial
instruments.
ZEARE - R p AT ER
EBETNAET2H(1E34(0)
HAZBARRNGLTES
BIAfbME-

Certain parameters include:
ET28eE:
- Share price
-iRE
- Exercise price
-{1iE
- Risk-free rate
-ERRAX
- Expected option life
- REHRES
~Expected dividend yield
- RS NEE
-~ Expected volatility
- kR
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

e B RRME

46. €R T B (&)
() €MIE>AAENEGE

(Cont’d)

() Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities () HBEEMHEELULARBETEZ
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis PHEERTHMEBEZALE
(Cont’d) (#8)

Sensitivity analysis BB T
If the volatility of the Company’s share price had been NG S E Y4 = s N 73
5% higher/lower while all other variables were held 5% FTBEEMAEEEZER
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended g AEEEZE2019F12
31 December 2019 would have increased/decreased by AS1BLEFEMNKRIEEIR
approximately RMB nil (2018: post-tax loss would have BER/ THRHOBARKES
increased/decreased by approximately RMB2,469,000) L (2018%F : B EEEE £
(as a result of changes in fair value of derivative financial /TR ARE2,469,000
instruments). T (EfTESMIAEZ AR
FEEH) o
If the volatility of the SunTrust’s share price had been fHSunTrusti% K e EF+, /T~
5% higher/lower while all other variables were held R5%IM FT B A 7] 8 [ = 4 15
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended g REBEZE2019F12 A
31 December 2019 would have decreased/increased by 1A LEFEZBREBEEEBR
approximately RMB174,000 (as a result of changes in fair L EMEH AN R#EEA174,0007T
value of derivative financial instruments). (EfTEemI A A AnBEEY
BY) -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R P r E3 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Fair value hierarchy 7201912 A31H
as at 31 December ZAREER
2019
Financial assets TREE
Derivative financial TEemITE
instrument - - 2,619 2,619
Financial liability TRIBE
Derivative financial eI A
instruments - - 2,146,215 2,146,215
Fair value hierarchy 720185 12H431H
as at 31 December ZARBERER
2018
Financial assets TREE
Listed equity security  _ETIRRAE 44,934 - - 44,934
Financial liability TRBE
Derivative financial MTEemI A
instruments - - 1,578,882 1,578,882

AEHREBERERAT 2019FFERE
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e B RRME

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

46. €R T B (&)
() €RMIE>AABENEGH

(Cont’d)
(i) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (i) FEIRASETTEZEIR
Derivative
financial
instruments
FTESRMTI A
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 439,938
Total losses in profit or loss BmA 2 BEERE 1,189,505
Exchange difference fEHZER 153,409
Adjustment on partial conversion of #B HH2016F A MR B 2
2016 Convertible Bond (405,785)
Issuance of 2018 Convertible Bond 1720185 AI AR &5 201,815
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 22018412 A31H & 201941 A1H 1,578,882
Issuance of put option 1T Bt (1,741)
Total losses in profit or loss BEAZ EiEEEE 521,746
Exchange difference MEHZR 44,709
At 31 December 2019 MA2019%F12H31H 2,143,596

(iii)

Total gains/losses in profit or loss are included in
“change in fair value of derivative financial instruments”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but
fair value disclosures are required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

There is no transfer among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during
both years.

262
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

47.

e B RRME

RETDEEZ2REZHR

TRAJNAEERE R 2 BEER
BREEEIFECES - aﬂéé@)?i
ZEBENEEASREXARARRERE
BRAEEGERENEXRTOERR
éf/%@ﬁﬁu/)luEZE{E °

activities.
Convertible
Amounts Loans Amounts bonds/
Loans from due to fomnon- duetonon- Provision ~ Bank and Qerivative
arelated arelated controling controling for other financial Lease
company  company  shareholders  shareholders liigation  borrowings ~ instruments liabilties Total
Re-M  ER-R
BROA BROA REHER  RAHEER s HR  AERES/
LE MR RRER REGE LB EREE fiEeRIE  HERE &5t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETn ARETR ARETR
(ote 24(e)  (note24(c)  (note24(d)  (note 24(d) (note 30) (note 33) (note 34) (note 35)
(fztode)  (Wata)  (Wstoa)  (Mitoq)  (Wss0)  (AEs9) (ft34)  (H30)
At1 January 2018 2018141 - - - - 235,000 617,547 851,045 - 1703592
Financing cash flows HERERE 240,077 219,583 - - (285,000) 39,067 - - 263,717
Decrease in amounts due to ERBRARFNERD

related companies 2,846) - - - - - - - (2,846)
Deemed capital contribution RlEE (80,436) - = = = = = = (80,436)
Transfer of interest payable to ~ E&EMFIEEEHET 2

other borrowing for loan HtfEE

extension - - - - - 20,705 - - 20,705
Setlement through other deposit  EBEMEE TS - - - - - (33,000 - = (33,000
Increase in interest payables FEfFIS LM - = = = = (10423) = = (10423)
Change in fair value of a ERER AL EED

convertible bond - - - - - - (73,936) - (73,936)
Change infair value of dervative ~ $TEEBIALAERY

financial instruments - - - - - - 1,189,505 - 1,189,505
Adjustment on partial conversion 555§ #2016E T AR ES

of 2016 Convertiole Bond g - - - - - = (554,186) - (554,189)
Issuance of 2018 Comvertible ~~ B1T2018F AT %

Bond - - - - - - 408,426 - 408,426
Exchange difference EREE 549 2,076 = = = = 179,174 - 18199
Interest expenses recognised BRAHERR 7,119 11799 = = = 1366 93,974 - 164258
At 31 December 2018 2018512431 164,463 233,668 - - - 685,252 2,094,002 - 317137
Adiustment upon applcation of  [ER BB B £

HKFRS 16 £16%4 282 - - - - - - - 3,658 3,658
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 47. MEETBHEE 2 BB 2HER(E)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Cont’d)
Convertible
Amounts Loans Amounts bonds/
Loans from dueto  fromnon-  duetonon-  Provision  Bankand derivative
arelated  arelated  controling  controlling for other financial Lease
company  company shareholders shareholders litigation  borrowings instruments  liabilities Total
RE-B  ER-B
BEAE  EEOE  RAFER  ENFER EEN Rk WRRER/
L& BE BRER  BRRE ZBE  HipfE fEEMIE  HESE @t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTr AR®Tn ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETR
(note 24(e))  (note 24(c))  (note 24(d))  (note24(d))  (note30) (note 33) (note 34)  (note 35)
(itdle)  (Watoae)  (Hi&toa(d)  (W&4(d) (H¥3t30) (H3t33) (Hr&k34) (Hy3t35)
Asat 1 Janvary 2019 (restated) 1201951 71R (BE3) 164463 203,658 - - - 685252 2004002 3658 3,181,083
Financing cash flows BERSIRE 1,003,773 (5,453) - - - 112340 - (2,691) 1,107,969
Provision for tigation A B - - - - 27,800 - - - 27,800
Increase in interest payable FEffI2Em - - - - - (20,354) - - (20,354)
Increase in amount due to related B —TEEI A A1FUEEM
company (28,939) 28,939 - - - - - - -
Interest payable rolover toloan ~ [Ef{F|8 £EZEFAS
principal - - - - - 23,190 - - 23,190
Acquisition of subsiciaries WERBAR - - 88,712 - - - - 431 93,089
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries B EHEREAA - - - - - - - (4277) 42m)
Deemed capital contrioution RiETE (500,834) - - - - - - - (500834)
Change in fair value of dervative ~ FTEERTANAERE
financial instruments - - - - - - 522,631 - 522,631
Exchange difference EXER 18,781 6,025 (3,908) 4 - - 57,197 266 78,365
Interest expenses recognised BERM AR 81,345 26,851 - 665 - 59,014 54,116 4 222,462
New leases entered M HE - - - - - - - 1,131 1,131
At 31 December 2019 2019512531 A 729,589 290,020 84,804 669 27,800 859,442 2,721,946 2935 4,723,205
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

48. RN T 2 B BMRR R K 2 B

As at 31 December

MW12A831H
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB RFEE 28 11
Investments in subsidiaries (Note (a)) BT A FHEE (i 5E (@) 2,178,702 1,277,602
Investment in an associate R—EBERFRE 42,766 =
2,221,496 1,277,613
Current assets MENEE
Prepayment and deposits R RIES 128 32
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBETABRZERHEE - 44,934
Bank balances and cash RIT#EERNIR S 23,056 15,112
23,184 60,078
Current liabilities mENBE
Other payables E R 5K 10,357 6,328
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE ] 884,620 884,132
Amount due to a related company P& —E B H A B R 257,892 4,658
Derivative financial instruments TESMT A 2,146,215 1,578,882
Convertible bond AR (E 581,731 =
Current tax liabilities BENEAFRIE B (& 4,333 4,333
3,885,148 2,478,333
Net current liabilities mENBEFEE (3,861,964) (2,418,255)
Total assets less current liabilities BEBAERLSAE (3,358,295) (1,140,642)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Amount due to a related company P& —E R A =) 3R 32,128 229,000
Loans from a related party RE—E@BARER 729,589 164,463
Convertible bonds AR E S - 515,120
761,717 908,583
Net liabilities BEFE (2,402,185) (2,049,225)
Capital and reserves I8 A K A
Share capital [N 582,811 582,811
Reserves (Note (b)) EEACIEA()) (2,984,996) (2,632,036)
Total deficit EAt s (2,402,185) (2,049,225)
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

a.

266

Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

48. RNA Tz M BMRR R K 2 B

(HE)

REELFRE
TREFIETEFELAKRERSE
BERBENHBARNFE - K
NAEERA  REEMHEAR
FERERERFBRENITE

Registered
Place of or issued
establishment capital/
incorporation/  Place of fully paid up Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiaries registration operation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activities
e/ AR
KEARER B Ben EEFR RA/BERA ARENECRERE IEXB
2019 2018
Direct Indirect  Diect Indirect
B BE  EE  RE
% % % %
Access Achievement Limited The BVI N/A Limited liabilties US$10,000 100 - 100 = Investment holding
company
Access Achievement Limited RELRREE TER BRAA 100007 RARR
Star Admiral The BVI N/A Limited liabilties US850,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
company
2 ABkBRNE TER ERAR 50,0007 RERR
Sun Century Property Group Company ~ The PRC The PRC Wholly foreign owned ~ RMB299,000,000 - 100 - 100 Property development
Limited enterprises and property
investment
Gt EEREERAR i GilEd NEEELE AR %299,0000007C MERERMERE
Shenzhen Zinii Real Estate The PRC The PRC Limited liabilties RMB21,000,000 - 100 - 100 Property development
Development Limited company
MITEREHERLERAT i HE BRAH ARH21,000,0007 VEGES
Shenzhen Sun Era Management The PRC The PRC Limited liabilties RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Property management
Company Limited company
AITAEERERERAT i e BRAA ARH1,000,00070 hxER
Shenzhen Guang Long City Commercial - The PRC The PRC Limited liabilties RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Property management
Management Company Limited company
MImEENAZERARAR T GilET BRAR AE%1,000,0007T hxER
Chaohu Boshing Tourism Development  The PRC The PRC Wholly foreign owned US$7,000,000 - 100 - 100 Property development
Company Limited enterprises
SHERREREERAD GilE! GilET IEEELE 7,000,000 MERE
Fushun Sun Era Property Development  The PRC The PRC Limited liabilties 1S$23,000,000/ - - - 90 Property development
Company Limited# company 1S$20,700,000
AEABERELEREARAT  HE hE BRAR 2800000057/ MERE
20,700 00057
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48. ZR T 2 M BRRARRFES B
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) ()
a. Investments in subsidiaries (Cont’d) a. RHEARREGE
Registered
Place of or issued
establishment capital/
incorporation/  Place of fully paid up Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiaries registration operation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activities
L/ BRETRER)
WEARAR B Ben EEF RA/BERA FREEEZRERE IBER
2019 2018

Direct Indirect  Direct  Indirect
EF BB ER BR
% % % %

Sun Travel Ltd. Macau Macau Limited fiabilties MOP1,500,000 - 100 - 100 Sales of travel related
company products and provision
of travel agency service
AGHEERAR ! A BRAR 1500000 2F5% HERBRBERR
REERERS
Suncity Group Management and Macau Macau Limited liabilties MOP25,000 - 100 - 100 Hoteland integrated
Consultancy Limited company resort general
consultancy service
AGRERERERERAR A il BRAR 25,000RF5% BERGRERIL
—RERRE
Victor Sky Holdings Limited The BVI N/A Limited liabilties USS1 100 - 100 = Investment holding
company
BRERERAA ABEARES TER BRAR %7 AR
MSRD Japan Japan Limited liabilties JPY60,100,000 - 51 - = Investment holding
company
MSRD = BE BRAA 60,100,000E RERR
Fortune Noble Limited The BVI N/A Limited liabilties US$1 100 - - = Investment holding
company
FUERAA ARARRES @R BRAT E3 RERR
SunTrust* The Phiippines  The Philippines  Limited liabilties PHP7,250,000,000/ - 51 - = Investment holding
company listed on ~ PHP3,312,500,000
The Phiippine Stock
Exchange
Sunrust’ FaE ez REREZHRAM 72500000006/ RERR
Lz ERAR 3312,500,000%%
# 10% of the registered capital of the subsidiary was not paid-up by the # JEFE AR AR 3R AR BB % M B A &) s i AR AN
non-controlling shareholder. #910% ©
* 2,550,000,000 new shares of SunTrust has been issued to a wholly * R2019%F12A31H - ERMARF—
owned subsidiary of the Company and was not paid-up as at 31 fil 2 & KT B A 7] ¥ 172,550,000,0004%
December 2019. SunTrustFT %15 + HE AR BERE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the RRAEFER - EA A EET
end of both years. FREBES
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e MBEmRME
48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48. AT ZMBMRR KRR FEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) (&)
Reserves b. f##%E
Share
Share option Merger Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BOGEE  BRERE EHRE EXfE ZitER @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT AR%ETR  AREBFT  AR®Tn  ARETR
At1 January 2018 W2018E1 A1H 1,402,528 35,760 (752) - (2,783,611) (1,346,075)
Loss and total comprenensive ERBRLZERTER
expense for the year - - - - (1,870,949 (1,870,949
Recognition of share-based EANRGD RERRE
compensation benefts & = 7,443 = = = 7,443
Forfeiture of share options R = (5,561) = = 5,561 =
Issue of shares upon partial HERITRRERE
conversion of convertible bond ARG 497,109 - - - = 497,109
Deemed capital contribution RIETE - - - 80,436 = 80,436
At 31 December 2018 and R2018E12A31A &
1 January 2019 2019F1A1H 1,899,637 37,642 (752) 80,436 (4,648,999) (2,632,036)
Loss and total comprehensive ENFERZERES
expense for the year - - - - (888,697) (888,697)
Recognition of share-based ERURD AEERR
compensation benefits &7 = 25,903 = = = 25,903
Forfeiture of share options R = (1.885) = = 1885 =
Deemed capital contribution RIETE - - - 509,834 = 509,834
At 31 December 2019 #2019612531R 1,899,637 61,660 (752) 590,270 (5,535,811) (2,984,996)

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The following events took place subsequent to the end of the
reporting period:

(@)

268

In January 2020, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group entered into a loan agreement with GYE, the
joint venture of the Group. Pursuant to which the Group
has advanced the loan of US$17,022,500 (equivalent to
approximately RMB118,753,000) to GYE for investment and
development of the project in Vietnam.
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49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont’d)

(b)

In January 2020, the Group and Westside (as defined in note
34(b)) entered into the second supplemental agreement to
amend the payment terms of co-development agreement
(the agreement between SunTrust and Westside dated 28
October 2019, the "Co-Development Agreement"), pursuant
to which, the Group has paid US$20,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB139,525,000) on 31 January 2020 to
Westside as the refundable deposit for the right-of-use of the
project site in the Philippines.

In January 2020, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
completed the acquisition of an aircraft for US$9,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB62,786,000), of which
US$8,850,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB61,739,000)
will be financed by a bank loan and remaining portion will be
settled by internal funding of the Group. The aircraft will be
classified as property, plant and equipment of the Group.

In February 2020, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group entered into a lease agreement to lease a project site
for development of a main hotel casino in the Philippines.
Pursuant to the lease agreement, the Group will pay annual
rental of US$10,600,000, exclusive of the applicable value
added tax, commencing from the first day of commencement
of operation of the hotel and casino establishment erected or
to be erected at the parcels of land located at Manila Bayshore
Integrated City in Paranaque City, the Philippines.

In March 2020, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group entered into a loan agreement with GYE, the
joint venture of the Group. Pursuant to which the Group
has advanced the loan of US$17,022,500 (equivalent to
approximately RMB118,753,000) to GYE for investment and
development of the project in Vietnam.

In March 2020, Fortune Noble Limited, SunTrust, Westside
and Travellers entered into a supplemental agreement to
amend the terms of the shares subscription agreement (the
“Shares Subscription Agreement”) dated 28 October 2019,
pursuant to which the longstop date for fulfiiment or as
the case may be, waiver of the closing conditions and the
conditions subsequent of the Shares Subscription Agreement,
is extended from 31 March 2020 to 31 July 2020.
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49. HEHREE ()

(b)

R2020%F 1 A + A& E EWestside
(EE B M E34(0) 5T B D7
%3 - AMEETSunTrustEEWestside
R2019F10A28H T2 2 R
B ((XRAAERED 2 5RIE
BN AEEBER2020%18
31H [AWestsidex 120,000,000
EL(HERK ARK139,525,000
) ERFEEEHEBMBRFERAEL
AREZRE o

R2020F1 A AEE—HE2EH
EHI B AR TEA RS — 2R - 1
29,000,000t (FEE R K AR
62,786,0007T) * & # 8,850,000
TT(FEE R ARE61,739,0007T)
BIA—FRTERIN - EHHH
BAREBERIE S - ZRiE
BoBEBAREEZME  BE KK
1 °

MR2020%F 28 « AEBE—HEIIEEE
WEB ARG HE R UHAEE
B A AIER S IEEE TR EIREE
%o REBEHEERZ  AEEKER
FFERERNARTSENEFRE
W — IR i B AS 2 R
ERIRESHEE B ARSI NF
110,600,000 7T (‘N B & A 2 15
BEH) o

MR2020% 3R  AEE—EEEZE
BB AREAERESE QA
CRET—HhEXRBGH - Bt - &
EEEMERBIRLE17,022,500% 7T
(BB R ARK118,753,0007T)

ZER  UEBEEAZRERE
R o
R2020%3A  ¥HARRA] -

SunTrust * Westside & Travellersz]
ST mEAERT B R20194F
10 A 288 Z i 5 7208 1 3% ([ IR 15 3R
Bl 2 &5 Btk - RO RE
Wik 2 R B R E B G EEN
S(RIBAME) R 2B IEAHA
2020F3 H31BE K ZE202057 A 31
g e
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49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont’d)

@

270

In March 2020, the Group and Westside entered into the
third supplemental agreement to amend the terms of the Co-
Development Agreement, pursuant to which the time by which
SunTrust is to raise fund of not less than US$300,000,000 to
finance the development and construction of the main hotel
casino, is extended from 28 March 2020 to 31 July 2020.

In May 2020, the Group and Westside entered into a operation
and management agreement (the “O&M Agreement”), pursuant
to which SunTrust is appointed by Westside as the sole and
exclusive operator and manager of the main hotel casino to
manage the development of the main hotel casino and operate
and manage the operation of the main hotel casino.

In May 2020, Fortune Noble Limited (as subscriber) and
SunTrust (as issuer) entered into a convertible bond
subscription agreement (the “CB Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which Fortune Noble Limited agrees to subscribe
and SunTrust agrees to issue the convertible bond in the
aggregate principal amount of PHP7,300,000,000 for cash
(the “SunTrust CB”). The SunTrust CB is non-interest bearing
and matures on the fifth anniversary of the issue date and
which may subject to agreement by the bondholder upon
request by SunTrust, be extended to the date falling on the
tenth anniversary of the issue date (the “SunTrust CB Maturity
Date”). The SunTrust CB is convertible into shares of SunTrust
at anytime after the issuance up to the close of business
SunTrust CB Maturity Date at the conversion price of PHP1.10
per share, subject to adjustments (if any). The initial number
of ordinary shares of SunTrust will be issuable upon full
exercise of the SunTrust CB is 6,636,363,636, representing
approximately 47.79% of the enlarged issued share capital
of SunTrust as enlarged by the conversion shares and the
shareholding of the Fortune Noble Limited in SunTrust will be
increased from 51% to approximately 74.42% (on the basis of
7,250,000,000 shares of SunTrust in issue as at the date of
the CB Subscription Agreement and assuming no change in
that number other by the issue of the conversion shares).
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202095 A - A& E B Westsider]
VEEBEREERBR(EEREER
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EERER A AEIEFH )RR
52 B R DA RS BB SR

2457 18 -

2020658 « AR RQAE
AREA)ESunTrust 1EAZE1TA)
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R EH A R EITHERESunTrusta]
BRESFEIE B L ERREARIERE
FERLBRESRIA0ER(KEHA
E(nA)) BB ASunTrusti&H °
SunTrust A % & FIEEHITFE R
# F 217 2 SunTrust I i@ A% ¥ 14 81
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49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont’d)

0

In June 2020, Victor Sky Holdings Limited (a direct wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and a substantial
shareholder of SA, “Victor Sky”) entered into an underwriting
agreement with SA (the “Underwriting Agreement”), pursuant
to which, Victor Sky as the underwriter conditionally agreed to
underwrite the shares of SA to be issued under the proposed
rights issue of SA (the “SA Rights Shares”) and subject to the
terms and conditions of the Underwriting Agreement. All the SA
Rights Shares (other than the SA Rights Shares to be offered
to and subscribed by Victor Sky and the Company under their
respective entitlements), being not less than 2,036,204,058
SA Rights Shares and not more than 2,066,975,058 SA
Rights Shares being underwritten by the Victor Sky pursuant
to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement (the “Underwritten
Shares”) at subscription price of HK$0.6 per SA Rights Share.
The fund required in payment of the aggregate subscription
price for the Underwritten Shares will be financed by a facility
provided by a company wholly owned by Mr. Chau.

The Group is currently holding an aggregate of approximately
24.74% interest in SA with the Company holding 2.73%
interest and Victor Sky holding 22.01% interest. The Company
and Victor Sky are substantial shareholders of SA. The taking
up of all the Underwritten Shares will constitute an acquisition
of interest in SA by the Group, SA will become an indirect
subsidiary of the Company as Victor Sky and the Company will
in aggregate hold approximately 69.78% interest in SA. The
financial results of SA will be consolidated in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company.
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49. HEHREE ()

1)

K2020F6H @ BRIERER AT
([BXR] XRRZEEZENES
RAIRIFZ FERE) B AT
vEEBE(BHERZE] - Bt
BRUERBHEE) BEGRERHE
EEIAERSE(INASHRKSE
BHDETH TFEIT2IARD - I
SR B Bk 2 R AR o 1R
BEEWHEZIGER - BRIGEER
LIRS 0.68 T 2 REE R
2 20 9L AR AR 15 (BR B R R R
PRISEBERERERTUR
B AHBRRGIN) - BIRDR
2,036,204,058 % | F i f% 15 & 1~
%% 2,066,975,058 % L FH i A% A 15
(B Mm]) - B BHEKRHER
BEMTES KB —HHBALES
BB RRIREERIA -

AEFERBERIFA EIFEL24.74%
s HPAQREF2.73% %
M RIEFEH22.01%%E2E - "ARE &
BARBINFAZEBRE - KBEE2 I
BLSEIR D A AL BB 2
B MBRBRAERAARA KXE
BB YT 4969.78% sk B
AEARRZEEHBAR  SlFAZ
MBEEBHALRRRZERE T
HE o
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49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont’d)

(k)

272

The outbreak of COVID-19 in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau,
Russia and South-east Asian countries and the subsequent
quarantine measures and travel restrictions imposed by the
respective local government as well as the travel restrictions
imposed by other countries in early 2020 have a negative
impact on the operations of the Group and the Group’s
associates and joint venture, as most of the Group’s revenue
are derived from the PRC, the Philippines and Macau and the
Group’s associates and joint venture are operating in Russia
and Vietnam. The directors of the Company would need to re-
assess the key accounting estimates including but not limited
to impairment on property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, investments in associates and joint venture.

Due to the inherent nature and unpredictability of future
development and market sentiment, the actual financial
impacts could be different depending on future development
of the outbreak, government policies and measures in
response to the outbreak. The actual financial impact, if any,
will be reflected in the Group’s 2020 consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company consider that the financial
effects on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
cannot be reasonably estimated as at the date these financial
statements are authorised for issue.
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